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Company Profile
RENAE

NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as NVC Lighting
Holding Limited) (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is a well-known lighting product supplier in the industry, mainly
engaged in the design, development, production, promotion and sales of
various lighting products. After the completion of the disposal of majority
equity of lighting business of NVC in the PRC in late 2019, the Group,
in addition to its international lighting business, formally started a new
chapter for strategic adjustment and business transformation, focused
on creating environmental, safe and healthy smart home and commercial
office environment and promoted the Group to grow to be a global brand
service provider for industrialised, chain-based and one-stop solutions.
The Group has production plants in Zhejiang, Shanghai, Zhuhai in China
and Vietnam, etc. It also has overseas product development centers that
meet European standards. We have set up operation agencies in more
than 40 countries and regions around the world.

Since the establishment in 1998, we always insist on independent
innovation in product research and development, and are committed
to providing efficient, energy-saving, healthy and comfortable lighting
solutions for the fields of construction, transportation, urban lighting,
supermarket, hotel, office, housing, school and industry. On 20 May
2010, the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02222). On 12 December 2019, the
Group officially completed the disposal of the majority equity of lighting
business of NVC in the PRC. Since then, the Group has shifted the focus
of traditional lighting business from the PRC professional lighting to
international professional lighting. Meanwhile, we have shifted the focus
on promoting non-lighting products for quality smart life solutions.

Our products and application solutions are selected and used by a
number of famous projects and brands, the Group was the lighting and
service cooperative partner of the Olympic Council of Asia in 2011 and
provided lighting products and solutions for famous projects including
Rio Olympic Games, G20 Hangzhou Summit, Milan Expo, Guangzhou
Asian Games, Shanghai World Expo, Beijing Olympic Games, Royal
Wharf in London, Birmingham Airport in the UK, Villas of Saudi Arabia
Sabic Group, and Qatar Beverly Hills. The Group has been committed
to beautifying the commercial and living space with artificial lighting and
protecting the ecological environment with environmental-friendly and
energy-saving lighting. The Group started to launch a new brand strategy
in 2020. The new brand mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape * :E4
JEANRFREE” was put forward to connect the corporate vision and brand
mission with the construction of human daily life and conduct business
operation from a perspective with more humanistic value, so as to
promote the transformation of the Group to a global-focused provider of
Indoor Air Quality products.
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For the Years Ended 31 December

Continuing Operations

Revenue

Gross profit

Gross profit margin (Note 1)

(Loss)/Profit before income tax

(Loss)/Profit margin before
income tax (Note 1)

(Loss)/Praofit for the year from
continuing operations

Net (loss)/profit margin from
continuing operations
(Note 1)

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

(Loss)/Profit for the year from

continuing and discontinued

operations (Note 2)

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note 1: Gross profit margin equals to gross profit divided by revenue;
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2022
20225
RMB’000

FARR

1,888,447
431,452
22.8%
(23,142)
(1.2%)

(37,484)

(2.0%)

(37,484)

(66,119)
28,635

Financial Highlights
M

HE12H31HILEEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
20215 20205 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARK TAR® TAR® TAR®
(Re-presented)
(E751)
2,374,947 2,349,573 2,222,610 1,684,699
662,432 672,518 533,361 331,960
27.9% 28.6% 24.0% 19.7%
62,990 (12,455) (5,469) (471,731)
2.7% (0.5%) (0.3%) (28.0%)
33,466 (20,002) (87,263) (703,330)
1.4% (0.9%) (3.9%) (41.7%)
- - 3,790,435 400,994
33,466 (20,002) 3,708,172 (302,336)
5,814 (51,748) 3,674,982 (327,592)
27,652 31,746 28,190 25,256

(loss)/profit margin before income tax equals to (loss)/profit before

income tax divided by revenue; net (loss)/profit margin equals to

(loss)/profit for the year divided by revenue.

Note 2: (Loss)/Profit for the year represents (loss)/profit before netting off

profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests.
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Financial Highlights
MR

As at 31 December ’12H31H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

20226 20216 20208 20195 20185

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARKE FTARK TARE® TAE® TARK

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,249,181 2,022,371 2,028,276 2,288,452 3,371,817

Current assets REEE 1,853,120 2,324,041 2,345,760 3,145,807 4,229,285

Current liabilities rEaE 742,708 970,197 955,008 1,925,244 3,974,163

Net current assets FREEE 1,110,412 1,353,844 1,390,662 1,220,563 255,122

Total assets less current liabilities ABERREEE 3,359,593 3,376,215 3,418,938 3,509,015 3,626,939

Non-current liabilities Enaas 76,427 91,713 104,033 114,914 231,423

Total equity R 3,283,166 3,284,502 3,314,905 3,394,101 3,395,516

Including: Hep:

Equity attributable to owners v /NCIEZ 2= DN

of the Company FE(L R 3,165,352 3,195,184 3,224,627 3,319,729 3,286,696

Non-controlling interests Il 117,814 89,318 90,278 74,372 108,820

Current ratio (Note 1) TENLEE (Hat7) 2.50 2.40 2.46 1.63 1.06

Note 1: Current ratio equals to current assets divided by current liabilities. KiaE1 R EER R B ERLRTa G-

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to you the 2022 annual report of
the Group.

Review in 2022:

In 2022, in the face of the global economic slowdown, coupled with
the Russian-Ukrainian war, the prices of commodities and freight rates
remained high, the global economy shrunk rapidly, and the inflation index
was high. As a result, the market economy environment was constantly
changing, and all the industries were facing significant challenges in their
operation. All major banks and financial institutions had lowered their
GDP growth forecasts for various countries one after another, resulting in
a sharp drop in their confidence in economic growth this year. The global
economy growth was expected to slow to 3.2% in 2022 according to the
latest World Economic Outlook published by the International Monetary
Fund.

Faced with the tight supply chain, the Group adjusted its procurement
strategy and signed strategic cooperation agreements with core suppliers
to ensure a stable supply. The Group has paid attention to the market
trend, launched a series of new lighting products to meet the needs of
customers, and strengthened the Group’s sales foundation. In addition to
the international lighting business, the Group had been preparing for the
expansion of its non-lighting business in the global market in 2022. With
the brand mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape ® :#4 ;& UN/RFTER"
and by focusing on our customers and their environment, we have been
actively expanding products in the two elements of “air” and “water” and
related fields to improve the life quality of consumers, to realise the vision
of sustainable development and to build a smarter, more environmentally
friendly and more technological living space. During the Reporting Period,
affected by a number of unfavorable factors such as the weak global
economy, increased prices in raw materials and the lockdown measures
in Shanghai, the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,888,447,000,
representing a decrease of 20.5% as compared with the Corresponding
Period; and gross profit of RMB431,452,000, representing a decrease of
34.9% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

Outlook for 2023:

In 2023, while ensuring the sales of lighting business, the Group will
vigorously promote the development of non-lighting business. Through
the efforts of the Group’s R&D team, Indoor Air Quality (“IAQ”) products
have been successfully launched. The Group will further capitalise on
the brand reputation of D&H, a century-old high-quality luxury lighting
manufacturer in the UK, to launch more IAQ products in overseas
markets in 2023. The strong sales channels of the Group, together with
the promotion of new products, will help to further improve the Group’s
sales performance in future. In addition, the Group will continue to
optimise the management structure and integrate the overseas business.
Based on the business in the U.S. and the UK, it will continue to
strengthen the business in the Middle East and Southeast Asia markets,
while promoting the developed cost-effective products and intelligent
products to different overseas markets. The Group will proactively
improve its brand image to enhance its brand awareness in international
markets and promote its mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape ® :Z24
JEUNRFTRE”.

North American and Japanese Markets

In 2023, the Group’s top priority is to deplete inventory and bring
inventory back to normal levels. The US sales team will formulate
the promotion plans based on different inventory ageing and market
acceptance. In terms of the retail market, the Group will utilise online
channels to quickly propel the sales of cost-effective products that can
be sold through e-commerce channels, and will also fill graps in product
lines with its own brands, so that online products and offline products
can complement each other to jointly boost sales. In addition, in order
to further enhance the Group’s competitiveness and align the Group’s
long-term development goals in the future, the US management team
will integrate resources and processes, and strategically optimize the
structure of self-made and outsourced product lines. The factory in
Vietnam will establish self-made workshops for blow moulding, extrusion
moulding and rolling in the second and third quarters of 2023, and the
systematic planning will be formed for the standard chassis of the core
product lines. The strategy returned to the principal of “cost lendership”,
and expanding market share.

In 2023, the strategy for the Japanese market will continue to take
“technological innovation, quality first, and cost orientation” as the main
core values. The Group will lay a solid foundation for broader business
and the development of self-owned brands in the future. While paying
continuous attention to external opportunities and striving to increase
sales, the Group will sell more high value-added product lines with high
profit margins and effectively manage discounts, logistics and inventory,
so as to generate more profits for the Group. The Group will seize more
market shares under the premise of maintaining the gross profit margin.
In addition to the traditional lighting field, the Group will simultaneously
launch the e-commerce business of its own brand D&H Lifelabs air
purifiers products.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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The future market outlook for IAQ is promising, and D&H Lifelabs is well-
positioned to take advantage of the growing demand for IAQ products.
The global IAQ market is expected to reach $6.5 billion by 2025, driven
by increasing health concerns related to indoor air pollution, rising
disposable income, and technological advancements in air purification
systems. Looking forward to 2023, D&H Lifelabs plans to launch a B2B
line of products, focus on national retail partners, create differentiated
content for the market, continue running the Affiliate Marketing Program,
and engage with customers through social channels to enhance
the brand image. The Group appreciates the hard work, dedication,
and patience of all employees and remains committed to enhancing
operations, expanding the business, and delivering value to customers in
the coming year.

UK and Nordic Markets

The management of the Group anticipates the sale performance will be
improved in 2023 as the European economies have recovered to pre-
Covid-19 levels and the local sales teams have been strengthened by
recruiting experienced personnel. The Group will continues improving the
gross profit margin of UK and Nordic lighting business by introducing
high value products to the wholesale market and focusing on lighting
project development. The management of the Group will also improve
the operation efficiency by enhancing the inventory management. This
will improve the financial performance of the Group. Also, the Group will
put more resources in developing new D&H products and promoting
D&H products which will secure more sale orders. With the progress of
D&H bespoke lighting product projects, the Group will further enhance its
revenue and financial performance in UK and Nordic market.

Other Overseas Markets

The Group will continue to maintain a long-term strategic key alliance with
Southeast Asia regional partners to work with them exclusively to use
its own NVC brands for their lighting projects which in turn will ensure
the Group’s brand position in the marketplace. The Group will also focus
on promoting lighting products to high-end segment for project product
portfolio, which will enhance the gross profit margin of the Group. Also,
the Group will put more resources in developing sale channels for non-
lighting products. The Group will make use of post-pandemic situation
to promote the non-lighting products and improve the overall operating
performance in Southeast Asia regional. The Group plans to expand its
distribution presence in the existing major markets in 2023, while directly
expanding to other markets such as Indonesia, Malaysia, and Philippines.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRS

In 20283, the Group will focus on developing the distribution channels
in engineering and construction industry, and introducing the NVC’s UK
products to enrich the product lines in Middle East and North Africa
markets. For Saudi Arabia, the largest oil producer and largest consumer
market in Middle East, the Group will proactively cooperate with those
well-known local corporations in conjunction with the Saudi Arabia’s 2030
NEOM project to promote the NVC brand in the local market. In 2023, the
Group plans to hold a distributor conference, inviting various distributors
from different markets in Middle East and North Africa to explain the
Group’s strategic deployment and business philosophy, assist distributors
to develop channels in the local markets, and provide more products that
are more in line with the needs of the local markets.

Brand Building, Product Development and Internal
Management

The Group successfully gained widespread recognition through various
brand promotion campaigns in 2022. In 2023, the Group will use D&H as
the first pioneering brand of the Group to expand the overseas high-end
lighting field. Leveraging D&H’s century-old brand history, it will build the
century-old brand image. Meanwhile, the Group will increase promotion
of other non-lighting brands. We shall accurately satisfy consumer
demands and enhance customer experience by taking advantage
of excellent product design capability and the capability of building
intelligent product ecosystem.

In response to the increasing public awareness of environmental
protection, the market has begun to focus on the development of green
energy and carbon neutrality. The Group actively improves the efficiency
of photoelectric utilization and strives to achieve the goal of carbon
neutrality. In addition, the Group propels the application of green lighting
in order to continuously expand the application of clean energy in lighting
systems and to endorse green and low-carbon policies.

In respect of the supply chain, raw material price control will be a key
concern for the Group. The Group will strengthen control on material
prices, inventory control and team personnel optimisation. It will control
material costs by linking bulk material prices, collective procurement and
other strategies, and reduce inventory by shortening the procurement
cycle, thereby enhancing the Group’s business performance. In addition,
the Group will continue to promote the digitalisation and informatisation
construction throughout the Group. In 2023, the Group is devoted to
promoting the ERP system transformation of its subsidiaries, so as to
achieve globally cross-regional cooperation and resource sharing among
main businesses, thereby enhancing the overall operating efficiency of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group will enhance its ERP function and, by
adding different functions, further enhance its governance effectiveness.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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Our stable development for over 20 years depends on the wholehearted
contributions and persistent support from the Board and all staff
members. | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the long-term
support of all shareholders, clients, suppliers and distributors. In the
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEREDH

Market and Performance Review

In 2022, in the face of the global economic slowdown, coupled with
the Russian-Ukrainian war, the prices of commodities and freight rates
remained high, the global economy shrunk rapidly, and the inflation index
was high. As a result, the market economy environment was constantly
changing, and all the industries were facing significant challenges in their
operation. All major banks and financial institutions had lowered their
GDP growth forecasts for various countries one after another, resulting in
a sharp drop in their confidence in economic growth this year. The global
economy growth was expected to slow to 3.2% in 2022 according to the
latest World Economic Outlook published by the International Monetary
Fund.

Faced with the tight supply chain, the Group adjusted its procurement
strategy and signed strategic cooperation agreements with core suppliers
to ensure a stable supply. The Group has paid attention to the market
trend, launched a series of new lighting products to meet the needs of
customers, and strengthened the Group’s sales foundation. In addition to
the international lighting business, the Group had been preparing for the
expansion of its non-lighting business in the global market in 2022. With
the brand mission of “Empowering Your LifeScape ® 24 & U1{RFrEE"
and by focusing on our customers and their environment, we have been
actively expanding products in the two elements of “air” and “water” and
related fields to improve the life quality of consumers, to realise the vision
of sustainable development and to build a smarter, more environmentally
friendly and more technological living space. During the Reporting Period,
affected by a number of unfavorable factors such as the weak global
economy, increased prices in raw materials and the lockdown measures
in Shanghai, the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,888,447,000,
representing a decrease of 20.5% as compared with the Corresponding
Period; and gross profit of RMB431,452,000, representing a decrease of
34.9% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Selling and Distribution

The Group has established sales networks and channels in major
countries and regions including the PRC, North America, Europe,
Australia, East Asia, the Middle East and Southeast Asia leveraging its
extensive marketing experience and superior globe-based operation
team.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

North American and Japanese Markets

In 2022, the Group continued its long-standing model characterised
by the parallel operation of three channels: retail channel, distributor
channel and engineering channel in the North American market. Under
the influence of the stay-at-home economy model in 2021, consumers
are more and more aware of online shopping. Online transactions in
the retail industry in the United States saw a rapid rise and accounted
for a certain proportion of total retail sales, and such momentum is still
growing fast. As a manufacturer and brand owner of functional lamps, the
Group’s product planning and strategic direction are perfectly in line with
the current largest retail customer. Affected by the economic situation,
the total sales of retail channels in 2022 declined as compared with last
year. In terms of the distributor channel in the North American market, the
sales team has been reorganized thoroughly since the beginning of the
year, meanwhile, a huge number of unqualified agents had been replaced
and new agents had been distributed in previously uncovered locations.
By the end of 2022, the Group had completed the agents network in
50 states of the United States. In terms of engineering channel, great
progress had been made in 2022. Particularly, the sales of lighting
projects of the chain gymnasium began to pick up due to the previous
foundation work. In addition to indoor products, other engineering
customers also started to purchase outdoor series of products in 2022.
The Group also set up a demonstration project store in cooperating
with a US high-end chain retailer with expanded product categories. In
addition, the UVC and plasma germicidal lamps that the Group focused
on developing in 2021-2022 also saw considerable progress in 2022.
The Group signed an agency agreement with an agent, and products
combining plasma and lighting, ultraviolet light and lighting had been put
into the market in the second quarter, involving projects such as high-end
apartments, nursing homes and clinics.

In 2022, Japanese Yen experienced an unstoppable depreciation.
As Japan relies heavily on imports, the depreciation of Japanese Yen
resulted in rising procurement costs and rising commodity prices. As
the Japanese market was affected by the global economic environment
and the pandemic, major retailers and home improvement stores were
suffering from difficult market conditions. The high costs brought about
by the increase in sea freight rate and the depreciation of Japanese Yen
suppressed the profit margin of brand owners. In order to maintain their
market share, brand owners hesitated to raise their retail prices. Given
such various unfavourable market conditions, the overall sales of the
Japanese market in 2022 declined compared with 2021. Due to high
inventory costs and rising freight costs at the beginning of the year, the
cost of sales increased, resulting in a decrease in profits. In the face of
drastic changes in the external environment, the team members adjusted
the product structure since the second half of the year by ceasing to
sell low-margin product lines and launching new products while cutting
the costs of existing products. Moreover, they have been building sales
channels and carrying on promotional activities for new products in the
non-lighting series.
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BEEEREDH

2022 was a remarkable year for D&H Lifelabs, with significant progress
and achievements. The Group hired an exceptional team that played a
pivotal role in bringing D&H Lifelabs to the market. The team delivered a
fully functional e-commerce website for the US, UK, and Japan markets,
executed new packaging and collateral effectively, and established
a California 3PL, enhancing supply chain operations. These efforts
led to the launch of consumer SKUs on Amazon US, UK, and Japan,
significantly expanding the customer base. D&H Lifelabs also successfully
launched Paid Media (Offsite) and Amazon Media (Onsite) to reach the
target audience more effectively, receiving dotcom assortment awards
from various retailers and signing contracts with website representation
firms to extend distribution networks and reach national large retailers.

UK and Nordic Markets

Despite facing inflation of production cost and shipping cost of global
market, the management team of the Group made their efforts on
maintaining stable financial performance of UK and Nordic markets. The
UK and Nordic sales teams focused on developing the brand reputation
and driving lighting products demand in the UK and Nordic markets. Also,
it drived the product mix to the more added value and higher margin
channels. With integration and centralization of Nordic operations, the
profitability was improved by cost synergy in Nordic market. Furthermore,
the Group focused on promoting DERNIER & HAMLYN (“D&H”), a
century-old high-quality luxury lighting manufacturer in the UK, and
offering bespoke lighting products to customers. With the high margin
bespoke products, it maintained stable gross profit margin for UK and
Nordic market.

Other Overseas Markets

In 2022, multiple waves of epidemics and transportation restrictions
around the world have delayed the arrival of goods and distribution
channels. This affected the Group’s overall performance in Southeast Asia
regions. However, the management of the Group was constantly adapting
strategy towards maintaining market reach and assisting local partners
towards project fulfilment. Some Southeast Asia regions, had recorded
a decent improvement on revenue when compared with Corresponding
Period due to resumption of construction work projects. The Group had
put a huge amount of effort to develop and market both new lighting and
non-lighting products into the key markets. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has launched a series of new products covering commercial
lighting, office lighting, industrial lighting, and outdoor lighting to meet the
local project requirements and this improved the overall performance in
Southeast Asia regions.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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In 2022, the Group mainly focused on engineering and construction
projects in Middle East and North Africa, including the installation and
commissioning of supporting facilities of Lusail Stadium and 974 Stadium
to ensure the success of FIFA World Cup 2022 in Qatar. The Group
focused its business on large-scale projects and has secured orders in
Egypt and Algeria. At the same time, the Group proactively cooperated
with local well-known lighting brands to provide high-quality, high value-
added OEM products.

Brand Image Building and New Product Research and
Development

The Group promotes its brand with three elements, namely “water”,
“light” and “air”. “Light” is the continuous driving force and core
foundation of the Group’s growth. In 2022, for the integration and
upgrade of overseas lighting brands, while considering changes of
environment and consumer needs, the Group strategically identified
its characteristics and comprehensively upgraded itself from multiple
aspects and channels to create a richer and more vivid brand image.
This reflected brand value in all the comprehensive experiences given to
consumers, making the corporate image more profound. In addition, in
response to consumers’ increased awareness of epidemic prevention,
the Group created a new IAQ brand centered on the elements of “water”
and “air” through D&H, a century-old high-quality luxury lighting brand in
the UK. In 2022, the Group won the German iF Industrie Forum Design
award, the Industrial Internet KiloPeaks Award — Potential Award (E# &
Bt 48 T 1% 2% — 58 /7 8%) from the Ebrun Industrial Internet Summit and other
awards at home and abroad, and was also selected as one of the “Top
Ten Air Quality Solution Providers of 2022” by the magazine Construction
Tech Review, which demonstrated the excellence of product design as
well as the research and development capability of the Group. This further
enhanced our brand awareness and expanded our brand influence.

The Group’s management has put forward the core development strategy
of “Technology-driven and Users First” to promote the research and
development of lighting and non-lighting products. The Group attaches
great importance to the research and development of innovative
technologies. In 2022, the Group successfully developed a number of
non-lighting technologies, including air disinfectors, water-air disinfection
technologies and commercial fresh air disinfectors. The Group’s design
department gains an insight into consumers’ needs by monitoring the
market trends, and carries out product research and development with
the professional spirit of “ingenuity and innovation”. The new products
can enhance the user experience by placing emphasis on the changes
in the user environment and identifying the actual and potential needs of
users. The Group has successfully launched a number of new products in
2022 by utilizing relevant technologies and product designs.
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The Group’s Main New Products

The Group focuses on developing creative research and development
capability and providing customers with professional and optimised
lighting and non-lighting solutions. It aims to promote the global energy-
saving and emission-reduction and enhance green lighting industry
forward to more sustainable, healthy and well-regulated growth. The
Group has now established sales networks in major countries and regions
such as North America, Europe, Australia, East Asia, the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. The Group develops and promotes products according
to regional characteristics and customer needs, providing distributors,
project customers and consumers with customised and differentiated
products and services. The following shows the main new products
developed and successfully marketed by the Group during the period
under review.
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6in Color Preference Downlight

SMD6 Surface Mount Disk Light
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3in low profile Color Preference Downlight
with Night Light
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VersaStrip 8in Linkable Strip Light
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4ft Commercial Wrap Light 4ft ECO low profile Wrap Light High Bay with Integral Occupancy Sensor
HRBRALRE TERABERAERIEE RUE R A S ME

Low profile Flushmount Washington Commercial Downlighter Westminster Commercial Downlighter
BERIEE 7 ARAE 7 A IR BRE

MIAMI GU10 Downlight Venus Fire-rated Downlight Mercury Integrated LED Downlight
AT ED S 2R BRER 1B %5 B K Th AE BRBR I& A= 2 FRBLEDER AR &
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Financial Review
Sales Revenue

Sales revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts. During the Reporting Period,
the sales revenue of the Group amounted to RMB1,888,447,000,
representing a decrease of 20.5% as compared with the sales revenue in
the Corresponding Period.

For business management need and the nature of business units based
on the products and market, the Group classified the reportable operating
segments as follows:

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and non-NVC
brand sales

The table below sets forth the sales revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the growth rate
of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily consist of ODM
products.

R #5 [o] B8
HEWA

HEWAGEESEYNEZEE  £NK
BEMANNFE - RREEER AEH
ENSIHEWA B ANRMA1,888,447F 750 8%
B HA 88 & WL AR 20 20.5% ©

HREEEERERAEMMN B IHERE
BETHMHE ~EEE QU THREER
PaN:i I

B IE (I B R &1 da M2 FFE 1 qa 7
E&7HIHA

TREHBMBUERE T LEERNIF
ErTmMERSONEERARKER
WEEX - ZMANFELTRRERETER
ODMZE m 48 Ak ©

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HILLEE
2022 2021 Growth rate
20224 20214 BRE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 (%)
FARE FTARE (%)
Sales revenue from the PRC KEFPENHE KA
market
Non-NVC brands JEE LM 118,197 251,503 -53.0%
Subtotal itia 118,197 251,503 -53.0%
Sales revenue from KEBERIHEWRA
international markets
NVC brands BT mhE 291,215 312,728 -6.9%
Non-NVC brands JEE T M 1,479,035 1,810,716 -18.3%
Subtotal a¥-1a 1,770,250 2,123,444 -16.6%
Total =11 1,888,447 2,374,947 -20.5%

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continues to focus on the lighting products in overseas
market. During the Reporting Period, sales revenue from the PRC
decreased by 53.0%, due to operation suspension of a subsidiary
of the Group because of lockdown measures in Shanghai in 2022.
Meanwhile, international sales decreased by 16.6%, mainly due to weak
demand resulted from serious inflation issues and the weak economy in
international market. This led to a decrease in the overall sales revenue
by 20.5% comparing with Corresponding Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials, outsourced
manufacturing costs, labor costs and indirect costs. Major raw materials
of the Group include iron, aluminum and alloys, glass tubes, electronics
components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced manufacturing costs
primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished products used
in the production of our products and finished products produced by
other manufacturers. Indirect costs primarily include water, electricity,
depreciation and amortisation and others. The table below sets forth the
composition of our cost of sales:

2022
20224
Percentage in

BEEEmED

AEBETEBITHEEETNRBEESR
REFEEARNRBPEMNHEEWARD
53.0% ' REARE2022F L 8HIMEMER
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16.6% 0 Th E B AR 8 IR M E &R E K E R
THERERRERNERER - SENER
HEWAREBER20.5% °

HEME

HERTTEZBERMERE IO EE
RE BT RERER AEENEE
EMEEEE e KEBEE - BEFT
B LURLEDHERRF - INEEEMEE
PHEXBHMREHEENF A MUK
RmMU AR EMNEREENMAE - FEEZ
ERNATEGEK B TEMBHUK
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Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HILLEE

2021
20214
Percentage in

RMB’ 000 revenue (%) RMB’ 000 revenue (%)
flr 4 A EE L N
FTAR% (%) TARHE (%)

Raw materials (including outsourced R4 ¥} (F N E E R A)
manufacturing costs) 1,242,837 65.8% 1,459,481 61.5%
Labor costs =B 7N 113,985 6.0% 165,567 7.0%
Indirect costs Eike-3=9:3 100,173 5.3% 87,467 3.7%
Total &t 1,456,995 77.2% 1,712,515 721%

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales as a percentage in revenue
increased from 72.1% to 77.2%, while the gross profit margin decreased
from 27.9% to 22.8%. mainly due to the high commodities prices and
shipping cost which boosted the production cost.

REFERN HERAGHWBANE DL
W72 ARIEET7.2% > EFIEN27.9%HEE
228%  FTERHNSE MBS REH KA
WETEEMRA
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

EFMREF R

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less cost of FEF|ISUT A EIHE RSB I EEE o

sales.

During the Reporting Period, gross profit was RMB431,452,000, WREEERN > BIREHN A ARKA31,452
representing a decrease of 34.9% as compared with the gross profit of F 4> MEPFMNIFELE LB E £
sales from the continuing operations of the Corresponding Period, and K|35 /034.9% > $HE £ K427 O%ERE
gross profit margin of sales decreased from 27.9% to 22.8%. The gross 22.8% c Z DB EFN K EFXF|RUTF -

profit and gross profit margin by segments are shown as follows:

The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit margin by FRF|RFATABNIZHMIEBANELRE 5
geographical locations and NVC brand products and non-NVC brand (M ERNMIFETREERNEFNREFXK

products for the periods indicated:

Gross profit from PRC sales:
Non-NVC brands

Subtotal

Gross profit from international
sales:

NVC brands

Non-NVC brands

Subtotal

Total

PEEEEENEF

FELME

Nt

ERHEEENER

BT mhE
SFEL MR

st
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Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2021
20214

RMB’ 000 (%)

FAR® (%)

13,199 11.2% 42,710 17.0%
13,199 11.2% 42,710 17.0%
92,655 31.8% 105,804 33.8%
325,508 22.0% 513,918 28.4%
418,253 23.6% 619,722 29.2%
431,452 22.8% 662,432 27.9%
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Due to complex global economic and social environment, the overall
gross profit margin of the Group decreased as compared with the
Corresponding Period. The Group faced the impact of high commodities
and freight cost since second half of 2021, the production cost of
the Group during the Reporting Period increased as compared with
the Corresponding Period. However, the Group has implemented the
following measures to mitigate the impact. Firstly, the Group gradually
transferred the best-selling product lines to Vietnam factories where more
preferential trade policies are provided, and strengthened procurement
and technology to reduce costs, which mitigated the impact of high
commodities price; secondly, the Group expanded its exposure in Nordic
market, where it generated more gross profit to the Group; and lastly,
it accelerated the development and promotion of new products, and
provided customisation products and services to increase the added
value and gross profit margin of new products, which contributed to the
gradual increase in the proportion of new products with high gross profit
margin, leading to an effective increase in the overall gross profit margin.
With the combined effects, the overall gross profit margin of the Group
during the Reporting Period decreased from 27.9% to 22.8% compared
with the Corresponding Period.

Other Income

Our other income mainly consists of government grants and other
subsidies, bank and other interest income, surcharges from suppliers,
rental income, consultancy service income, trademark licensing fee and
others. We received various types of government grants in the form of
tax subsidies, incentives for research and development activities and
expansion of production capacity of energy-saving lamp. During the
Reporting Period, other income of the Group increased as compared with
the other income from the Corresponding Period, which was mainly due
to increase of bank interest income.

More details about the other income are provided in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 262 to 263 of this annual
report.

Other Gains and Losses
This item represents the Group’s net foreign exchange losses, (loss) gain

from fair value changes of held-for-trade investments, loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and others during the Reporting Period.
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Selling and Distribution Costs

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and other costs including
office expenses, customs clearance expenses, travelling expenses,
depreciation and amortisation, insurance fees and other miscellaneous
costs.

During the Reporting Period, the selling and distribution costs were
RMB270,188,000, representing a decrease of 0.9% as compared with
the selling and distribution costs from the Corresponding Period. The
selling and distribution costs as a percentage in revenue increased from
11.5% to 14.3%, which is mainly resulted from an increase in freight rate
which leads to higher transportation costs on selling in overseas market.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs, amortisation
and depreciation, office expenses and other expenses including tax
expenses, audit fees, other professional fees, and other miscellaneous
expenses. These taxes mainly include land use tax and stamp duty in
connection with our administrative functions.

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses were
RMB225,988,000, representing a decrease of 11.8% as compared
with the administrative expenses from continuing operations of the
Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to the improvement of the
organisational structure of the Group. Our administrative expenses as a
percentage in revenue slightly increased from 10.8% to 12.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent the expenses of interest on bank loans, interest
on lease liabilities and interest on vendor financing.

Share of Results of Associates

This item represents the Group’s share of net profits or net losses in the
associates during the Reporting Period.

Income Tax

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax decreased
significantly to RMB14,342,000 as compared with the income tax from
the Corresponding Period. It is mainly due to the reduction of current

income tax provision for the Group during the Corresponding Period.

Loss for the Year (including Profit Attributable to Non-
controlling Interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our loss for the year (including profit
attributable to non-controlling interests) was RMB37,484,000 during the
Reporting Period.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company for the Year

Due to the factors mentioned above, loss attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB66,119,000 during the Reporting Period.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Non-controlling Interests

During the Reporting Period, profit for the year attributable to non-
controlling interests was RMB28,635,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmED

Cash Flow and Liquidity
Cash flow

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our consolidated
statement of cash flows.

RERE ke
RERE

TREJREMANGERERERPTHE
WIRERBHEIE-

31 December

12A31H

2022 2021

2022% 20214

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

FAR®E FARE

Net cash flows used in operating activities RS ET AR S R E %58 (58,636) (122,657)

Net cash flows used in investing activities GETHFBERESNE FEE (571,314) (70,382)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities FHE EBFTE, FFA) IRE M 2258 201,667 (49,123)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeRBEEBY RV FEE (428,283) (242,162)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#]IRE€ KIS EY) 948,268 1,226,773

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERSH R 2558 72,405 (86,343)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ME SRS RERTDETY

consolidated statement of cash flows WIBS RIESZ%EY 592,390 948,268

At the end of the Reporting Period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group were mainly denominated in US$, RMB, HKS$, GBP, JPY,
SGD and VND. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
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Liquidity

Sufficiency of net current assets and working capital

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and net
current assets as at the end of the Reporting Period.

Management Discussion and Analysis

et

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Subtotal current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income

Lease liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Tax liabilities

Subtotal current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

RBEE

A

ERZNE LY E N
HAEWIR  REZ RFANR
RYIRE

BRARBES AEE
(MRARBEST AR B
TREE

BIEIRIRTER

RERREEEY

MENEE/E

REAaR

B 5 EAIIRR
HME IR TR E A
GRA&R

RN

EFE WY 7

HE&R
BARBESABREZNEHER
nHEER

mENE @

BREBEE

BEEEmED

BROEEREESZTHZEM

TREINBREFERNABEE R
BERFRBEE-

Year ended 31 December
HE12831HLLEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE FARE

447,860 624,038
319,348 500,403
85,983 113,581
4,330 13,879
30,138 40,600
373,071 83,272
592,390 948,268
1,853,120 2,324,041
228,385 609,820
172,655 254,301
39,008 34,205
271,858 40,035
1,009 1,009
10,776 14,890
7,441 -
11,576 15,937
742,708 970,197
1,110,412 1,353,844

BELERERARASE 202263



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEREDH

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the total net j2022F12H31HM2021F12831H >
current assets of the Group amounted to RMB1,110,412,000 and KEBWN I REBELE DB AR
RMB1,353,844,000, respectively, and the current ratio was 2.50 and 1,110,412 F 7t AR #&1,353,844F 75> 7t
2.40, respectively. In light of our current liquidity position and our  EhEEE D B A2.50812.40 EEFA I B BIEY
projected cash inflows generated from operations, the Directors believe HREIMEMR N ETBHAEAKCEMELENIRES R
that the Group has sufficient working capital for our present requirements A ' B SR AAEBEE R ENZEELE S

and for the next 12 months. UEMNBREERKRI2ESNESEK-
Capital Management BAREE

The table below sets out our gearing ratio as at the end of the Reporting TREHINIREFEFERNELAEBLE=R

Period.
Year ended 31 December
HE12831HLLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TFARH TFAR®
Borrowings (RN 271,858 40,035
Total debt B ast 271,858 40,035
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IRERIBREEEY (592,390) (948,268)
Net debt FE N/A N/A
Ri#EH A

Total equity attributable to owners of KABHEE NEILAEELR
the Company 3,165,352 3,195,184
Gearing ratio BEASMELEE N/A N/A
B A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the stability
and growth of our financial position. We regularly review and manage
our capital structure and make corresponding adjustments, after taking
into consideration changes in economic conditions, our future capital
requirements, prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. We manage our capital by monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity attributable
to owners of the Company). Net debt is the balance of interest-bearing
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and short-term
deposits.

Inventories

The balance of inventories represents our balance of stock of raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the end of the
Reporting Period. We monitor our inventories on a regular basis.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 294 of this annual report.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables of the Group mainly represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit periods generally range from 30 to 180
days for major customers. Each major customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivables balance.

More details about the trade and bills receivables are provided in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 290 to 292 of this
annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEREDH

Trade and bills payables

More details about the trade and bills payables are provided in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 297 to 299 of this annual
report.

Borrowings

More details about the borrowings are provided in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 303 to 304 of this annual
report.

Capital Expenditure

We funded our capital expenditure with cash generated from operations
and bank loans. Our capital expenditure is primarily related to expenditure
on property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to
RMB106,667,000, mainly attributable to the increase in cost of leasehold
improvements, machinery equipment, furniture and fixtures, computer
equipment and patents.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangement

We did not have any outstanding derivative financial instruments and off-
balance sheet guarantees for outstanding loans. We did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments in respect of
purchase of property, plant and equipment were RMB5,882,000 (31
December 2021: RMB27,327,000).

Mergers, Acquisitions, Investments and Disposals

In January 2022, the Group paid RMB210,000,000 for subscription of
additional shares issued by Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.
in order to maintain its 30% equity interest in Brilliant Lights International
Holding Pte. Ltd.. Please refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statement for details.

Save as disclosed above, the Group made no material acquisition,
merger or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during
the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Significant Investment and Performance

Except for the information disclosed in other parts of this annual report,
the Group did not make or hold any significant investments (including any
investment in an investee company with a value of 5 percent or more of
the Group’s total assets as of 31 December 2022) during the Reporting
Period.

Pledge of Assets

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the Group’s
assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets are as follows:

BEEEmED

HtWEARERRKRER

MRARERAMIBOARFFFRBERIN &
ERRREEENTEETHAFTETMNE
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EBEGAEENR2022F12831HEEEN
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FEBENERUAKTEBRNE E FIRF 8
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5 FEUERR
BHERIRTER

Trade receivables
Pledged bank deposits

Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course of
business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the adverse
effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises from sales
or procurement by an operating unit in currencies other than its functional
currency. As a result, we are exposed to fluctuations in the exchange
rate between the functional currencies and foreign currencies. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had entered into several forward exchange
contracts in place to hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not
experience any material difficulties or negative impacts on our operations
or liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials which are
influenced by global changes as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect our financial performance. We did not enter into any commodity
derivative instruments to hedge the potential commodity price changes.

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TARE TAR
57,435 163,300
373,071 83,272
430,506 246,572
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmED

Liquidity Risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by managing the
maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and liabilities and
projected cash flows from operations. Our goal is to maintain a balance
between continuity and flexibility of funding through the use of bank
loans and other interest-bearing loans. Our Directors have reviewed our
working capital and capital expenditure requirements and determined that
we have no significant liquidity risk.

Credit Risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial number of
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables from debtors.
We have policies in place to ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit limit, and we have strict
control over credit limits of trade receivables. Our cash and short-term
deposits are mainly deposited with registered banks in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Singapore. We also have policies that limit our credit
risk exposure to any financial institutions. The carrying amounts of trade
and bills receivables, deposit-pledges and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and short-term deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent our maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to credit risk. In 2022, we entered into
a number of one-year insurance contracts with China Export & Credit
Insurance Corporation, which covered 90% uncollectible receivables from
international sales during the period from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023
with a maximum compensation amount of US$30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB208,938,000). We purchased such insurance in order
to minimise our exposure to credit risk as we expand our business. We
plan to renew such insurance contracts when they become due.

Employees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 2,246 employees
in total (31 December 2021: 3,165). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFhERELRE

Ex/e_cgjgive Directors
HITES

Mr. WANG Donglei (E£ %), aged 59, is an executive Director, chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company. He
is also the former chief executive officer of the Company (Mr. Wang has resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company
on 22 February 2019, has been re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020 and
has been re-designated again from a non-executive Director to an executive Director on 17 July 2020). Mr. Wang has been
appointed as the chief technology officer of the Company with effect from 19 July 2021. He is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Company. In addition, Mr. Wang has been appointed as a director of Brilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and Brilliant Lights
International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013. He has many years of experience in product research and development,
manufacturing and business management. In 1996, Mr. Wang participated in the founding of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance
Co., Ltd.* (BkBZEM B R A R/AF) (which was subsequently renamed as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#iE S HEBR
1B BR/A &) (‘ETIC”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and the shares of which were listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange in China in 2004) and served as the chairman and the general manager. He has been serving as a director and the
chairman of ETIC from 2001 and has resigned as the chairman of ETIC on 8 October 2018; and resigned as director of ETIC
on 11 May 2021. Mr. Wang graduated from China Dalian Institute of Technology (subsequently renamed as Dalian University
of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. He is the father of Mr. WANG Keven Dun. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is an
executive Director of the Company.

FLXELRE RESIR EARBNTEES EEZRMNEFEME  TAETERARAFTEERNTE (HE
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Bl—ERBABES b4 THEBE2019F12812HEEIEE KRR B B & A B Brilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd.
KzBrilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.Z 55 o
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Directors and Senior Management

EFENEREEE

Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (FR#&¥3), aged 55, is an executive Director, the vice chairman, chief executive officer and vice
president of mature channels for overseas sales of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group in November 2018 and has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 22 February 2019. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. In addition, Ms. Chan has been appointed as a director of Birilliant Lights (Finco) Pte. Ltd. and
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd., the associates of the Company, with effect from 12 December 2019.

From 1998 to 2004, Ms. Chan served as the general manager and vice president of Zhuhai China Resource Appliance Co.,
Ltd.* G&/EEHELS AR AT (how known as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z#ESHEERRMHERAT) (‘ETICY), a
substantial shareholder of the Company), where she was in charge of the sales and marketing of global business; from 2004 to
2012, she served as the senior vice president of ETIC where she was in charge of the company’s global business strategy and
risk management; from 2012 to 2018, she served as the chief executive officer of Elec-Tech Solid State Lighting (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company mainly engaged in international LED lighting business. Ms. Chan graduated from University of
Saskatchewan where she obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1991, a master’s degree in Engineering in 1993 and a
master’s degree in Business Administration in 1995.

RuIEZ L HE5 RA R RTESZ RIEER - BENTERSIIHERNAEERIEH BL LR
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International Holding Pte. Ltd.Z 55 o

T EH1998FEE20045F N BEBEESNERLAD REeATHEZTHEETRARMNERLAS (MMEZHEE]) »
K@ﬂZIEHQ%)T?Tﬂ&!%%i@&mhfﬂz BERKTIBERHE ; B2004EE2012F  RiE=HEETS KA
WEH O BEZR AT HREREREAKEIE ; B2012EE2018F  RAAT —BMMB AT IEE (B8 AE
M&EBE/AT(E%}TI REERLEDERAER) ETEFANTE MR TEXREHRRABEARZE 119015
ETIREES B PO93EE TREE T2 RM19905FEETHEEB LT 2.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFhERELRE

Mr. XIAO Yu (5 5), aged 63, is an executive Director of the Company and vice president of manufacturing of the Company.
Mr. Xiao joined the Group in May 2014 as a non-executive Director and re-designated as an executive Director in August 2014.
He is also a director/chairman of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xiao has extensive experience in enterprise production management. He once served as a senior officer in companies listed
in Mainland China for several years and therefore has in-depth knowledge and understanding on corporate governance and
enterprise management. From July 1986 to June 1996, Mr. Xiao worked in Beijing Beinei Group* (1t 16 & E) as the deputy
chief coordinator and the party secretary of the Communist Party of China of the Central Coordination Office, during which
he was awarded the titles of Beijing Model Worker and Beijing Excellent Young Intellectual. He was the chairman and general
manager of Westar (Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (Ei#3EZ&E 23 (P L) HiEHBRAF), a subsidiary
of ETIC Group from July 1996 to August 2004, was the deputy general manager of the ETIC Group and the chairman of Westar
(Zhongshan) Electrical Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (Ei#rZ E 25 (L) &iE B R A ) from September 2004 to February
2008, and was senior vice president of ETIC from March 2012 to December 2014. From May 2008 to December 2019, he
had successively served as the consultant to the president of ETIC Group, the chairman and general manager of Elec-Tech
Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEESRHER L HRAF) and the general manager of Elec-Tech Photoelectric
Technology (Wuhu) Co., Ltd.* (EEHERBEABERILARAE). Mr. Xiao previously worked in different subsidiaries of ETIC
Group as: a director of Appliance of America (Zhuhai) Limited* (365823 (%8) BFR/AT)), an executive director of Elec-
Tech Photoelectric Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.* (KEEZER AR /AB) and an executive director of Huizhou Thorled-
opto Co., Ltd.* (BINFEAESFHEAERAT). M. Xiao graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology (later renamed as
Dalian University of Technology) with a bachelor’s degree in 1985 and also graduated with an EMBA’'s degree from School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University in 2008. He holds the engineer’s qualification certificate.

HFERE RESR BEARANTEETRESEERGHNEBH - HAENR2014F58MATER » I
HITES HEN2014F8ABERATES MEAKAERADETHBARNES EF K-

HEARGEEERPANGESEEETFLER ENBEEITRAAE LT ATDSAEEAE  HRABRE X
EEEEEFANRAMIBR AL EBI1086FE7 8 E£1996F6 B B EIERIENEBE AT TI1E I
B RERREAEEESEL  HEEWTIALRTEHEL - IERTEFTSENRMD F o IR B R199657
ﬁi200458)§HﬁFﬁ?ﬁEfﬂ%%ﬂ%%lTﬁ@jmﬁﬁ%% (Pl HEERATDMNESTREFRELIE 112004
FORE2008F A E s HEEEEHA K ERHHTESS (b)) WEFRATINESTEER
20123 E2014F 128 i E A B HES R B H -t H2008F58 E20190F 12 B EXEZHEEEH
HERER REEENXERNEERAINEFERELCERENEZ BENXLERNEERA ﬁﬂéﬁ@ B 4
EBEFGDANRUTEZHEZEBNBATPETREE  bX2EBHE 3B ARATES j:L BRI
BRADHITESE EMNEEBNERHERABDNTEST HALEMI8ERENABETE: (1&%%%7:5_
BTARZ) IS LE2UANR2008FEEXN EEABRKECEERSRM I HEEEX BB I 2 thAAR
HETREMEREE -

ELERERARAR 202264

33



34

Directors and Senior Management

EFENEREEE

Ms. CAO Qin (B %), aged 39, has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company from July 2021. From June 2006
to March 2009, she served as the director of the foreign trading department of Wenzhou Feihong Packing Company Limited*
CRMAILEEEFRAT); from April 2009 to August 2014, Ms. Cao served as the assistant to the general manager of
Manulife-Sinochem Life Insurance Co., Ltd.* (R AFZREBRAE]); and since March 2016, Ms. Cao has been serving as
the human resources director and the secretary to the chairman of Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Company Limited* (58
INE BRI AERAE), formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 30% equity interest of which is indirectly
owned by the Company as of the date of this annual report. Ms. Cao also held directorships in certain subsidiaries of Brilliant
Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. As at the date of this annual report, the Company holds 30% equity interest in Brilliant
Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. On 10 August 2019, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to dispose of
a majority interest in the then China business of the Company to Brilliant Lights Investment Pte. Ltd., which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd.. Ms. Cao graduated from the Foreign Language School of Zhejiang
University GIfi’ T A2) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in English.

EEL L5395 N2021F7TEEZEABERRABNHNITESE - B20065F68 £2009F38 » HBAMRIIBEE
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Mr. WANG Keven Dun (E£18), aged 30, is an executive Director of the Company (Mr. Wang has been re-designated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 1 September 2022) and was appointed a vice president of the Company and
a member of the Strategy and Planning Committee from 1 September 2022. Mr. Wang joined the Group in December 2016.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang has been the analyst in Compass Lexecon LLC. from
August 2014 to December 2016. Mr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Molecular and Cell Biology from
University of California, Berkeley in 2014 and a master’s degree in Business Administration from Harvard Business School in
2022. Mr. WANG Keven Dun is the son of Mr. WANG Donglei. Mr. WANG Donglei is an executive Director and the chairman of
the Company.
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Non-executive Director

FERITES

Mr. YE Yong (), aged 55, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ye joined the Company in November 2018.
From 1991 to 1994, Mr. Ye served as the department manager of Chongging Qinwang Company Limited* (EEZ=EHERA
7)), where he was involved in the foreign trade and management matters; in 1994, he founded and had served as the chairman
and general manager of Xiehe Lighting Company Limited* ({3 F188BEABRAED) till 1999. He founded Sichuan NVC Lighting
Equipment Operations Co., Ltd.* (8)1|5 -RARMEE R RAE) (“Sichuan NVC”) in 1999 and has served as the chairman
since then, in charge of sales and management of the Company’s business in Sichuan Province. Mr. Ye graduated from
economical management department of Southwest University in 1991 with a college diploma.

Mr. Ye and his spouse hold an aggregate of 281,472,000 shares of the Company, representing 6.66% of the issued shares of
the Company as of 31 December 2022.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

BIERITES

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway (Z#7), aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lee joined
the Company in November 2012. He received a bachelor of arts degree from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in business from Curtin University of Technology in
Australia. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY”) for over 29 years, until 2009, during which he held key leadership
positions in the development of EY in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants, Australia and New Zealand, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of the following companies: Chaowei Power Holdings Limited,
West China Cement Limited, China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd., GOME Retail Holdings Limited, Yashili International Holdings
Ltd., GCL New Energy Holdings Limited, WH Group Limited (the shares of all these companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange), Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and Intchains Group Limitied (the shares of which are listed on Nasdaq Stock Exchange).
He previously acted as an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities Company Limited (the shares of which are
listed on main board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from November 2011 to May 2016, Tibet Water
Resources Ltd (the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from March 2011 to February 2020,
China Rundong Auto Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on main board of the Stock Exchange) from July 2014 to
December 2020 and WH Group Limited (the shares of which are listed an main board of the Stock Exchange) from July 2014
to June 2022, respectively. Mr. Lee was a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province
(FRE#IRE & BB Z 8) in China from 2008 to 2017.
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Mr. WANG Xuexian (E£25), aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin University of China with a Master’s degree in Civil Laws in January
1990. He is a lawyer in China, and his qualification for serving as an independent director has been approved by the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. From January 1990 to the present, he has worked as an assistant professor and lecturer in Dalian University
of Technology. He currently serves as a deputy professor of Dalian University of Technology, a lawyer of Heng Xin Law Office*
(E=IB(EEEMEFFN) in Liaoning. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in law studies, teaching and the work of lawyers, once
served as an independent director of several listed or unlisted companies in the Mainland China, and has in-depth knowledge
and understanding on domestic and overseas laws, corporate management and corporate governance. Mr. Wang acted as an
independent director of ETIC from April 2014 to October 2018.

FEELEE IRFESIR EERARBBIULIERITES c THEMR2014F58MARRT c EHRENR1990F1H E
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Mr. CHEN Hong (BR54), aged 57, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Company
in December 2021. He served as an engineer of Guangzhou Wenchong Shipyard Co., Ltd. * (BM ST AR SE A T)
from September 1986 to January 1991. From July 2002 to July 2020, Mr. Chen served as a lawyer of Guangdong Yinghui Law
Firm* (B ¥EREMEF5FR) . Since August 2020, he has been serving as a lawyer of Guangdong Jiegao Law Firm* (&R #E
S 2EIZEF5FT) . Mr. Chen graduated from Dalian Institute of Technology* (K38 T E2B%) (currently known as Dalian University
of Technology* (K#E T A2)) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in ship engineering in July 1986. He also obtained the legal
professional qualification certificate from the Ministry of Justice of the People’s Republic of China in September 2002.

FRShSc A > 575 B AR AT BIUFFNITEE PRI LN 2021 F12AMAKR AT c B1986F9R E1991F18 > &
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Senior Management
=R EEE

Mr. WANG Donglei (E£E), aged 59, is an executive Director, the chairman and the chief technology officer of the Company.
His biographical details are set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

FLERE RFOR BREABAPTESFT EERAEREME - MHNEABNEELXRITESZ —KT
LEA

Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (BR#33), aged 55, is the chief executive officer, vice chairman and the vice-president in charge
of the mature channel of the overseas sales of the Company. Her biographical details are set out above under the paragraph
headed “Executive Directors”.

BREIBUL LT HESm RAARNEREATE BESEREEEIINEHEMARENB B - MHEANE T
BEEXMATESTI —RTMHA-

Mr. XIAO Yu (B ), aged 63, is the vice-president in charge of the manufacturing of the Company. His biographical details are
set out above under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

HFERE RFSM B BB EEENEHNRIBH - tNEABNEETLXHITES I — KRB
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Ms. CAO Qin (%), aged 39, is the in charge of human resources of the Company. Her biographical details are set out above
under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors”.

BEELT > BEso BEAATAEASEH - tNEABN EE L RITES — B Ruig-

Mr. NG Hon Lun ({RFZ{%), aged 42, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2020 as chief
financial advisor of the Company and was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company with effect from 5 January
2021. Mr. Ng has more than 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng processed
professional accounting and auditing experience with RSM Hong Kong as deputy audit manager. After that, he acted as
financial controller in TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited, a company which shares were previously listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and were delisted in the year 2016 (stock code: 2618), vice president and chief financial
officer in Unisplendour Technology (Holdings) Limited (now known as Sino ICT Holdings Limited), a company which shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 365); and deputy general manager and financial controller in Shenzhen
Infinova Limited, a company which shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 2528), respectively. Mr. Ng
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accounting obtained in 2002.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Ms. XIE Dongmei (i#§%18), Aged 49, is the general manager of Elec-Tech (Solid State Lighting (HK) Ltd. (‘HKSSL”), a
subsidiary of the Company, mainly in charge of the overall operation of all HKSSL business units and the manufacturing center
of Group. Ms. Xie joined the Group in November of 2018. She has many years of experience in oversea market development,
international business negotiation and operations management. She severed Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (Z# {25
ZEEBRRBRMDAERASE) (“ETIC”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, as sales manager and sales director etc. between
2003 and 2011. From 2012 to 2018, she served HKSSL as assistant general manager and executive deputy general manager.
In addition, Ms. Xie has been appointed as a director of NVC Lighting Japan K.K., a subsidiary of the Company effective from
December 2019. Ms. Xie graduated from Economics Department of Sun Yat-Sen University where she obtained Bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1995. She is also a certified Intermediate Economist and International Business Engineer.

HMEBEZ T BF495% BREA LB 2B ABIRE (B8 AERTARAR (HRIRE)) RESEI ALK
FTEEEREEEH A ERNEFP LN A EEEE L TR2018F11AMALRER - MAFLFEET
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ZRAEKIE BRI WH2019F 128 EIEE AR E 2K BABNVC Lighting Japanik N EHEER H L
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Ms. FAN Qianwen GEfEZ), aged 49, is the sales vice deputy general manager of HKSSL, a subsidiary of the Company, in
charge of sales management and business development. Ms. Fan joined the Group in July, 2012, has years of experience in
oversea market development and new business management. She served ETIC, a substantial shareholder of the Company, as
sales manager and sales vice-director etc. between 1998 and 2012. Ms. Fan graduated from Master’'s degree in International
Marketing of Macquarie University in 2014.

BEBERLL  HF49m B RAANBAREBLENHERBKE A 5RESEMNHEEERESR
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FHEBRHE FRBZETERR)  BEEHEKE HERMESHE SEXITN204ERERNEZTHRRE
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Mr. Gary Van WINKLE, aged 65, is the sales vice-president of ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, in
charge of sales management and business development. Mr. Winkle jointed the Group in June 2011, has years of experience
in oversea market development and new business management. He joined Hunter Fan Company from 1986 to 2000 as
salesperson and manufacturer representative. He joined Carlon from 2000 to 2011 as National Sale Manager. He graduated
from Bachelor of Economic of St. Cloud State University.

il

Gary Van WINKLE% 4 > 655% ' 24 /A S MIBATIETI Solid State. Lighting Inc. Vi ERIAEE  aSHES
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FEEHEECE - REXNREREENIKRE BREERBE T B -

Mr. Akira MORITSUNE (FR1EE), aged 61, is the executive Director of NVC Lighting Japan Co., Ltd. (“NVCJP"), in charge
of the overall operation of all NVCJP business unit since his appointment by the Group on 5 July 2021. After Mr. Moritsune
graduated from Yokohama National University with a degree in economics, he joined for Toshiba group company which is one of
Japan'’s leading international companies. He has led the group for many years as head of sales for the lighting businesses which
include housing, public facilities building, lamps and equipment at Toshiba Lighting & Technology Corporation.

HIEZ %A 615 ° NVC Lighting Japan Co., Ltd. (TNVCJPJ) MFITE S > B2021 E7ASH WA E BT
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Mr. Joe CLARK, aged 683, is the chief executive officer of NVC Lighting Limited (‘“NVC UK”), a subsidiary of the Company, and
a director of UK and Nordic subsidiaries. Joe obtained a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering. Mr. Joe joined the Group
in late 2016, has held senior positions in a number of overseas market-leading electrical product manufacturers and distributors.
Mr. Joe leads NVC UK'’s development programs across multiple areas of the business.

Joe CLARKZ: 4 > IREB35% » 2 4~A B Mt B A BINVC Lighting Limited (THEEE L)) WEEHNTEULRER K
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REMANEEREHEHEETER JoeBEHTERE T A2 EERBIYNE RS-

Mr. Andy PAGETT, aged 57 is an executive Director of NVC UK. Andy joined the Group in October 2017. He is the Chief
Operating Officer of UK and Nordic subsidiaries. Andy has extensive experience in operational management. From 2007 to
2017, he worked for a privately owned UK company, Unipart Group of Companies, running both forward and reverse Logistics
and Repair operations for various blue-chip companies, from Vodafone, Sky and Three mobile. Andy has an extensive
knowledge and experience in implementation of lean manufacturing, having worked with Industry Forum, a lean consultancy,
during his time with Unipart. Prior to 2007, Andy has worked in several manufacturing sectors, Defence, Automotive and
Aerospace. Andy graduated from Coventry University with a MSc in Engineering Business Management.

Andy PAGETTH 4% IRFES7m BRBEE THHITES - AndyiR2017F108 M A K EE o fth 2 B & IEBR
MBABHNEREEEE AdyEBEEEFEER S ENLER  cH2007FF2017F  MMAEREE —KRLE QAT
Unipart Group of Companies T{E> AVodafone  Sky&Three mobileE 2 REE N T E S 1E M K F B ¥R &
HBER AndyERHRNEEM ST EAHEE S ENAM KK > FUnipartT BB S B R 559 A Sindustry
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Company Secretary
AEWE

Ms. Sarah Siu Ying KWOK (5[JK%), aged 39, was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 26 August 2022.
Ms. Kwok is currently a manager of corporate services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited. She has over seven years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Kwok obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Studies from University College Dublin, National University of Ireland in
June 2012 and a master’s degree in Corporate Governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan University in November 2017. She
has been an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and an associate member of The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom since 2018. She is also an affiliate member of The Society of Trust and Estate
Practitioners.

Ms. Kwok is currently the joint company secretary of Shanghai Bio-heart Biological Technology Co., Ltd., a Main Board listed
company in Hong Kong (stock code: 2185), Shanghai HeartCare Medical Technology Corporation Limited, a Main Board listed
company in Hong Kong (stock code: 6609) and Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc., a Main Board listed company in
Hong Kong (stock code: 2373).

FILE > 3958 R2022F8H26 HEZE AR AT AR ME o FZ 3R EVistra Corporate Services (HK)
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Report of Directors
E5gEHRE

The Board presents this report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Financial
Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was redomiciled from the British Virgin Islands to the
Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 and incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Group’s operations are conducted
mainly through the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group is principally engaged in the design, development, production,
marketing and sale of a variety of lighting products, and gradually extend
to non-lighting business areas. During the Reporting Period, there is
no significant change in the Group’s principal activities. The financial
performance of the principal activities of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss of the
consolidated financial statements on pages 177 to 178.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group’s interests in associates are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends
The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated financial

statements on pages 179 to 344 of this annual report.

The Board has proposed not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) of the Company
is scheduled to be held on 16 June 2023. A notice convening the Annual

General Meeting will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in
due course.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
18 June 2023 to Friday, 16 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company‘s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen‘s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 12 June 2023.

Business Review

The discussion for the business review of the Reporting Period of the
Group as well as the major risks and uncertainty factors facing the Group
are set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12
to 30 of this annual report. The future business development of the Group
is set forth in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 11 of this annual
report. The critical indices adopted in the financial statements for the
analysis of the performance of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set forth in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 30
of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations affecting the
operation of the Group significantly.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group acknowledges that our employees, clients and business
cooperative partners are the key to our sustainable development. The
Group is committed to the establishment of close relationship with our
employees and the provision of industrialised, chain-based and one-stop
solutions to our clients, and continues to strengthen the cooperation with
our business cooperative partners so as to attain the win-win outcome for
various parties and push ahead with the healthy and rapid development
of the lighting industry.
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Environmental Protection and Social
Responsibility

The Group is committed to the support for the sustainable environmental
protection. As the well-known supplier for lighting products in the
industry, the Group shall comply with various environmental protection
laws and regulations formulated by the relevant international and local
government departments. The Group is the advocate pioneer for green
lighting and committed to the promotion of “Lighting Environment”: to
beautify the commercial and living space with artificial lighting, protect
the healthy living environment for mankind with energy-saving lighting for
environmental protection, and support the energy-saving environmental
protection business for the whole world with action taken. The Group will
go further to continue to carry out the enterprise social responsibilities as
a means of feedback to our society.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, the Group neither entered into nor had any equity-linked
agreement during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director
is entitled to the compensation out of the assets and profits of the
Company for all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages, expenses or
liabilities incurred due to the execution of his/her duties or taken place
related to such execution. The Company has taken out the appropriate
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy for the Directors and
officers of the Group as a means of security.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

RIEFERTEERE

FEERNEZFIRIFAFEE - FRITE
RAMZHNRAERHBED AEEABT
B B8 B R e &t BT BB P E B9 & IR IR R
FRNER - FAEBERGERANEE S
HNNOEETNIRE  UATRBAZREHER
ANBZER DURRE S ERARE NERE
BREFRE UTBXFHEANBHRERR
FX-FEERBEBR #BSNBEEDR
EHgEE CEdE-

A% 2 £ 80 170 5%

PR FE 38 I RGBT 8 —HIFTIK
BEN ARSFERN AEBILEST LN
FREMREH -

EEFFRRERX

BEARDZEBER SBUEEFEM
HAEHA > NERTEHBE M A 8RN
HLLIAB—ISRA - ER - KE 8
S BE RAXHAERRETRBDEERTE
TESEE-ZXRAERETEREERS
RHMEBEEENESFKeSRBESER
RAF A IRIE o



Financial Highlights

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five reporting periods is set out on pages 5 to 6 of this
annual report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 303 to 304 of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not grant any loans
to any entities, nor did it offer any financial assistance to its associates or
make any guarantee for the facilities granted to its associates.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment for the
Reporting Period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 274 to 275 of this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital for the Reporting Period are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on page 306 of
this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group for
the Reporting Period are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 343 to 344 and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 181 to 182 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB2,481,180,000.

Public Float

As of the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules for the Reporting Period and at any time prior to the date of this
annual report.
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Important Events after the Reporting Period

No important events affecting the Company occurred since 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company was incorporated.

Tax Allowances

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances granted to the
Company’s Shareholders due to their interests in its securities.

Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

appointed as a non-executive Director on
11 January 2013, re-designated as an
executive Director on 2 February 2015,
resigned as the chief executive officer
on 22 February 2019, re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated again as an executive Director
on 17 July 2020 and appointed as the chief
technology officer on 19 July 2021
appointed as an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Company on
25 November 2018 and appointed as the
chief executive officer on 22 February 2019

WANG Donglei

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva

XIAO Yu appointed as a non-executive Director on
29 May 2014 and re-designated as an
executive Director on 8 August 2014
CAO Qin appointed on 19 July 2021

WANG Keven Dun appointed as an executive Director on
12 December 2016 and re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 20 May 2020,
re-designated as an executive Director on

1 September 2022
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Non-executive Director
YE Yong appointed on 25 November 2018
Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Kong Wai, Conway appointed on 28 November 2012
WANG Xuexian appointed on 29 May 2014
CHEN Hong appointed on 1 December 2021

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 31 to 45 of this
annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with us that is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The relevant information on Directors’ service contracts is set out in
the section headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 69 to 91 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Save for certain continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, no
Director nor an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any
time during the Reporting Period.

Confirmation of Independence from the
Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG
Xuexian and Mr. CHEN Hong, the annual confirmation letter of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that the independent non-executive Directors were
independent from their respective date of appointment to 31 December
2022 and remain independent as of the date of this annual report.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Restricted Share Unit Scheme” section in this
annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period or at the end of the
Reporting Period was the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company
or the subsidiaries of its holding company, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or recorded in the register required to be maintained pursuant to
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the Model Code were as follows:
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YE Yong Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 274,039,000 (L) 6.48%
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Spouse’s interest Ordinary Shares 7,433,000 (L) 0.18%
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calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e. 4,227,280,649 Shares.

2. As these Shares are held by Ms. GAO Xia, the spouse of Mr. YE
Yong, Mr. YE Yong is deemed to be interested in these Shares.

3 (L) represents long position.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company have or are deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to
be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were notifiable to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the provisions of the Model Code.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had 5% or more interests
or short positions in the issued Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage
Number of Shares or of the total
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests Class of Shares underlying Shares issued Shares
(Note 1)
HERTRI A
RREE HEE LeabE Nl R BRI R & B MBI E 2L
(Hrzt1)
Elec-Tech International (H.K.)  Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 740,346,000 (L) 17.51%
Company Limited EREAA EER
ERHEER (B8 ERAH
ETIC Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 740,346,000 (L) 17.51%
EREE the substantial shareholder EER (Note 2)
EREMEGINEENER (Hrztz)
SU Lixin Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 649,350,649 (L) 15.36%
BRILH BaEBA EEk
Rising Wealth Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 638,400,000 (L) 15.10%
MAEBRRE BRBEA EEk (Note 3)
(H1323)
ZHAO Yu Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 638,400,000 (L) 15.10%
g the substantial Shareholder EER (Note 4)
TEREERNZENE DR (Hizt4)
Harbour Faith Enterprises Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 341,071,000 (L) 8.07%
Limited EaEEA EER
CHAN Sin Wa Carrie Interest of corporation controlled by Ordinary Shares 341,071,000 (L) 8.07%
BRIEEE the substantial Shareholder EER (Note 5)
TERRMEGNEENER (Hyzts)
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Notes:

6.

The approximate percentage of the total issued Shares is
calculated with reference to the Company’s number of Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e. 4,227,280,649 Shares.

These Shares were held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to be interested
in all these Shares.

On 8 July 2021, Rising Wealth Limited reported its holding of
638,400,000 Shares since 3 August 2018 (the date of relevant
event).

On 2 August 2021, Ms. ZHAO Yu reported her holding of
638,400,000 Shares since 3 August 2018 (the date of relevant
event). These Shares were held by Rising Wealth Limited. As Rising
Wealth Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. ZHAO Yu, Ms. ZHAO Yu is
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

These Shares were held by Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited. As
Harbour Faith Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. CHAN
Sin Wa Carrie, Ms. CHAN Sin Wa Carrie is deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

(L) represents long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as the
Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and chief
executive) or corporation had 5% or more interests or short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares which were recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

6.

Report of Directors
EEEHRE

HEETROBHENBAT OB A
NEF2022F 12831 B2 B2 TRHEE
(BN4,227,280,64988 B2 1A) 5tH& o

ZERMBEZHERR (58 BRAR
RE-BREHEER (B8 ARADER
KREENEBENBAR  FAILEREER
VRN ZERMDPER D -

R2021E7H8H MABRABRKRER
20185 8H3H (ERAEH &L R) BiFA
638,400,0008% J& 15 °

1820218 H2H > #HIE L THIRH 52018
F8AH (AFMEMH#EEZR) BERE
638,400,0008% iz 15 ~ Z F R M A FAHIR
AEFA -BRFABRRABDABEL L
EEER WHERETHBEANZERS
FRYER o

%% B 7 HHarbour Faith Enterprises
Limited$¥ B c ¥ Harbour Faith
Enterprises LimitedHBREELZ T2 EH
BoRBELTWREARZERDTES

e o

(N3 3y =i

B EXFriREEE SN SLEHFAD > 7020224
12831 BEERNAL (KRBEEHE
SITHABRIN SUEEER AT LN IRE
(BHFRHAG KA ) F3361F R ERAT A
1# 17 B9 B 50 it M B9 AR 17 e A8 BRI AR 195 % 80 X
ERRmEK A

BELERERARASE 202263

55



56

Report of Directors
E5gEHRE

Restricted Share Unit Scheme
Purposes

The restricted share unit scheme of the Company (the “RSU Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the Shareholders on January 25, 2019
(the “Adoption Date”).The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to further
improve corporate governance, enhance the sense of responsibility and
sense of mission of the Company’s management team and to promote
healthy development and sustainability of the Company so as to ensure
that the Company’s growth objective will be achieved by providing
certain individuals with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the
Company.

Participants in the RSU Scheme

The Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and the employees of the Group or any other person as
determined by the Board who the Board considers, in its absolute
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Maximum Number of Shares under the RSU Scheme

The total number of Shares in respect of which RSUs may be granted
pursuant to the RSU Scheme and any other share-based incentive
schemes of the Company is 5 percent of the Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). At any time during the
Term (as defined below), the maximum aggregate number of Shares that
may underlie the RSUs granted pursuant to the RSU Scheme shall be
the Scheme Mandate Limit minus (a) the maximum aggregate number
of Shares underlying the RSUs already granted pursuant to the RSU
Scheme; and (b) the maximum aggregate number of Shares that may
be issued and/or transferred upon the vesting or exercise of any awards
already granted pursuant to any other equity-based incentive plans of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, no Shares are held by the trustee of
the RSU Scheme (the “Trustee”) for future grant of RSUs.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The number of Shares entitled by a participant is subject to such terms,

conditions and undertakings as the Board considers, in its sole and
absolute discretion, appropriate.
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Vesting

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, determine the vesting terms
and conditions and the vesting schedule.

Upon the vesting of RSUs on the vesting date, the Company shall, in
its absolute discretion, satisfy such RSUs either by: (a) directing and
procuring the Trustee to transfer to the grantee the relevant number of
Shares credited as fully paid; or (b) paying or procuring the payment of a
cash payment to the grantee, and (c) to the extent that the grantee has
any Shares purchased by the Trustee (the “Purchased Shares”) which
were held by the Trustee, directing and procuring the Trustee to transfer
such Purchased Shares to the grantee and remit to the grantee any
distributions received by the Trustee in respect of Purchased Shares held
on trust by it (if any).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company, the Trustee or any
grantee would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the
Listing Rules or by any other applicable laws, regulations or rules within
the period specified above, the date on which the relevant Shares shall
be transferred to the grantee shall occur as soon as possible after the
date when such dealing is permitted by the Listing Rules or by any other
applicable laws, regulations or rules.

Duration
Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the RSU Scheme Rules, the

RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period commencing from the
Adoption Date and expiring on the fifth anniversary thereof (the “Term”).

Details of RSUs Granted under the RSU Scheme

The Company has not granted any RSUs to the Participants pursuant to
the RSU Scheme since the Adoption Date.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.
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Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the Reporting period, so far as the Directors were aware, none of
the Directors nor their respective close associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any direct or indirect interests in any businesses that
constitutes or may constitute a competing business of the Company.

Controlling Shareholders and Their Pledge of
Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any controlling
shareholders.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework Finished Products and Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement

The Company entered into a framework finished products and raw
materials purchase agreement on 10 December 2018 with ETIC (the
“ETIC Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company agreed
to purchase finished products and raw materials including but not limited
to LED chips, LED power sources and LED lamp products from ETIC
and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial
shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its subsidiaries are connected
persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and
the transactions between ETIC and its subsidiaries and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
The quality, quantity and technical standards of the products delivered by
ETIC and its subsidiaries must meet the Company’s standards as set out
in the sub-contract for each purchase order. The prices charged by ETIC
and its subsidiaries will be agreed following arm’s length negotiations
between the parties with reference to the prevailing market price. The
term of the framework agreement is three years commencing on 1
January 2019. The Company entered into such purchase agreement
given the Group has a continuous demand for the relevant finished
products and raw materials in the next three years and the fees
charged by ETIC and its subsidiaries are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details). In view
of the better-than-expected demand for ETIC’s products, the Company
expected that the original annual cap for the transactions under the ETIC
Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 will not be
sufficient to meet the Company’s requirements. Accordingly, the Board
approved to revise upward the annual cap for the transactions under the
ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21 August 2019 for details).
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As the ETIC Purchase Agreement entered between the Company and
ETIC expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to
continue carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and
usual course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework finished products and raw materials purchase agreement with
ETIC (the“New ETIC Purchase Agreement”) on 26 November 2021, which
the Company agreed to purchase finished products and raw materials
including but not limited to LED chips, LED power sources and LED lamp
products from ETIC and its subsidiaries on a non-exclusive basis. The
New ETIC Purchase Agreement has a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New ETIC Purchase Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 is RMB129,000,000. During the Reporting Period,
the actual amount paid by us to ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New
ETIC Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB38,398,000 which did
not exceed the annual cap.

ETIC Sales Agreement

The Company entered into a framework sales agreement (the “ETIC Sales
Agreement”) on 10 December 2018 with ETIC, pursuant to which, the
Company agreed to sell finished products and raw materials including
but not limited to LED luminaire products to ETIC and its associates
on a non-exclusive basis. As ETIC is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, ETIC and its associates are connected persons of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules), and the transactions
between ETIC and its associates and the Company constitute connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. The quality, quantity
and technical standards of the products delivered by the Group must
meet ETIC and its associates’ standards as set out in the sub-contract
for each sales order. The prices charged by the Group will be agreed
following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to
the prevailing market price. The term of the framework agreement is three
years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into such
sales agreement given the continued demand for such finished products
and raw materials by ETIC and its associates in the next three years and
the fees paid/payable by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for
details).
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As the ETIC Sale Agreement entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
framework sales agreement (the “New ETIC Sales Agreement”) with
ETIC on 26 November 2021, which the Company agreed to sell finished
products and raw materials including but not limited to LED luminaire
products to ETIC and its associates on a non-exclusive basis. The New
ETIC Sale Agreement has a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26
November 2021 for details).

The maximum aggregate annual amount receivable by us from ETIC and
its subsidiaries under the New ETIC Sales Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 is RMB28,000,000. During the Reporting Period, the
actual amount received by us from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the
New ETIC Sales Agreement was RMB2,091,000 which did not exceed
the annual cap.

The Lease Agreement |

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
from ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement 1”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by ETIC and its associates will be
agreed following arm’s length negotiations between the parties with
reference to the prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement
| is three years commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company decided
to enter into the Lease Agreement | given the Group has a continuous
demand for the relevant properties in the next three years and the rent
charged by ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).

As the Lease Agreement | entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed lease
agreement ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain
properties from ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease Agreement I”).
The New Lease Agreement | has a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26
November 2021 for details).
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The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement | for the year ended 31
December 2022 is RMB5,000,000. During the Reporting Period, the
actual amount paid by us to ETIC and its subsidiaries under the New
Lease Agreement | was RMB60,000 which did not exceed the annual
cap.

The Lease Agreement Il

The Company entered into a lease agreement on 10 December 2018 with
ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease certain properties
to ETIC and its associates (the “Lease Agreement II”). As ETIC is a
substantial shareholder of the Company, ETIC and its associates are
connected persons of the Company (as defined under the Listing Rules),
and the transactions between ETIC and its associates and the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.
Details of each properties to be leased will be set out in the sub-contract
for each lease. The rent charged by the Group will be agreed following
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference to the
prevailing market price. The term of the Lease Agreement Il is three years
commencing on 1 January 2019. The Company entered into the Lease
Agreement Il given ETIC and its associates have a continuous demand
for such properties in the next three years and the rent paid/payable by
ETIC and its associates are competitive (please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 10 December 2018 for details).

As the Lease Agreement Il entered between the Company and ETIC
expired on 31 December 2021 and the Company intends to continue
carrying out certain transactions thereunder in the ordinary and usual
course of business with ETIC, the Company entered into a renewed
lease agreement with ETIC, pursuant to which the Group agrees to lease
certain properties to ETIC and its associates (the “New Lease Agreement
I1”). The New Lease Agreement Il has a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 (please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 for details).
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The maximum aggregate annual amount payable by us to ETIC and its
subsidiaries under the New Lease Agreement Il for the year ended 31
December 2022 is RMB5,000,000. During the Reporting Period, the
actual amount received by us from ETIC and its subsidiaries under the
New Lease Agreement I was RMB781,000 which did not exceed the
annual cap.

Confirmation on Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors, who confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iif) according to relevant agreements governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s the
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued a letter containing a conclusion that the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above have no non-compliance
with Rule 14A.56 of Listing Rule. The auditor’s letter has confirmed that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group as stated in this annual report;
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(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the continuing connected
transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded their respective annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 set out in the previous announcements
of the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been submitted by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into
certain transactions with “related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards, which include transactions that constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Group for which the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied
with. Details of the material related party transactions are disclosed in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Changes of Directors and Changes in Their
Information

From 1 January 2022 and up to the date of this report, the changes of
Directors and Board committees, and changes in the Directors’ personal
information are as follows:

Mr. WANG Keven Dun

. Mr. WANG Keven Dun obtained a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from Harvard Business School in 2022.

o Mr. WANG Keven Dun was re-designated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director and was appointed as a vice
president of the Company and a member of the Strategy and
Planning Committee with effect from 1 September 2022.

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway

o Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway retired as an independent non-
executive Director of WH Group Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from 1 June
2022, and he was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of Intchains Group Limited (a company listed on Nasdaq
Stock Exchange with stock code: ICG) on 15 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information that should be
disclosed under rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosures Pursuant to Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rules 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.

Employees

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 2,246 employees
in total (31 December 2021: 3,165). The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In addition
to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits including social
insurance contributions, employee provident fund schemes, discretionary
incentive and share option schemes.

Employee Training

The Group regards training management as a part of its daily operations,
and continuously improves its internal staff training system to better
help staff to improve their professional skills. According to the work
and training needs of each department, we formulate scientific and
reasonable employee training and development plans. In terms of training
forms, we combine classroom lectures with practical operations to
encourage employees to apply what they have learned. After the training,
the Group also conducts an effectiveness assessment to understand
the learning outcomes of employees. If the assessment result is not
satisfactory, we will improve the training method or reorganize the training
according to the situation.

Remuneration Policy

The Group’s remuneration policy is to compensate our employees based
on their performance, qualifications and our results of operations.

The emoluments of our Directors and senior management are determined
by our Remuneration Committee with reference to our results of
operations, their individual performance and the comparable market
statistics.

The Company was not aware of any arrangement under which a
Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors and the Group’s five highest-paid
individuals are set out in note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 268 to 272 of this annual report,
respectively.
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Housing Fund and Pension Scheme

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are required to participate in the
housing fund and the contribution pension scheme operated by local
governments. Under these schemes, the Group is required to pay to
the contribution pension scheme based on a certain percentage of the
remuneration of its employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the housing fund and pension scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions made under the housing
fund and pension scheme are charged in the statements of profit or loss
as incurred.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the Scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the relevant local government authorities in the United
States, Japan and Vietnam etc.. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to retirement
benefits from the scheme. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement scheme up to the time of the retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resign before retirement, at a
percentage that is specified by the local government authorities.

The Company may not utilise any forfeited contributions in order to make
fewer contributions than the current amounts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s contributions to the
housing fund and pension scheme from continuing operations were
RMB24,448,000. Details of the Group’s contributions to the housing
fund and pension scheme are set out in note 13 on page 267 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Charitable Contributions

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations of approximately
RMB600,000 from the continuing operations.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from the sales of goods or
rendering of services to our largest customer and top five customers
accounted for 33.7% and 83.9% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively; and the purchases of goods and services from our largest
suppliers and top five suppliers accounted for 9.0% and 26.3% of the
Group’s total purchase respectively.

During the Reporting Period, one of our top 5 suppliers is controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the Company, from which the Group purchased
finished products and raw materials. Please refer to certain continuing
connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report for details. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had, at any time during the Reporting Period, a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Company had fully complied with the principles and codes provisions set
out in the CG Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has been
made to all Directors, and all of them have confirmed that they have
complied with all relevant requirements as set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Auditor

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the related notes thereto
for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to the amounts set out
in the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year.

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as our auditor will
be submitted for Shareholders’ approval at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On 9 October 2020, BDO Limited resigned as the auditor of the
Company. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was then appointed as the external
auditor of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of independent auditor during the preceding three years.

By order of the Board
Chairman
WANG Donglei

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Board believes that corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A
strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable
performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The
Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture
that is built on its Vision, Mission and Values.

During 2022, the Company continued to strengthen its cultural framework
by focusing on the following:

° Vision: Empowering Your LifeScape ® A RUN(RFTRE

o Mission: Focusing on our customers and their environment, we
have been actively expanding products in the two elements of
“air” and “water” and related fields to improve the life quality
of consumers, to realise the vision of sustainable development
and to build a smarter, more environmentally friendly and more

technological living space.

o Values: The Company is committed to establishing brand value
recognition, providing products and services that meet the needs
of consumers from their perspective, so that customers can
recognise the core values of our brands while enhancing sense of
belonging.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are required
to attend orientation and training programs so that they may better
understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant
laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from
time to time, the Company will invite external experts to provide training
to our management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and
management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values
and strategy of the Group are aligned.

EXERKRS

EEQREHFNECEEBEHE20225F12831
HEEEFERHNELEESARS

ERTHIXIE

EFEHEE EEXECRTERRMES
KERNRAFEERNER -BRAHIX
EEEABDEARLRAIFENERS
TETHFEAEEENEEARNBSE -
KRABRNDRNERVERS S RkEE
BAERNBEBERNE-

2022%F » RAFIHEB IR EXEAER » EBS
AU AE :

o [fE = :Empowering Your LifeScape e
EAEWRPAFR
. i RPURRUKRERIRESR

o BBERAEERIM K MATT
ERBABAESNERUEFHEE
EEmBE BERAUFEERNELR
R BERBEZE FIRMF BAKRM
EIERER

. BER: FRARNBIUREEER
B WH B & A E IR HmE T K
BERMRTE > <& P 506 Mm%
OEBE X BROEMEF R -

EFCHEREBEEL BHEREX
EREENRET HKMAMENHEEN
ASMAR KBNS UEREMEY
T RBEMNEEE - RBREER 828
M ERER REREFNEETH UL
b A B A E B BRI B B K B R
WEEABETEI G URSKRFNERE
B BB AE

ESERXREENCERELAERNTE B
BEKRBBEARE -

BELERERARASE 202263

69



70

Corporate Governance Report

EXERRS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Board are of the opinion that, during the Reporting Period, the
Company had complied with the principles and code provisions as set
out in the CG Code.

Model Code For Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code which was set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”).

The Company is not aware of any incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant employees.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognizes that Board independence is key to good
corporate governance. The Company has put in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board with independent
views. The current composition of the Board, comprising one third of
the of the independent non-executive Directors and the members of
the Audit Committee are all independent non-executive Directors which
comply with the independence requirements under the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are all chaired by
independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors are subject to a regular review to maintain
competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities and
workload. The independence of each independent non-executive Director
is assessed upon his/her appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the
Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External
independent professional advice is available to all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed necessary. The
independent non-executive Directors have consistently demonstrated
strong commitment and the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge
their responsibilities at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and informal
means whereby independent non-executive Directors can express
their views in an open manner, and in a confidential manner, should
circumstances requires.

On the basis of the above measures that have been put into place, the
Board is of the view that the above mechanism was effective in ensuring
that independent views and input were available to the Board throughout
2022.
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Board Composition

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the

Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors WANG Donglei (Chairman and chief
technology officer)

CHAN Kim Yung, Eva (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

XIAO Yu

CAO Qin

WANG Keven Dun (re-designated on
1 September 2022)

Non-executive Director YE Yong

Independent LEE Kong Wai, Conway
Non-executive WANG Xuexian
Directors CHEN Hong

The biographical information of the existing Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 31 to 45 of
this annual report.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective
Director’s biography under the section “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 31 to 45 of this annual report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. WANG Donglei serves as the chairman
of the Company and Ms. CHAN Kim Yung, Eva serves as the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Company had fully complied with
the Code Provision C.2.1 as set out in the CG Code.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Rule 3.10(1) and 3.10A of Listing Rules required every board of directors
of a listed issuer must including at least three independent non-executive
directors and an issuer must appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board. During the Reporting Period,
the Board comprised nine Directors, and three of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board. One of them
is possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway,
Mr. WANG Xuexian, Mr. CHEN Hong in respect of their independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors were independent from their respective date of appointment to
31 December 2022.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years with effect from their respective
date of appointment unless terminated by not less than three months’
written notice served by either the executive Directors or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term
of three years with effect from their respective date of appointment unless
terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served by either
the non-executive Directors/independent non-executive Directors or the
Company.

The above appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment, any new Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next
following annual general meeting after appointment.

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a director
throughout the meeting at which he retires. The directors to retire by
rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
directors to retire by rotation) any director who wishes to retire and not
to offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further directors so to retire
shall be those of the directors subject to retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so
that as between persons who became or were last re-elected directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Accordingly, Mr. WANG Donglei,
Mr. XIAO Yu, and Ms. CAO Qin will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. None of the Directors who is
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting or any
other Directors has a service contract with us that is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the chief executive officer and the senior management.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in

order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

The records of continuous professional development relating to director’s
duties, regulatory requirements and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
summarised as follows:

Name of Directors

BRNEAEFEREZERSERER
REENMERN UERESBEETH#
FABNEBREMF LXE2BMAR(E
TR RBEREERG THREREE-

EFSRSEBRANFSESERRE HRE
BREBHESENMBREE XA R
EETHAPERNBTRE RBEEER
THESZEHEMEMNEEEN 15
BFMEEEHEMEBEBIRE ERHRAE
NE A o

EENEZE2022F 128318 EEERIIN
EHEERS EEBERKEBRLEENT
BUENFEERDHBEANOT -

Type of Training "o’
S8 B

BEEHS
Executive Directors BITES
WANG Donglei FLE
CHAN Kim Yung, Eva ek 1) T8
XIAO Yu M
CAO Qin S
WANG Keven Dun Ti5
Non-executive Director ERITES
YE Yong L =]
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
LEE Kong Wai, Conway FHEE
WANG Xuexian FE%
CHEN Hong I
Notes:
1. Types of Training
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to,
briefings, seminars, conferences and workshops
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,

magazines and relevant publications
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Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Strategy and Planning Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and
are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include maintaining relationship with the auditor of the Group,
reviewing financial information of the Group, supervising the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control system of the
Group, and the duties of corporate governance delegated by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to review the annual financial results for the year ended 31 December
2021, the interim results and reports for the period ended 30 June 2022
and to review significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and internal audit function, anti-corruption
policy and whistleblowing policy, re-appointment of external auditor
and engagement of non-audit services and relevant scope of works
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, as well as reviewing the corporate
governance compliance.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also met the external
auditor twice.

Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires the Audit Committee to comprise
a minimum of three members with independent non-executive Directors
in majority and at least one member with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
composition requirement of the Audit Committee under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.
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As of the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely, Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, Mr. WANG Xuexian
and Mr. CHEN Hong, and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, with appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting or related finance management expertise, is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model set out in item
(i) under the Code Provision E.1.2(c) of the CG Code), i.e., making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee met three
times to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the performance
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management, review and reassess the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee and submit recommended amendments to
the Board for its consideration and approval and review the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts and other related matters, including
recommending the reduction of directors’ remunerations during the
Reporting Period.

As of the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, namely, executive Director Ms. CHAN Kim
Yung, Eva, independent non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai,
Conway and independent non-executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian,
respectively. Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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In addition to the information about remuneration disclosed in note
14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
268 to 272 of this annual report, the remuneration of the other senior
management of the Company falls in the following bands:

EXERKRS

PRI A FEIRFE268EHEF272EN G M
R E1AF M 515 B AV F AN E K 4b
KATDEMSHREEAENFNEREU
TAERIA -

Number of Members
of Senior Management

SHREERAK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%£1,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 75 £ 1,5600,000% 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7t £2,000,0007% 75 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %2,500,0007 7T 0
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 £3,000,0007 7T 0
Over HK$3,000,001 3,000,001 T £ 1

Nomination Committee

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Director Nomination Policy below that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee met two
times to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and to
consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at
the annual general meeting, and to consider the re-designation of director
and the appointment of vice president. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained.
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Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules requires an issuer to establish a
Nomination Committee chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive Director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has complied with the composition requirement of the
Nomination Committee under Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules).

As of the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, executive Director and chairman of the
Company Mr. WANG Donglei, independent non-executive Director Mr.
LEE Kong Wai, Conway and independent non-executive Director Mr.
CHEN Hong, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional
and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all
levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a
diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.
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As at the date of this annual report, our Board consists of two female
members and seven male members and 2 in the age group of 30-40; 5
in the age group of 50-60; 2 in the age group of 61-70. The Board has
an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant
to the Company’s strategy, governance and business. 6 directors are
experienced in leadership and strategy; 1 director is an accounting
professionals and 2 directors are legal professionals.

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender balance.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is
sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy annually to
ensure its effectiveness.

Workforce diversity

The gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management) for the
year ended December 31, 2022 is 0.59:1. The Group will aim to achieve
the gender diversity in workforce. For further details of gender ratio,
please refer to the disclosure in the Environment, Social and Governance
report.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

. Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

o Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors
at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Director Nomination Policy
annually to ensure its effectiveness.

Strategy and Planning Committee

The primary function of the Strategy and Planning Committee is to
propose and formulate the strategic development plan of the Company
for the Board’s consideration.

As of the date of this annual report, the Strategy and Planning Committee
consists of five members, namely, executive Director Mr. WANG Donglei,
executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu, executive Director Ms. CHAN Kim Yung,
Eva, executive Director Mr. WANG Keven Dun and independent non-
executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei
is the chairman of the Strategy and Planning Committee. During the
Reporting Period, no meeting was convened by the Strategy and
Planning Committee.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has delegated the responsibility for performing the functions
set out in the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code to the Audit
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employee Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Attendance Records of Directors

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic means
of communication, of a majority of Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held four Board meetings in
total. The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ ERETRY
Strategy and
Planning
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ERE Meeting
Name of Director EEiy B8 EBKRZEEY FHZEE ReZEE  KREZEE BREAE
WANG Donglei I4E 4/4 2/2 N/A & 1/1
CHAN Kim Yong, Eva Be#I% 44 3/3 N/A T35 1A
XIAO Yu BF 4/4 N/A R 1/1
CAO Qin LES 4/4 N/A R 11
WANG Keven Dun (Note 1) T Wit1) 4/4 N/A R 11
YE Yong & 4/4 N/A RER 11
LEE Kong Wai, Conway TEE 4/4 2/2 3/3 22 NATBER 11
WANG Xuexian IZ2R 4/4 2/2 3/3 N/A R E A 11
CHEN Hong Bah 4/4 2/2 2/2 N/A R & 11
Note: Wt -
1. Mr. WANG Keven Dun was re-designated from a non-executive 1. FEAEHEARABDFENTESHAETARIT

Director to an executive Director of the Company and was appointed
as a vice president of the Company and a member of the Strategy
and planning Committee with effect from 1 September 2022.
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During the Reporting Period, no Board or Committee meeting was
attended by a Director’s alternate.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company Convened one annual general
meeting on 17 June 2022.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board confirms its responsibilities for the risk management and
internal control of the Group and it shall examine its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee to safeguard the assets and investment of the
Group as well as the interests of Shareholders. The risk management and
internal control system aims at the management but not the elimination of
risks of failure to attain the business target, and only provides reasonable
but not absolute guarantee for not having material misstatements or
losses.

Characteristics of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company, and the program for reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system:

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal
control system, continue to inspect its effectiveness and warrant that the
Group shall establish and maintain the effective risk management and
internal control system; inspect the risk management and internal control
system of the Group at least once a year; supervise the management
in respect of the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the inspection of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company; the
assessment for the outcome of the evaluating and auditing the risk
management and internal control system; the supervision and promotion
of rectifying the defects of the risk management and internal control;
the discussion with the management over the risk management and
internal control system in order to ensure that the management has
performed its duties to set up the effective system; at the same time,
proactively or upon the appointment by the Board, the research in
respect of the material investigation outcome regarding the matters of
the risk management and internal control system and the response of the
management for the outcome of the investigation.
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The management shall undertake the duties of risk management and
internal control; formulate the appropriate strategy in response to the
risk; conduct the risk alert in advance and promptly issue the risk
management report; at the same time, be responsible for evaluating the
internal control; identify the defects of the internal control and formulate
the rectification scheme; inform the Board and the Audit Committee of
the relevant information.

Programs for ldentifying, Assessing and Managing the
Material Risk:

Risk identification: to determine the standards for measuring the risk;
identify the potential risk which may affect the Group.

Risk assessment: to assess the identified risk and classify the level of the
risk.

Risk response: to select the strategy in response to the level of the
risk for the risk control department to follow up whether the strategy in
response is effective; at the same time, formulate the relevant policy in
response to avoid the recurrence of the risk or minimise the relevant risk.

Risk supervision: to continue the regular inspection of the relevant risk;
promptly revise the risk management and internal control procedure;
ensure that the relevant controlling procedure is appropriate and effective;
provide the management and the Board with the regular report on the
outcome of risk supervision.

The Company has set up the internal audit and risk control department to
regularly monitor and assess the internal risk and control system of each
department in order to determine the risk which may affect the business
and other aspects of the Group (including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information safety).

With the support from the Audit Committee, the Board, having examined
the risk management and internal control system for the year as of 31
December 2022 (including the financial, operational and compliance
control) by means of the risk assessment report and the internal audit
report, is of the opinion that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual examination has also covered the adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Company has set up the program for the purpose of issue-reporting,
so as to encourage the employees of the Company to express their
concerns on the premise of confidentiality in respect of the potential
misconduct concerning the financial report, the internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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As for the surveillance and disclosure of the inside information, the
Company has adopted the policy for the disclosure of inside information,
with the aim to ensure that the internal personnel shall comply with
the requirements for confidentiality and perform the responsibility for
the disclosure of inside information. The policy has expressly set forth
the identification of inside information and the decision-making tree for
taking the required action. The employees and other relevant parties shall
maintain strict confidentiality in respect of the inside information. In the
event of disclosing the inside information, it shall be made on the fair, true
and effective basis.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company does not tolerate any form of bribery, whether direct
or indirect, by, or of, its Directors, officers, employees, agents or
consultants or any persons or companies acting for it or on its behalf. The
Company adopts the anti-corruption policy in assisting the employees in
recognising circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
being involved in corruption or unethical business conduct, so as to avoid
such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance
if necessary.

The anti-corruption policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
convicted cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company expects and encourages employees of the Group and
those who deal with the Group (e.g. suppliers, customers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company, in confidence, any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the Group. The
Company adopts the whistleblowing policy to provide reporting channels
and guidance on reporting possible improprieties and reassurance to
whistleblowers of the protection that the Group will extend to them in the
formal system.

The whistleblowing policy will be reviewed on a regular basis, any
suspected cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 169 to 176 of this
annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the

Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit and non-audit
services for the Reporting Period is set out below:

EXERKRS
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Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category RFEIER gt ENER
RMB’000
FARE
Audit Services: BIZIRTS
- mainly related to annual audit —FE N REEE 3,928
Non-audit Services: JEB LR :
— mainly related to interim review —FE N RPHIER 780
— mainly related to tax consultancy services —F BN RREBHART 1,397
6,105

Company Secretary

Ms. TEH Lai Ching had resigned as the Company’s company secretary
with effect from 26 August 2022 and Ms. KWOK Siu Ying Sarah has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from 26
August 2022.

Ms. Kwok is a manager of corporate services of Vistra Corporate
Services (HK) Limited, a professional services provider specializing in
company secretarial services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.
Mr. NG Hon Lun, the chief financial officer of the Company has been
designated as the primary contact person at the Company which would
work and communicate with Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Kwok Siu Ying Sarah has undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
all resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands, and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) may be convened by the
Board upon requisition of one or more Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, while all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition,
sign the requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company
secretary or the primary contact person of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to add resolutions to the agenda of a general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send

written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

AR R EF

mIRERREEREN  SEXEAHNEE
(BIEHEENES) WBILRZELAN
REAE LRZE - RF(LEHRA) - FBRERE
L BERRRELIRE  BFFAEKE R
BFEITHREENRZRUBFTHARR
ShOPRBERBRRAE LIRENRZRR U
BREFARR MBEBRRERR N SR
RAGRTEN A QB R H PR

RRBFARRFINKRE

BREARAFDEABERMEIE8H FHAEL
DRAERBBERE MARETRBREKR
ﬁﬂﬁ&?ﬂf%)ﬂ— P —H— B ERERIE
REXB EFEIARRREFIARE (T

REFRAE)) - ARAEZANEBREERE
REMBEBART - MK ERERE21H
W EFTREARKRRFH ARG BIE

RERATABETRBERSANBREBKX
TOMERERALTREZEREARA
%k@ﬁ?i%ﬁﬁéﬁ%%ﬁm$“
BETEXERAL

BRXERALTEAEERFERATEN
BREERBURBHEXTFTEARATEFTETN
“TW$YIE%éAiO

RIRRAE LIRS

REALBEBSZMAFE580F EF—
UHUEREEBEREBRFELRATEE
RREEREBZHBERERDR 52—
WRE AREBRZEEDALRDEEFTTIH
MEZLEMER BRRRBEFAME
RERAEHZERE -

MEEEFEHES
MEOEFSFHEMEAMS &%T%
EHEAEXRELARF - ARDBETE
REOENEREH-



Corporate Governance Report

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions for the
general meeting or enquiries to the Board as mentioned above to the
primary contact person of the Company as set out below:

Name:
Address:

The Chairman of NVC International Holdings Limited

Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2375 1385

Email: ir@nvc-international.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions. The Company endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. The chairman of the Board
as well as chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees will make themselves available at the annual
general meetings to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.nvc-international.com, where information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.
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The Company has also established a range of communication channels
between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.
These include (i) the publication of interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements; (i) the annual
general meeting or extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for
Shareholders to raise comments and exchanging views with the Board;
(iii) the provision of updated and key information of the Group available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv)
the Company’s website offering communication channel between the
Company and its stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong serving the Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (vi) convening investor meeting and/or analyst briefings, which led by
our executive Directors with existing and potential investors.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
shareholders engagement held during the year, the Board is satisfied that
the shareholders communication policy has been properly implemented
during 2022 and is effective.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to Code Provision F.1.1 of the CG Code. In recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves
for meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as
its Shareholder value. The Company intends to distribute no less than
30% of its annual net profits as dividends to its Shareholders, subject to
the conditions and factors as set out below.

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders of the Company, subject to the Memorandum and Articles
of the Association of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations
and the factors set out below. The Board shall also take into account
the following factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends, including financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders,
any restrictions on payment of dividends and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or period as interim
dividend, final dividend, special dividend and any distribution of net profits
that the Board may deem appropriate. Any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. The Company may declare
and pay dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to
time.

Constitutional Documents

The third amended and restated Articles of Association took effect
from 17 June 2022. An up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles of
Association is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Save as disclosed above, there is no other change
in constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Going Concern
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that

cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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About the Report

This Report is the seventh Environmental, Social and Governance Report
published by NVC International Holdings Limited (the “Group” or “we”),
aiming to report to all stakeholders the performance and the management
methods of the Group on Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”)
topics in 2022. For information on the Corporate Governance section,
see pages 69 to 91 of the Annual Report.

Reporting Guideline and Principle

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Main Board Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Global Reporting Initiative Sustainability Reporting Standards and the
actual situation of the Group. The contents and data disclosed in this
Report are based on the internal records and files of the Group.

Reporting Boundary and Reporting Period

The threshold in this Report’s boundary is set at companies in which
we have a stake exceeding 50%. The social performance data in the
Report cover the Guangdong Zhuhai headquarter office and Greater
China Business Center of NVC International Holdings Limited, Zhejiang
Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai Base and
Vietham NVC; and the environmental performance data cover Greater
China Business Center, Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base,
Guangdong Zhuhai Base and Vietnam NVC. The Reporting Period is the
financial year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Feedback

We are committed to continuously perfecting our ESG disclosures
and welcome your comments and suggestions on this report. Contact
information is as follows:

NVC International Holdings Limited

Address: Unit 705, 7/F., Building 20E, Phase 3, Hong Kong Science
Park, Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email address: ir@nvc-international.com

Tel: (852) 3970 2238/3970 2237

Fax: (852) 2865 1638

Website: www.nvc-international.com
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

In 2022, the Group used its own advantages to seize opportunities
and embrace challenges in the face of the uncertainty of the COVID-19
pandemic, so as to continue to commit itself to sustainable and
green development. By actively promoting the corporate mission of
“Empowering Your LifeScape e :BEJEUNFRETFE” and integrating the
concept of sustainable development, we carried out brand promotion
with the three major elements of human life, namely “water”, “light” and
“air”, in a bid to make the Group’s business and sustainable development
more inseparable.

With the pursuit of green life by people all over the world, in addition to
setting up a comprehensive environmental management system and an
emergency response mechanism for environmental incidents, the Group
also focuses on the development of green energy and carbon neutrality,
actively promotes the improvement of photovoltaic utilisation efficiency,
and strives to achieve the goal of carbon neutrality. Moreover, the Group
propels the application of solar lighting, aiming to expand the application
of clean energy in lighting systems. The Group has established the
Climate Change Policy and is committed to gradually incorporating
climate-related risks and opportunities into the Group’s risk management
and decision-making process from the three aspects of “mitigation
measures, adaptive capacity and policy review”.

The Group adheres to the safety management policy of “safety first,
prevention first and mass prevention and control” and encourages
employees to participate in the health and safety schemes, so as to
promote the Group to build a deep culture of occupational health and
safety. We provide effective labour protection measures to effectively
protect the safety of employees, such as effective protection for female
employees in accordance with the Procedures for the Labour Protection
of Female Employees. In terms of training, we provide employees with
a variety of training programs, covering product knowledge, workplace
improvement, cross-cultural communication, supply chain management
and product quality control. We also regularly carry out the “Small
Classroom of Workplace Improvement” training sessions through the
global corporate culture project, and employees can actively participate in
online and offline manners.
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The Group carries out product research and development with the
professional spirit of “ingenuity and innovation”. We make use of our
excellent product design capability and our ability to build intelligent
product ecosystems to improve customer experience. In 2022, the Group
successfully developed a number of non-lighting technologies, including
air disinfectors, water-air disinfection technologies and commercial
fresh-air disinfectors. In addition, the Group continued to promote the
construction of digital and informatization throughout the Group. During
the year, the Group promoted the ERP system transformation in various
subsidiaries to realise global cross-regional cooperation and resource-
sharing among main businesses, thereby improving the overall operating
efficiency of the Group.

During the year, we held the 2022 Strategic and Cooperative Supplier
Conference with the theme of “embracing openness and cooperation for
mutual benefit”. A total of 25 cooperative suppliers and executives from
various departments of the Group participated in the event. The purpose
of this event was to further optimize the supply chain and implement
various management mechanisms, and to gather more partners with
“openness, sharing, cooperation, and win-win” as the development
vision, reduce inventory by shortening the procurement cycle, and
actively enhance the value of strategic cooperation.

Looking forward, while developing the market and pursuing performance
growth, NVC International will not forget to undertake social
responsibilities and will follow the path of sustainable development
together with stakeholders. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all stakeholders for their unswerving trust
and support. We will continue to uphold the corporate value of “social
responsibility as our own responsibility”, bind social responsibility with
brand growth, and achieve sustainable development.

WANG Donglei
Chairman

30 March 2023
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About NVC International

By adhering to the corporate vision “Empowering Your LifeScape- :&
H£RARFTFE", NVC International links the brand mission with the
construction of human life, and continues to provide high-quality lighting
products in global overseas markets with full lighting solutions pre-
designed according to the scene. Our headquarter is located in Hong
Kong, and our production bases are located in Zhejiang Jiangshan,
Shanghai Qingpu and Guangdong Zhuhai, and we also have one
production base in Vietnam. Our overseas product development centres
are in compliance with European standards, and our distributors are
spread over more than 40 countries and regions around the world.

In addition to the international lighting business, by focusing on our
customers and their environment, we have been actively expanding
products in the two elements of “air” and “water” and related fields to
improve the life quality of consumers, to realise the vision of sustainable
development and to build a smarter, more environmentally friendly and
more technological living space.

“Light” is the continuous driving force and core foundation of the
Group’s growth. In 2022, for the integration and upgrade of overseas
lighting brands, while considering changes in the environment and
consumer needs, the Group strategically identified its characteristics and
comprehensively upgraded from multiple fields and channels to create
a richer and more three-dimensional brand image. This reflected brand
value in all the comprehensive experiences given to consumers, making
the corporate image more profound.

The Group’s management has put forward the core development
strategy of “Technology-driven and Users First” to promote the research
and development of lighting and non-lighting products. In response to
consumers’ increased awareness of epidemic prevention, the Group
made use of D&H, a century-old high-quality luxury lighting brand in the
UK, to create a new Indoor Air Quality (“IAQ”) brand centered on the
elements of “water” and “air”. In 2022, the Group successfully developed
a number of non-lighting technologies, including air disinfectors, water
air disinfection technologies and commercial fresh air disinfectors.
The Group won the German iF Industrie Forum Design award, which
demonstrated the excellence of product design as well as the research
and development capability of the Group. This further enhanced brand
awareness and expanded the brand influence.
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Industry Awards Received
ERMITERE
e QOur brand won the German iF
Industrie Forum Design award
o HET fhhE SR EEEIFE PR &% 51 (F
Industrie Forum Design)#218
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Industry Associations

BENTENGE

KNX China User Organization Committee
Shenzhen Internet of Things Industry Association
China Smart Home Industry Alliance (CSHIA)
Shanghai Pudong Intelligent Lighting Federation
Guangdong Custom Home Association

China Wood Protection Industry Association, Garden and
Balcony Custom Branch
KNXFREIRFEBEZEES
AR E RS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Sustainability Management
Board Statement

NVC International has formulated the Social Responsibility Procedures in
accordance with national laws and regulations and the actual situation
of its own production and operations to explicitly stipulate standards
of conduct in the context of social responsibility, labour, environment,
safety and health, professional ethics, etc. It also regularly arranges
internal audits and management reviews, and takes effective remedial and
corrective measures in a timely manner to ensure that the principles of
sustainable development are practiced.

The Board is the highest governing body overseeing ESG risk. The
Audit Committee reviews all risks of the Group including ESG risks. The
Board authorizes the CEO to urge all functional departments to conduct
constant assessments of ESG risks, review the formulation process of
sustainable development issues that have a significant impact on the
Group, and the progress of the realization of sustainable development
goals. The Board has reviewed and approved this Report and confirmed
that the content of this Report is accurate, true and complete. To the best
of its knowledge, this Report has objectively described the management
measures and performance of all major issues of the Group.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Identification

In the process of practicing sustainable development, the Group
maintains good and constant communication with stakeholders, and
regularly reviews and adjusts the topic library based on the latest
developments of the Group and industry trends. By implementing
the “materiality” reporting principles required by the ESG Reporting
Guidelines of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and following the
materiality assessment process of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI),
including four steps of identification, prioritisation, validation and review,
it identifies material topics that have a significant impact on the Group’s
long-term success. The management of the Group reviewed the previous
material topics and added the “compliant emissions” this year. The
material topics of the Group in 2022 are presented in the following table:

IR ERERHRS

A FEERER
EXTEH

FTERKBEEIZRZZENERBSE
EEZBERBER fHE(MEEERER) 5
BEAECAEEEHEEE - FT RIE X
ERR BEERSHENTAERE TE
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BEMAYMMUERER  BTAKFEERR
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EEERAEEFMARRIL BIEESGHER
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RIE-HERELGKRS

Material Topics Actions of the Group in 2022 Section/Information
BHEM4EE EE2022FM1TH HEZEH, B
Talent Management ° Based on the principle of “fairness, impartiality, openness, Employee Protection

and job matching”, we attract diverse talents through internal
selection, employees’ recommendation, external recruitment,
campus recruitment and other channels

. Prohibit all forms of discrimination, and eliminate acts of
discrimination or rights interference due to employees’ race,
social class, nationality, clan, disability, gender, etc.

o We have formulated institutional documents such as the
Salary and Welfare Management Procedures to motivate
employees to work

. We have a complete employee complaint system, and
employees can express their opinions and suggestions
through the suggestion box, employee representatives and
other channels.

AT EE . ERTRAERE-RBEERTEINRA BRANER -8 BIRE
THE INSRE -REBEERERMNZTEAT

. BrE-—9EANERTA HEREEER HEER E
BB MRS EMREUSE RS E D TANITA

. HE(IERAMERRER)EHEEXS HBRENIIER

131
. RETENEIHFBR JUBBRRME EIRRERE
REBCHERRERZ
Product Quality Management . 1SO9001:2015 quality management system certification Product Responsibility
o Seven national and international product certifications
. Whole-process quality monitoring and inspection system
o We carried out the special activity of “Quality Month” to

further popularize quality knowledge and enhance the subject
awareness of all quality inspection and production personnel

. Recall mechanism for defective products, and specify the
control, review and disposal process for defective products
of accessories and products, and clarify the responsibilities of
each responsible department

EREEEE . %EAIS09001:2015 R B B IERE A 0% EREE
. HS7TBE R R E R RERRE
. ERREEHEIIGRER
. MEE2A I TEIE E— P EREENARIERSEBER
HEEABMEIEER

. AEEMA RIS > LI BN RERZ TR ROER
SFEREENE UHAESEEMMNIERE
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RIE-HERELGKRS

Material Topics Actions of the Group in 2022 Section/Information
BEMESE AEE2022FM1TH HEZEH B
Research and Development, and o Mature full life cycle management mechanism for product Intellectual Property Rights
Intellectual Property Rights research and development and Privacy Protection/
o A matrix of scientific research laboratories in the “Technology —Product Innovation
Iron Triangle”
o Focus on incorporating environmental factors into product

design, raw material acquisition, etc., and continuously
improve the energy efficiency of our products to reduce the
negative impact on the environment

o The Group obtained three invention patents, 26 utility model
patents, five design patents and two copyrights, and also
applied for 16 invention patent authorizations, 12 utility
model patent authorizations and two filings of design patent
authorizations this year

. The Legal Department of the Group issued the Warning Letter
on Confidentiality Obligations, which made detailed and
standardized requirements for the confidentiality obligations of
NVC International and other NVC international subsidiaries

Bt 8 By RO EE . BB Emif & 2 E o B IS B MBERRMEBREER
. BRI #E=A N EREERE =k

o ENHESRG EHHERZSEAARREZENZE R
ETRF BB ESME RN RENEENEEYE

. AEEBERPHANE BEFLEAL6E IMNEBR
BRIHSIE MR EERE AN A E R SRR B
1618 B 3 B SR E 1208 ) LUR S M 8 5 R B2
BZ

o FEEEESEH(IREEBEBNERR) HETEEER
Hi& FARNEBEEHLSERERREER

Customer Health and Safety o Strict selection of raw materials to eliminate harmful Product Responsibility/
substances Product Marketing and
3 Improvement of product labelling to ensure customers have Labelling
accurate information
o Clarify information such as product names, specifications,

energy efficiency levels, and safety instructions to help
customers quickly understand product features, usage
scenarios, safety precautions, and other usage precautions
EREREZS . BRIEERMEEE HEFSEWE ERER/ELHERER
. TEEMRE BRERTRERMAE
. PARERLE RE ENERRZ2RBEEE ENER
RERTHREREN FRSR Z2BMERREMERIR
E¥S
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R ERERHRS

Material Topics Actions of the Group in 2022 Section/Information
BEMEE AEB2022FEM1TE HESEH B
Customer Satisfaction . Sort out and integrate information on new products and Customer Satisfaction

services, so that customers can obtain accurate and sufficient
product information directly on the Group’s official website
anytime, anywhere

The After-sales Claims Settlement Process and Policy to
clarify the internal after-sales service management process
and ensure stable and effective after-sales services

Improving customer complaint mechanism
HMERMRBEEETHREES I REFBREMER
RAEEERERERETINERER
(ERBEBRERBR)FIBABERRFEERE  LURE
ERRBILIETRSIET

TERFPRFEE

BERRRE .
Compliant Emissions °
BREM .

The Group has complied with all relevant international and
local environmental laws and regulation, and formulated
a series of internal management policies such as the
Procedures for Legal, Regulatory and Other Requirements,
the Corrective and Preventive Control Procedures and the
Environmental Management

The Group has established an environmental management
system led by the operations management department and
requiring responsibilities from each department, so as to
fully implement and be responsible for the Group’s water
and electricity management, comprehensive utilisation and
disposal of waste and other environmental management work
The Group formulated corresponding management measures
for waste gas, waste and sewage generated during operation,
and managed waste discharge from three aspects (namely
online monitoring, technical processing and contingency
plans), so as to meet the requirements of laws and regulations
in the place of operation
BTEBERREEMTHNEBRFREENER B O
BIERKEMERER) « (A EFMERHBEEGRER )M R
BEE)E-RIANBEEER

BRUHESERNEE KHUMEENREEERR 2%
BEEXEERK AEEERIRGANBANEESFIRIE
BEIE
HHEERRTMELNER BEY SKEHTHRNE
Bk REKEN BMERE BE2BE= RS EEEY
BOUREBEMTEHNERERER

Emission Control

PEmES|

Corporate Economic Performance e

Revenue amounting to RMB1,888,447,000
Losses for the year amounting to RMB37,484,000
Net assets amounting to RMB3,283,166,000

WA #1,888,447F T AR
FEBERAI 44T TARE
BEF543,283,166 T TARM

2022 Annual Report of NVC
International

B T EIR2022F R
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Environmental Protection

As a global solution provider for smart homes and commercial spaces,
the Group is committed to creating a green operation management
model and making its own contribution to the environment and ecology.
Through a sustainable environmental management system, we reduce the
impact of operations on the environment and promote the development
of environmental protection with practical actions.

Environmental Management

The Group complies with various environmental laws and regulations'
relevant to international and local operating locations. The Group
has formulated a series of internal management policies such as the
Procedures for Legal, Regulatory and Other Requirements, the Corrective
and Preventive Control Procedures and the Environmental Management,
and established an environmental management system led by the
operations management department and requiring responsibilities from
each department, so as to fully implement and be responsible for the
Group’s water and electricity management, comprehensive utilisation and
disposal of waste and other environmental management work.

During 2022, there was no case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to
exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and the generation of hazardous or non-hazardous waste.

U For laws and regulations on resource consumption and emissions,
please see the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report

IR ERERHRS

IRIE (R o8

FERFRESRKEREREZHE 2R
ROBRREB RORTESZBEEBNE
BEN ARIFEERFEBSHERM 3
BARNFENREEERZ RLESY
RIEBFMEENEE NERTHEHIRR
EXHEE-

RIGERE

AEEBETARBERAEEMEMHNEIEA
BREERMZER FIECERERRHEME
SKAZ ) ~ AU IEAD TR BA #8 b 12 1 22 57 ) A R
REE)S—RIAMEERR  BUHE
SEENAE BHMEENREEER
ZrEEBEEETEEAK AEEER
HRGEMNBANEESRIEEELfF-

2022F  AEBUETANERBBAER X
BERBHB BRI STREENR
EEEEYNELEBEHAERERNE LAY
BNEBERER

! EREARIBERERERFS RER
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Human Resources
Department

ADERE

Technology
Development Department

$5 il A 3% 5B

Management

representatives Quality Management
EEEARR Department

HEEHER

General manager Sales Department

Vb gy ' e

Finance Department

fi1 75 8B

Zhuhai Plant
KBTI

Supply Chain
Management Department

HEEEEE

Schematic diagram of environmental management system
IRIE ETEFE 7 IR IEE
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Tackling Climate Change

Climate change is one of the important issues of global concern
today, which may directly affect the materiality issues of the Group’s
business operations. Therefore, while actively promoting the sustainable
development strategy, we continue to pay attention to the opportunities
and risks related to climate change. By actively understanding domestic
and international leading carbon emission reduction technologies and
constantly improving our own strategies and mechanisms to deal with
climate change, we strive to comprehensively improve energy efficiency,
carbon reduction technologies and management levels and enhance our
ability to adapt to climate change.

Focusing on the three aspects of “mitigation measures, adaptive capacity,
and policy review”, the Group has formulated the “Climate Change
Policy”, aiming to identify and manage climate change-related risks and
opportunities, mitigate the impact of climate change on the operations
and keep aligning with the industry’s best practices.

IR ERERHRS

EHREE

RIFZELTRENSERBAINEEZRZEL
— HAREERFTEAERXEFEENE
BMEREE - B HAIERE SR EE R FE S
f B B B [B) B > R R RIR ZC AR
WEBRER - ZBBERT RERNERKRE
TR BER T 0 RN T E B B RE RIE
SIEEBNRBES RMATEE2ERES
BE TR AR R R ~ BB B T AN B IR K 0 158
BREREECHBES

B4 DRAE IR I B AR B S =18
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RIE-HERELGRS

Mitigation Measures

AR 5

Adaptive Capacity
EREREN

Policy Review

HRES

Improve the production process, minimise the use of fossil energy in production
projects, and increase the use of renewable energy;
HELETE FARERVEETERCAERERS BN BLERNFA ;

Improve the level of industrial energy utilisation efficiency and promote the application
of the Group’s energy-saving technologies;

B TEERMBAME  EEBEERMER ;

Incorporate climate change into procurement considerations, and encourage the use of
low- or zero-carbon and energy-efficient products and materials;
B RESCMARKBNE BEZ > B FE R BRI KA RN @ EmMYE ;

Draw on the industry’s advanced practices to formulate voluntary carbon reduction
targets.
REETTRESEBE ) fIE BB R

Improve organizational leadership on climate change to prevent or reduce the costs of
climate change;
TERHRESCNAREE  UBEHHEEREEERNIER;

Promote the popularization and publicity of scientific knowledge on addressing climate
change, and vigorously advocate low-carbon production methods;

HERHREEERENANERMNER ANEEEREESR

Upgrade enterprise risk management systems to incorporate climate change and
extreme weather events into management procedures;

AREERBERRG BRBEEANBERREGMAETEERFA ;

Collaborate with various stakeholders, including employees, suppliers and customers,
to strengthen the resilience of all parties to climate change.
BREEST HEARBEEESRHMNE  MAS A HRBEECHNBERES -

Regularly monitor and review the impact of climate change on the Group’s employees
and business operations;
EHRERNETRESCHEREENEBEENTE;

Regularly review and update the Group’s climate change policy and report to the Board
on a regular basis.

EHBEEMBMAEBREECHR LEHANESZER-
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In order to better incorporate climate-related risks and opportunities into 2 7 8 UF #h 1 & &= 48 B B[R P A0 14 38 49 A
the Group’s risk management, strategic planning and decision-making ZXAEBEEEIE BB AEFBESD
process, we disclosed climate change-related information this year based AKEERMIEEREHABEMEEEINET
on the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial ~ fE4H(TCFD)MY 2 &K = R iz & HEEE & >
Disclosures (TCFD), and carried out the identification of climate-change WM& ~ IEK |~ TRMEE | & M{5E
risks in the four areas of “governance”, “strategy”, “risk management” & BZ | UEEHE FBEERES1CRMEZR
and “indicators and targets”, striving to promote more detailed climate T {F> N N EFLAFENTIER S D
risk analysis and build a comprehensive climate risk prevention system. BETENREREHEEZ -

Field
i}

Actions Taken

REXEI1TE

Governance

fY<Y
7

Strategy

g

Management:

The management team is responsible for implementing, identifying and managing climate change risks
and opportunities, in tune with the Group’s climate change policy, and actively promotes various energy
conservation and emission reduction measures to gradually set up strategies consistent with global
best practices, thereby mitigating the impact of climate change on its business and enhancing the
development of renewable energy.

EEE .

FEERGEECERHEEEREEEE  #HHMEEREE(C AR EEE WA HESHS BT
Bt BIERREKEEER —BNRE KMAEREZCHEEFNLE MABAUBERERZE
EO

Climate-related risks and opportunities:

The Group is aware of the physical risks associated with climate change, including extreme weather
events that may damage our factories and facilities, and prolonged periods of extremely hot weather
that may pose health risks to employees. Transitional risks include possible policy and legal changes,
technological and market changes, rising raw material and energy costs, and demand for products
that meet the latest environmental requirements. At the same time, we have also identified certain
opportunities for the transition to a low-carbon economy, such as improving industrial energy efficiency
due to the adoption of energy-saving technologies, using recyclable packaging materials to improve
resource efficiency, and increasing revenue through demand for low-carbon products, etc.

The Group has formulated a climate change policy to provide guidelines for the management of climate-
related matters.

FRAR R RER B S

FERESHIREECAIERRNEMERAR SEBBERXRFFIEGRERMANTHNRE
MR RABE X AR R G H 8 TR ERE B8RRI SR RN BERFAREH KT 5 E
b~ BRMBMERR A LR URHNERMBERERNERTRE - FEF > LA E # 5 W EHR K
HAPNETHE AIURRAEAERMIES TEEXRF AT EAFTEKREEMHESERERAN
o PREBEHRERNBRESHRAZ

i

FEFERERBRE R AREEHEENEESHEMIES]
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Field
b

Actions Taken

REXEI1TED

Risk Management

g E 1

Indicators and
Targets

EREEE

Risk assessment and policy perfection:

The Group assesses the physical and transitional risks that climate change may bring to its operations
and integrates them into its sustainable development strategy. The management will consider
environmental, social and governance and climate-related issues, and formulate corresponding policies
for implementation.

B Rl R RS

FERNGREECAEMEETRNERERBERE TREMANFEERRKR -SEEEE BT
B EREARRIEERER 06 E AR BB

Carbon emissions and emission reduction targets:

The Group measures and discloses greenhouse gas and energy-related indicators to monitor the
realization of climate change management, including GHG emissions (scope 1 and 2), GHG emission
intensity, energy consumption and energy consumption intensity.

BHER R R AR

FEFBABTRERBERE EREBER UBERKESLCEERE -G EERENNE EE—
RO RERBHNRE EREAENEREERES -
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In order to identify and manage climate change-related physical risks
and transitional risks in a more timely manner and mitigate their possible
impact on the Group’s business, we have prepared sufficient resources
for the mitigation and remediation of relevant emergency incidents
which can be taken and applied in a timely manner when necessary.
The identified climate risks and opportunities related to our business
operations and the actions taken are as follows:

Risk Description

Bl

R i ot

Potential Financial Implications

BEMBRE

IR ERERHRS

mERFEMBNNEEREECHEBNE
RRBRMNBERRE BEEDESETER
EHHERNEE RAEHHBEERERE
B GERRERER T EHNER £FE
BA REATHTH CBRHANEEFEE
18 B8 BY SR 1 L B AT % 48 LA Fr (R EX B9 1T 8
LI

Responses

FEEH BT

Physical risks

=

=8

Risks driven by extreme weather
events, such as typhoons,
hurricanes or floods, may
damage production bases and
offices, resulting in failure of
normal operations, damage to
operating facilities, equipment,
storage areas and goods, etc.

Prolonged changes in climate
patterns, incremental changes
in climate (sea level rise, rainfall
changes and continued high
temperature) may lead to more
frequent and severe extreme
events, and more frequent
transportation delays, affecting
supply chain reliability

RBER
AR R E M RRE RO AR - (e
B~ BRE B K IR E AR K
WMAZ  EREAEREE 8IT
BERE RE ARENEYS

RIERARBES [IRHILEE
£ (e FELA BRELERTE
BER) TRBIREMHEMMNRE
MEE BERLERTMAE &
BB RN

. Reduced revenue: being unable to e
produce and deliver on time with

business operations affected

o Asset reduction: asset damage

and depreciation

o Increased expenditure: repair
and replacement of damaged

facilities and equipment

° Reduced revenue:

decreasing

21

. AR EEEENRERE F

BEERRE
. BER)  BERERE

. ST RN | ME(E s BIASRIBRIR IR

R

. BARLD  RBEEERRER mHEE .

EmBRAmEE

business e
operations are affected, and the
market demand for products is e

Set up relevant contingency plans,
upgrade enterprise risk management
systems, and incorporate climate
change and extreme weather events
into management procedures

o Strengthen the maintenance of special
facilities and equipment for flood
control and drainage in production
bases and offices, and manage rain
damage and tide damage in key areas
Set up corresponding management
teams

Prepare corresponding
contingency plans in advance and
look for alternative transportation
options to strengthen supply chain
resilience

REEMERRR ARCERRE
Baf wRESENERRAEN
MAERRER
MEREEEM R AENGHEEKE
RS EER URHERRS
sk bbb k=g
HEEREEERE

. RAEFHEENESER SHER
B8R E magtmgst
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R ERERHRS

Risk Description
[ B i

Potential Financial Implications

BEMBRE

Responses

FEEH 5 1

Transitional risk

Directly or indirectly affected by
policies and laws formulated
to limit the impact of climate
change and/or to improve
adaptation to climate change,
including the implementation
of carbon pricing mechanisms,
increased environmental
disclosure requirements and
stricter environmental protection
and climate policies

Directly or indirectly affected
by technological changes,
including industry support
for global low-carbon
transformation, increased R&D
and investment in renewable
energy technologies, and the
widespread application of
new energy-saving facilities
prompting the purchase of new
facilities and the replacement of
old equipment

Climate change affects the
supply and demand of certain
goods, products and services
in markets, including higher
resource prices such as energy
and raw materials

B

EEIBERIARFHRBREER
BN/ AntenHREE(CERLE
MK ENBRERNTZE GEK
EERGIER RIEREERES
R E BB RAERIRBER

EEYEETR R R
N e BRTEIRFEIREMRE
A AR BAE SRR A ER
MrE R A BB AE R RV B2
ERRERERRE BRERE
REELRET S LEETR E
BARBOERER GEERE
1% QEERMR MK B S

Increased costs: increased emission
costs and retrofit costs, as well as
litigation claims arising from non-
compliance

Increased costs: increase investment
in research and development of green
technologies and products, and
purchase new equipment that is more
environmentally friendly and energy-
saving

Asset reduction: old equipment
decommissioned

Increased costs: rising raw material
prices

B AIG N © 3B A0 HE AR A A &R R B
BER URHERSIZENHFAR
Bi

~a

MAEM : MAHRGERIMNE
mBUERE R A R B IR R EAE
BYFTER

BER)  RAXREER

AN | RAMEER £t

Regularly collect and update
regulations through various channels
such as government agencies and
the Internet to ensure operational
compliance

Periodic examination

Incorporate environmental protection
specification requirements into product
design and production

Accelerate the energy-saving
transformation and automation
transformation of equipment, and
improve the production process
Promote the use of new and clean
energy

Implement flexible supply chain
management to promote low-carbon
transformation

EHRBENHE EMATIER
BREMERER URFREESH
EHETER

RERRFANEERROPRHARR
MREEXR
IREER B ETRESUEM B EER
B HELEETIR
WIERIBZERNER
BTBUMNMEREEER HEERE

7
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IR ERERHRS

Risk Description Potential Financial Implications Responses
[ B BERBEE FE S8 1
Opportunities
o In the medium to long term, o Cost reduction: lower operating e Promote the efficient application
improving energy efficiency can costs of energy-saving technologies
bring immediate cost savings and equipment in production and
to operations and contribute to operation
limiting global carbon emissions o Actively promote the efficient use
of new and clean energy
. Promote the construction of an
energy management system and
optimize the energy structure
o Innovating and developing o Cost reduction: lower financing e Actively participate in the low-carbon
products and services with low costs transition and consider low-carbon/
carbon emissions can improve . Increased revenue: increased zero-carbon and energy-efficient raw

#ia

our market competitiveness.
For instance, customers prefer
more environmentally friendly
service or product suppliers, and
investors prefer environmentally
friendly enterprises

e REAZRE » RA SEIRAKBER
BETRERNMADHLN LR

lE$283730 ¢ G i=)

BT AIRE EHEERERMRE o
EREDSRIPHA WER R
BRERNRBAERGER RE

ERMRERFREEE

product sales

MAREE : HEEERA

MARE  RERERE
. AR EMERBE

materials or products

o Collect market information to
understand stakeholders’ demand for
environmental protection and energy-
saving products and propose product
plans

° Promote green supply chain
management

. EEMERMTRBETEEREED

NS ER

. MEIB R AERAB R BERBY S A
i

. HESRREEBRRER  BILERE
18

. RE2 BERER ZRIEHR TH
M B RETR A at B R} 31

. WEBHES NN EHEMEHIR
ROEBUEERBR REERRD

. EEGBHEEERE
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RIE-HERELRHRS

Energy Consumption

The Group pays attention to energy management by conducting scientific
planning for energy consumption, saving energy use and improving
energy utilisation efficiency. Energy consumption in the Group’s daily
operations includes petrol, diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity
(indirect energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy consumption
was 96,688 GJ, with an intensity of 0.0512 GJ/thousand RMB revenue.
Among them, direct energy consumption was 1,948 GJ and indirect
energy consumption was 94,739 GJ. The direct energy consumption in
2022 declined by 16,028 GJ as compared with that of 2021.?

AE IR H ¥

AEBTEAERSEIHR W RN HE
ETHREBNRE NERNER  IES 5k
BRHAME - AEBHEEET I RIE
FUHAEGIE R Eoh (BEER) “INEE
71 (BEER) - AEBEREEES
96,688 FIKEH » BEEA0.0512FKEE
ST R AR EEE AhEEERME
EA1,9048THKEE BEEREEES
94,739 T JKEH - 2022 FE W EFEAE R HEE
22021 FE /016,028 FJKEH o2

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)
BERUHFERE (TIREE)

120,000
100,000
80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000
0 1,948
2021 2022
Direct energy I Indirect energy
BIFAER EEEAEIR
2 The reason for the significant drop in energy consumption this year

is that the Group did not use natural gas for energy
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group generates GHG directly from the combustion of fuels such as
petrol used in factory production and vehicle operations, and indirectly
from purchased electricity. During the year, the Group’s direct GHG
emissions were 153 tCO2e°, and indirect GHG emissions were 15,008
tCOze. Our total GHG emissions were 15,161 tCO2e with an emission
intensity of 0.0080 tCOze/thousand RMB revenue. The total amount of
GHG emissions decreased by 4.1% compared with the previous year.

RIE-HERELHRS
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year is that the Group did not use natural gas for energy
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Emission Control
Exhaust Emissions

Emissions of nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and particulate matters
during the Group’s operations are mainly from fuel combustion in
factories and vehicles. During the year, the Group’s operations generated
a total of 0.2318 tonnes of nitrogen oxides*, 0.0007 tonnes of sulphur
oxides and 0.5044 tonnes of smoke and dust.

We formulated corresponding management measures for exhaust gas
generated during the operation of the Group, and managed waste
discharge from three aspects (namely online monitoring, technical
processing and contingency plans), so as to meet the requirements of
laws and regulations in the place of operation.

B EF
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4 The reason for the significant increase in nitrogen oxides and
smoke and dust this year is that the Group added a new
calculation of forklift emissions
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&5
Online Monitoring {é} Technical Processing

IR ERERHRS

Contingency Plans

TE4REER 1 il B2 12 =S EES
e Set up an online monitoring e Activated carbon adsorption e Develop contingency plans for
system for pollution sources devices and other technologies exhaust gas leakage
to monitor the discharge of are used to reduce volatile
industrial waste organic compounds emissions in
factories
e MBSFREMRERRG BEiE o JBIBE LR IR MY B Rl o R o FIERERRBR/STASR
TEREEYRIHEK DT RRIE S A YRR

Exhaust management measures

R E A

Wastewater and Waste

The Group’s wastewater mainly comes from production wastewater and
domestic wastewater generated by employees in their daily lives. During
the year, the Group discharged 0.33 tonnes of chemical oxygen demand
and 0.10 tonnes of ammonia-nitrogen pollutants from wastewater,
decreasing by 0.19 tonnes and 0.06 tonnes from 2021, respectively. We
standardize the wastewater treatment process and are committed to
ensuring full compliance of all wastewater discharges.

The Group continues to standardize waste management, strictly abides
by relevant laws and regulations, and also continues to improve the
Group’s waste management work through the implementation of our own
Waste Management Rules.

BEKk R EERY
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The production activities of the Group generate hazardous waste mainly
including waste lamp tubes and waste circuit boards. A total of 11.29
tonnes of hazardous waste were generated during the year, with a
generation density of 0.0060 kg/thousand RMB revenue, an increase of
1.71 tonnes compared with 2021. Non-hazardous waste from production
and operations is mainly construction waste and domestic waste. A total
of 934 tonnes of non-hazardous waste was generated during the year, a
drop of 354 tonnes as compared with 2021.

rEBETEERRTFIEENEESREEY
TEAERE BEETRRE SRAHE
E11 20 EEREY HEETES
0.0060AF /T ANRIE= %8 12021
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Non-hazardous Waste Generation (Tonne)
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In order to comprehensively utilise natural resources and energy, we refer
to the Waste Management Rules to standardise waste management and
improve the level of waste management and utilisation. We are committed
to the goal of 100% compliant processing. The Group recycles as much
as possible the recyclable portion of non-hazardous waste, such as used
paper and plastics, while non-hazardous waste with no recycling value is
collected and disposed of by the local municipal environmental sanitation
authorities. Hazardous waste is collected centrally and entrusted to
qualified third-party companies for treatment.

Green Office

The Group advocates green office and regularly overhauls production
equipment to ensure its efficient operation and reduce energy
consumption. In terms of office operations, we reduce the use of paper
and promote resource conservation.

Control the indoor
temperature is maintained
at 26 degrees Celsius

Temperature
Control
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i B
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Paper Use
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Use both sides
of the paper,
minimise single
sided use
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Lighting
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Management of Water Resources

The Group uses tap water for its operations. The total water consumption
during the year was 173,862 tonnes®, with a water consumption intensity
of 0.0921 tonnes/thousand RMB revenue. There were no issues in
sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the year.

With the goal of “saving water and eliminating unnecessary water
wastage such as drips and leaks”, the Group continues to improve the
protection and conservation of water resources, including the promotion
of water-saving equipment to all production bases, so as to save
utilisation more water resources and improve the efficiency of water
resource utilisation. We use safe water-saving appliances for domestic
water and water-saving cooling towers for production water. In addition,
we conduct water monitoring, randomly check water leakage every
week and correct it in time, and strengthen water-saving education to
encourage employees to save water.
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2 Due to the aging of the factory facilities, the water consumption
increased this year
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Packaging Materials Management

The Group mainly uses plastic bags, colour boxes, paper boxes, labels
and other packaging materials in operations. The total consumption was
27,572 tonnes in the year and the intensity was 0.0146 tonnes/thousand
RMB revenue. In line with the principle of sustainable development and
for reducing the impact of our operations on the environment, the Group
minimises the use of unnecessary packaging materials and consciously
selects recyclable materials for use.

Packaging material consumption (Tonne) BEMELHFEE (QHE)
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Ecological Environment Conservation

A healthy ecological environment is a basis for the sustainable
development of enterprises and the whole of society. To this end, the
Group strictly abides by laws and regulations related to ecological
environment conservation’, and establishes systems and measures
related to environmental emergency management to avoid damage to the
ecological environment caused by paroxysmal environmental incidents.
Meanwhile, we also actively promote measures to protect and improve
the ecological environment, and strengthen the rational and efficient use
of natural resources, helping the ecological environment to achieve a
virtuous circle.

The Group keeps improving the emergency response systems and
mechanisms for addressing environmental incidents. We have established
procedures for handling environmental emergencies, such as the Rules
on Emergency Management of Environmental Risk Accidents, the Rules
on Emergency Management of Chemical Spill and the Emergency Plans
and Corresponding Control Procedures to identify and assess relevant
risks in a timely manner, clarify various emergency response measures
and establish emergency preparedness. Each production base should
set up an emergency rescue command team, with the general manager
as the team leader. When a chemical leakage incident occurs, the
command team will rush to the scene to confirm the scope and severity
of the incident, and determine handling measures (such as organizing
the evacuation of personnel, providing appropriate protective equipment,
etc.). The Personnel Administration Department will be responsible for
summarising and evaluating the effectiveness of emergency measures.
In addition, the Group also regularly inspects emergency procedures
and measures, and provides training for positions with potential major
environmental impacts, so as to improve the job skills and emergency
awareness of relevant personnel.

g Paper boxes consumption figures for the 2021 reporting period
have been revised
g For laws and regulations on ecological environment conservation ,

please see the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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Employee Protection

The development of talents drives the development of enterprises. Being
people-oriented, we carry out labour management and protect labour
rights through standardised institutional documents. In addition, we
attach great importance to the physical and mental health of employees,
assist their development and growth, design a comprehensive growth
channel and build a diversified and malleable corporate culture to
empower employees.

Employee Composition

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 2,246 employees
with a male-to-female ratio of 0.59:1, most of whom were aged between
30 and 50. Among them, front-line employees accounted for 78% of the
total number of employees with no part-time employees. During the year,
the Group’s quarterly average employee turnover rate was 17%, and the
quarterly average new hire rate was 9%. For detailed employee data,
please refer to the “Performance Data Summary”.
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Quarterly Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate by Region
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Talent Recruitment

In order to clarify the recruitment procedures and ensure the smooth
progress of the selection and employment, we have formulated
recruitment normative documents such as the Recruitment Management
Procedures. Based on the principle of “fairness, impartiality, openness
and job matching”, we absorb diverse talents through internal selection,
employees’ recommendation, external recruitment, campus recruitment
and other channels. In the recruitment process, we put an end to
discrimination and corruption, and the personnel in charge of recruitment
are not allowed to accept bribes. If found, they will be investigated for
legal responsibility.

Protection of Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group prohibits all forms of discrimination, and eliminates acts of
discrimination or rights interference due to employees’ race, social class,
nationality, clan, disability, gender, sexual orientation, age, place of birth,
political party, etc. In order to effectively protect the rights and interests
of women, the Group has formulated diversified management system
documents such as the Management Rules on the Protection of Female
Workers and provided additional benefits such as maternity leave for
pregnant female workers, trying to provide a gender-friendly working
atmosphere for women.

The Group elects employee representatives in accordance with the
Employee Representative Election Procedures to reflect employees’
opinions. An employee representative meeting is held every six months
to focus on discussing the factory’s social responsibility performance,
such as working conditions, discrimination and other issues. Employee
representatives or the HR Department collect and respond to employees’
inquiries, questions and complaints.

Compensation and Benefits

In order to establish a reasonable wage distribution system, we have
formulated institutional documents such as the Wage and Benefits
Management Procedures to motivate employees to work based on the
principle of “performance-oriented compensation, prioritizing efficiency
and considering fairness”. The salary distribution of employees follows
the principle of “performance-oriented compensation”, and we implement
equal pay for equal work, and clarified the overtime salary management
system to ensure that the working hours and holiday benefits of
employees are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the place of
operation.

In addition, in order to create a corporate culture atmosphere with
a sense of belonging, the Group has established a science-based,
standardised, comprehensive and complete welfare system for
employees. The welfare system consists of statutory benefits and
additional benefits, covering employees’ holidays, accommodation,
meals, etc., to improve employees’ work happiness in an all-round way.
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Additional benefits
REINEFI

Basic salary
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%

RIE-HERELHRS

Statutory benefits
EEER
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Monthly fixed Holiday and living Quality Accommodation Insurance and Statutory
salary allowance improvement and dining housing fund holidays
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Employee benefit composition
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During the year, there were no instances of non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
treatment and benefits.

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group explicitly prohibits the use of child labour and forced labour.
We have formulated institutional documents such as the Control
Procedures for Prohibition of Forced Labour, the Management Rules on
Preventing the Employment of Child Labour and the Management Rules
for Minors to standardize labour management by system.

The Group firmly opposes the use of child labour. In order to avoid
employing child labour, we adopt strict recruitment and entry verification
procedures by checking the applicant’s certificate and verifying the
authenticity of the employee’s age. In addition, we continue to improve
personnel files to ensure that employees are at least 16 years old when
they join the Group.
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If any child labour is found to be employed by mistake, the Group
will immediately terminate his/her work and arrange for a medical
examination. After finding out the reason, we will notify the local labour
bureau and deal with the situation according to the physical condition of
the child labour. In addition, when necessary, we will provide appropriate
financial and resource assistance to ensure that they complete statutory
education.

Immediately terminating
his/her work and arranging
a check-up
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Identifying child
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Treatment is
required
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Providing appropriate financial and
resource support to ensure that the child
labour completes statutory education
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Remedial procedures after the discovery of child labour

FREHE T HUESF

The Group strictly prohibits any form of forced labour or restrictions on
labour freedom. The labour contracts and labour regulations we draw up
need to be negotiated and agreed upon with employee representatives,
and must be reviewed by and filed with the local labour bureau to ensure
that employees truly enjoy the rights of freedom of employment, freedom
of resignation, freedom of overtime and freedom of movement.

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to the
prevention of child and forced labour, and there was no reported case
regarding child and forced labour.
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Caring for Employees

In order to get closer to employees, enhance employees’ sense of
belonging and promote two-way communication between the Group and
employees, the Group has continuously strengthened the construction of
employee communication channels, and ensured smooth communication
channels in accordance with the Communication Management
Procedures. We regularly organize employee-sharing meetings to invite
employees to share their experiences and gains in work, enhance
communication among employees and shorten the distance between
them. We have a complete employee complaint system in place, and
employees can express their opinions and suggestions through the
suggestion box, employee representatives and other channels. The
labour union is an important platform for employees to offer advice and
suggestions for the Group. We encourage employees to actively speak
out through the labour union, which is responsible for sorting out and
collecting opinions and conveying them to the management. Employees
can also deal with labour relations and other matters through the labour
union to promote the democratic management process of the enterprise.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to occupational health and safety.
“Safety first, prevention first and mass prevention and control” is the
working policy we have always adhered to. We expect to build a deep
culture of occupational safety and health in the enterprise, under which,
the management and employees cherish and vigorously promote the
construction of a healthy and safe working environment.

Safety Management and Governance

The Group is committed to improving and perfecting the occupational
health and safety management system. The Group has formulated
multiple internal OSH documents such as the Environmental,
Occupational Health Operation and Testing Control Procedures, the Work
Safety Management System and the Occupational Health Management
System. During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which had a significant impact on the Group
relating to providing a safe workplace and protecting employees from
occupational hazards, and there was no reported case regarding work-
related fatalities or occupational diseases.
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The Group is committed to building a healthy and safe working
environment from various aspects. We state our safety management
tenet in the Employee Handbook that safety is always one of our top
concerns. We plan health and safety management issues with employees,
and encourage employees to participate in workplace health and safety
programs to promote the construction of occupational health and safety
culture.

The Group has established health and safety management procedures.
Our company, its branches and project departments must establish
a safety production leading group to be responsible for the health
and safety of employees and implement relevant health and safety
measures. The safety production leading group is responsible for
regularly inspecting, testing and evaluating the safety and health status
of the enterprise to ensure the health and safety of all employees. We
have emergency response procedures in place to identify and assess all
possible accidents and emergencies, take corresponding precautions,
and regularly arrange first aid, firefighting and evacuation drills. We also
have a proper accident reporting and investigation system in place to
encourage employees to report accidents and unsafe factors.

Prevention of Occupational Accidents and Occupational
Diseases

By providing effective labour protection measures, the Group effectively
protects the personal safety and health of employees, prevents
occupational accidents and diseases and ensures its normal operations.
The Personnel Administration Department is responsible for the
prevention and control of occupational accidents and diseases. We
provide employees with a healthy and safe working environment, and
effectively protect female employees in accordance with the Procedures
for the Labour Protection of Female Employees. We set up relevant work
regulations for dust, toxic gas, noise and high-temperature operations,
and require employees to strictly implement these regulations during
production operations. We also organize employees to undergo physical
examinations and establish employees’ health records every year in
accordance with the requirements of the Law on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases.
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Safe Production

Before putting into use or adopting newly purchased equipment, new
materials, new products, new production process, etc., the Group will
conduct health and safety analysis to identify potential and possible
factors that may affect environmental protection, employees’ health and
safety. We are equipped with various safety facilities in the workplace.
Employees must abide by the safety operation regulations at work to
ensure personal safety. If any potential safety hazards are found in the
workplace, employees must report to the relevant person in charge in
a timely manner. Every year, we organize relevant persons in charge
of various departments to conduct occupational safety and health
inspections and risk assessments on the procedures, positions, types
of work and related materials of each department, and take relevant
preventive measures based on inspection results and potential risks
identified.

Hazardous source risk assessment is carried out from the following three
dimensions. We use the values of the three dimensions and calculate
the final risk classification value according to the formula (D)=LXEXC.
Finally, the department should formulate preventive measures based
on the assessed risk level, and prepare a Hazardous Source Risk
Assessment Form.

IR ERERHRS

REEE

FEBRWBERFE MM - MER ME
ETZREFRACAIEAR  ETE
REZ2 DN HABEENMAIREHIRF
ETRRRZE2AZENAZ -RMET
EEPERTENSBZE2RB BE1THE
THEULBABTRZE2RERD RE
BAZZ2 EEIXIESMEREAR
ERBFAFAEBEEA LR -AME
FTEBRSMPIEREE AR KBAPANT
F il TERERYHETREZER
B EME R LRFRE S RN H
BB TE B R SR ENAR B TR B 18 I ©

ﬁ@fﬂﬁﬂﬁ%?ﬂ:ﬂ& ETOR
BE-ZEA#ENHE RRARERIDE
(D)=LXEXC - REIFFIHFRETHEREDN

B B 25 4R I E v #5458 1 0 3 3 L S (s B
/}/_\}_\:E/\RD$TE%€>> °

L=

Possibility of an accident (L)
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Health and Safety Training

Carrying out health and safety training is also an important part of our
prevention of occupational health and safety risks. The Group requires
a documented health and safety training program for employees, and
conducts health and safety training for new employees, transferred
employees and employees in accident-prone places. Only after receiving
health and safety training and education, employees are allowed to work.
We carry out such training to enhance employees’ safety awareness, and
increase employees’ safety knowledge and skills, aiming to prevent and
reduce the occurrence of various health and safety accidents and thus
achieve safe production.

The Group has standardised health and safety training procedures, and
incorporates health and safety training into its annual training plan. We
provide employees with various forms of safety training, including but not
limited to classroom teaching, seminars, group meetings, bulletin boards,
etc., which are carried out both online and offline. In order to strengthen
the fire safety awareness of all employees, strengthen their awareness
of red lines, improve employees’ ability to respond to emergencies and
self-defense and self-rescue capabilities and implement the policy of
“prevention first, prevention and elimination combined”, we regularly
organize fire evacuation drills and fire drills. During the year, the Group
recorded a total of 2,665 trainees participating in safety training, with
7,507 training hours in aggregate.
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YEAR FE 2020 2021 m
Number of work-related fatalities ETERITHAH (M) 0 0 0
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Work-related fatality rate of employees B TR T T#EXE 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Number of working days lost due to A THEBRIE
work-related injuries (day) H& (R) 1,260 801 390
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Development and Training
Employee Training

The Group is committed to providing diversified training for employees
to help them improve their knowledge, skills and working methods in an
all-round way and enhance their own competitiveness. During the year, a
total of 1,700 employees of the Group received training, accounting for
75.69% of the total, with the total training hours of employees reaching
29,400 hours and the average training hours per employee being 17.29
hours.

The Group has established a sound employee training management
system. The Human Resources Department formulates annual training
plans based on the training needs of various departments. Employees
need to receive relevant training and also receive post-training evaluation
according to the training plans to test the effectiveness of the training. We
will make adjustments and improvements based on the training evaluation
results.
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We provide employees with different training programs according to
the types of employees and their job characteristics. Newly recruited
employees need to receive induction training, and special operation
employees are required to receive relevant statutory training and obtain
operation certificates. Employees in positions where major safety
accidents may occur are also required to receive special safety training.
We also provide employees with diversified training such as product
knowledge, workplace improvement and office software. During the year,
we carried out the “Small Classroom of Workplace Improvement” training
sessions through the global corporate culture project, and employees
actively participated in online and offline manners.
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Employee Development

Employees are important assets of the Group, and setting up a sound
career development channel is an important measure for enterprises
to retain outstanding employees and cultivate reserve talents. Setting
up a reasonable promotion mechanism is conducive to promoting the
career development of employees, realizing self-worth, and also meeting
the needs of enterprises to retain talents for common development.
The Group are continuously improving internal promotion channels for
employees. According to the future career development planning of
employees, we set up a dual-channel career development path consisting
of management channel and professional technology channel. Employees
can improve their management capabilities through the management
channel to become higher-level managers, and they can also improve
their experience and skills in professional technical positions through
the professional technology channel to become technical experts and
backbones. By building an objective environment suitable for the growth
of employees, the Group allows every employee to have the opportunity
to develop their personal potential and demonstrate their personal
abilities.

In order to promote the rapid and healthy development of the Group and
encourage the rational flow and effective allocation of internal talents, we
have established an equal competition mechanism for talents to mobilize
the enthusiasm and initiative of employees. Meanwhile, we set up an
organization and personnel section in the Group’s monthly information
dynamic report to update the Group’s important personnel promotion and
appointment information, so as to motivate and guide employees to set
clear career development goals.
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Excellence in Operations

It is our pursuit to keep improving products, and it is our persistence
to put customer satisfaction first. Based on these two principles, the
Group is committed to continuously innovating product design, improving
product quality and boosting product performance to continuously
meet customer needs. The Group has established a full-process
quality supervision system from research and development and design,
manufacturing to after-sales, which is committed to providing customers
and consumers with high-quality, safe and environmentally friendly
products and services and constantly approaching to finally realize the
goal of “Empowering Your LifeScape ® 24 & UN/RFTEE".

Supply Chain Management

We believe that good supply chain management is an important link to
ensure product quality and safety. Therefore, the Group is committed to
building a sound supply chain management system, formulating strict
access conditions and standardising the development and screening
of suppliers, and regularly reviews and evaluates the performance of
suppliers, updates the list of qualified and compliant suppliers in a timely
manner to conduct standardized and perfect management of suppliers. In
addition, suppliers are our important partners on the road to sustainable
development. Therefore, the Group integrates key elements in sustainable
development into the supply chain management process, and implements
sustainable development strategies on the basis of improving supply
chain management.

Strict Procurement Standards

As at the end of the year, the Group had 793 qualified suppliers, of which
a total of 742 were located in Mainland China, 15 in Hong Kong and 36
in other regions, with a decrease of 258 as compared with 2021. In order
to standardise the Group’s procurement process of production-related
materials and finished products and thus ensure that the purchased
materials meet the specified requirements, the Group has formulated
and implemented internal systems such as the Supplier Management
System, the Control Procedures for Supplier Management and the Basic
Regulations for Procurement Management. These systems clarify the
responsibilities of the supply chain management department and other
departments, standardise a series of operating procedures such as
development, proofing and review, access, assessment and evaluation,
elimination and renewal, and provide a basis for the supply chain
management.
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Before identifying a new supplier, the Group will evaluate its samples.
After sample confirmation and supplier audit, we will screen out suppliers
that meet the requirements of the Group through processes such as
data review, on-site review, and evaluation and grading. When a new
supplier passes the evaluation, it is considered qualified for trial, and
the trial period is three months. After the trial period, the Supplier
Management Department confirms whether relevant suppliers meet the
management requirements for qualified suppliers in the trial period. If
yes, these suppliers are included in the List of Qualified Suppliers which
is updated quarterly to the relevant departments. When a supplier is
rated as unqualified in the annual audit, the Group suspends new project
cooperation and gives it a three-month rectification period while preparing
for any possible transfer-order plan. If the reexamination remains
unqualified, the BU Supplier Management Department fills in the Supplier
Elimination Application Form, which is reviewed by the department head,
the Quality Management Department and the Technology Development
Department. After review, the Supplier Management Department signs
the form, and the qualification will be cancelled once the form is approved
by the supply chain head.

e Update of qualified supplier information
to the List of Qualified Suppliers

s BHARMEREEE(ARMUERS
)

Inspection
BE

Confirmation

Ed

Assessment
$F
e Assessment and rating of suppliers,
such as on-site QSA review, sample
evaluation, social responsibility survey
o BEER T NETT DR NIRG
QSASEE  ixmeT M HEEERATE

RIE-HERELHRS

ERENEEEN > AEBREHEFK
BTG KRR REINEEHESE
PR ZBRENEZ HEIBENTED
ERE BEHNAFERERNHE
cEMEEEIEERS BRI EBR
WHERAHR ABHMEA=EF -8
HERE AMEREENRIEZS W
TERARREBEEREEEMNABENR
ame AIMA(ERHESRRIIESEE
B —REMEBBPI - W FEBFLDT
EmfoROHER AEEREEFEAN
BEHSFYATIERNEN  KERD
EHBEAE, FEBN S ABABUM
FEr E IR IE R (HE R A ARAR) K8
FIEEASEZ  mE S0 K ilih &Y
gE - HEBEENER HERGE AR
ER O BUHEHGRHERBER-

(5]

o &5 S Eo

s

e Assessment of suppliers in terms
of the qualified and timely delivery
rate for incoming materials, the price
rationality and compatibility
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The Group evaluates suppliers based on the supplier index every month,
and strictly controls the quality of suppliers’ supply through the display
of actual data to ensure the output quality of follow-up products with
high standards. The perfect admission procedure and review process
ensure the fairness and justice of supplier selection, and we also hope
that the cooperative relationship established through this process will be
more long-term and stable. At the same time, the Group also conducts a
timely and strict evaluation mechanism, with the purpose of updating and
eliminating the list of suppliers in a timely manner, so as to ensure that the
production level and product quality of suppliers meet the requirements of
the Group.
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In April, the Group launched two courses, “ISO9001:2015 Quality
Management System” and “Supplier Quality Management”, with the
purpose of deepening employees’ understanding of the supplier
management system and the ISO9001 system and further understanding
the supplier selection rules and requirements, the content and process
of the quality management system. Through the study of the quality
management system and supplier quality management, employees can
further enhance product quality awareness. We also conduct quality
training for suppliers, and require suppliers to carry out internal publicity
of inspection standards and past inappropriate content and strengthen
quality control, thereby improving the quality of incoming materials.

In order to open up boundaries and enhance cooperation to promote
communication and exchanges between the Group and suppliers, we
held the 2022 Strategic and Cooperative Supplier Conference with the
theme of “embracing openness and cooperation for mutual benefit” in
Zhuhai. A total of 25 cooperative suppliers and executives from various
departments of the Group participated in the event. At the meeting,
executives of the Group stated that in the future, we would accurately
measure the procurement classification based on product value and
product complexity. As for the supply chain, various management
mechanisms will be further optimized and implemented. With the
development vision of “openness, sharing, cooperation and win-win”,
we will gather more partners to actively enhance the value of strategic
cooperation. We also held a supplier licensing and signing ceremony at
the meeting, to express our gratitude to strategic suppliers, The Group
set up three major awards, namely the “Positive Innovation Award”,
“Efficient Supply Award” and “Excellent Quality Award”, and presented
awards to 11 suppliers with outstanding performance.
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Promoting Responsible Procurement

The Group takes social responsibility into consideration when selecting
suppliers, and conducts social and environmental responsibility risk
assessments for all suppliers. We request suppliers to fill in the EICC
Social Responsibility Survey Form and sign the Social Responsibility
Pledge, thereby urging suppliers to pay attention to corporate
governance and the sustainability of social development and to ensure
the stability and resilience of the Group’s supply chain.
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Management Measures on Suppliers’ Social Responsibility

HEBHEEEEESE

e Establish a social responsibility performance file for suppliers, and maintain evidence and records of evaluation results

and improvement measures

BUMEAAEEEREER  REHEBHFGERNAESHEROERMCER

e Select suppliers based on their social responsibility performance, and give priority to suppliers with good performance

and willingness to improve

REHREFNHEEERRBNEHER BAEEXRRITERENSNHERD

e All suppliers should sign the Social Responsibility Pledge after receiving an order or contract, and promise to abide by

local labour regulations and industry standards
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e The production department should arrange an on-site audit for suppliers at least once a year to evaluate the supplier’s
social responsibility performance and follow up on improvement measures

TEFRSEFELZH —REBERSER FEHEBLEEERE RENSHERT

e Existing suppliers who intentionally use child labour, forced labour or other violations of labour laws and regulations shall

be immediately terminated from the partnership

ZRAMBHENEEAEL REFHHAAMERFHERNER > MU LSFRAHF

Promoting Green Procurement

In order to respond to China’s “Double Carbon” goal and meet
customers’ expectations for environmental protection, the Group fully
considers the environmental performance and efficiency of suppliers in
supply chain management, and gives priority to environmentally friendly
products and services. This will balance economic and environmental
benefits and promote green procurement. We request our suppliers
of important production materials to have ISO9001, RoHS and 3C
certificates etc. to help us understand their management level at the
environmental and social aspects. We also request our suppliers to
strictly manage the chemicals in their products and work with them in
terms of energy and water conservation to reduce the negative impact
of their operations on the environment. We consider cancelling suppliers
who are punished by administrative organs of the government for
violating relevant social responsibilities.
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Product Responsibility

Adhering to the product development philosophy of “being a
recommender and practitioner of human green lighting”, the Group has
always focused on providing consumers with safer, healthier and more
environmentally friendly lighting products. We are actively building a full-
process quality assurance system from product R&D and design to after-
sales services, and are continuously driving the upgrading of product and
service quality, thereby enhancing our core competitiveness.

Product Quality Management

The Group adheres to the implementation of high-quality management
policy. We obtained the 1SO9001:2015 quality management system
certification in 2010, and with reference to such standards and related
laws and regulations®, formulated a series of standardised operation
guidelines such as the Basic Code on Procurement Management, the
Manufacturing Quality Control Procedure and the Procedure for Control
of Product Monitoring and Measurement, to establish a sound quality
management system. This year, the Group obtained seven national and
international product certifications.

Domestic certification
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China Compulsory Certification “CCC”
rh [ 5% Il 14 2 a8 sE T CCC |

China Quality Certificate “CQC”
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CQC Energy Conservation Certification
CQCHiifER

SRRC Radio Transmission Equipment

Certification
SRRCE/MR BRI R HRE

Product certifications
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@ For laws and regulations on product quality management, please
see the section headed Laws and Regulations in this Report
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International certification
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American UL certification
EEFULREE

American DCL certification
EEDCL:R:E

European Norms Electrical
Certification “ENEC”
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Product Quality
Control Stage
HpmEE
P2 1l P& B

Product
After-sales

Stage
mE B

Design and Supplier Manufacturing Procedure Management
Development Management Quality Control for Control of System for Recall
Control Procedure Besis Cogl an Procedure Defective Goods of Defective
(Rt ABAEE Procurement Procedure for Non-conforming Consumer Goods
ZHIFRR ) Management Control of Product Corrective and Customer
EresuEman Auck Monitoring and Preventative Action Satisfaction
and Assessment Measurement Control Procedure Average
System Product Labelling (R E1& mizH Measurement
(5B and Traceability 2R i
8 and the Protective (REBEE Data Analysis
(PRESEET Control Procedure 4| EFER Control Program
(FEATRE) (s R E ) PRI (R B BB E
(RBBIERE 2 A2 EEFIE)
HIED R et e e
(E By EEARAN (EEmEERNE
RS ZERIER) FHER)
(S RMANE (B A
ERE R STl F)
=9

Quality management standardized operation guidelines

HEEERELIRIFES]

In order to comprehensively improve the quality performance rate, the AZXEHIEA REAXR - FR - AEE@EE
Group launched the “Quality Month” theme activity for all employees B2 T RHEEmERERIEER T E 58 &
and suppliers during the year, aiming to further popularize quality —F$ T RHBESM#AKIEREEEMEAYG E
knowledge and enhance the subject awareness of all quality inspecton AEMNTFEEH RO ETIREER S
and production personnel. We provide employees with training courses B EIZEWNEINRE N AHAEREAETLH
on quality control to enhance employees’ awareness of quality control in BEEEEH-

various aspects.
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High-Quality Monitoring

The quality monitoring work of the Group is led by the Quality
Management Department, the Technology Department, the Planning
Department and the Production Department. Through strict
implementation of the quality monitoring process and operating
guidelines, the quality monitoring of the whole process is carried out
around the quality of incoming materials, production technology, and
product quality. The Quality Management Department regularly analyzes
the monitoring results, identifies problems, and tracks rectifications to
ensure that product quality is effectively controlled before entering the
warehouse and shipping.

RIE-HERELHRS

SmEEEER
AEBNEEHEATEXHEEEEL
fTE st B B R E AP B E R
AR ENESERNRERIEIERES
BERiEe 28 ERQE= 50
Eﬂ@%‘;lLﬁ%&ggﬁ%/ﬂ| cHEEEIHNT
HR o0 A B R4S 3R > o8R! R~ BR G RE O B
EE% I ETEABENMEERIEIAENY
BT °

N E;_-:EIJ

Incoming materials monitoring K} &2 /A

e The Quality Control Department and the Technology Department are responsible for the incoming materials monitoring.
Materials that pass the inspection are warehoused for later use, while the defective are handled in accordance with the

Procedure for Control of Defective Goods

o HERERMEIEERMENTIF SEBSROMEETABERFA  TaBREHKE (T 58 RIERIERF) R E

e For incoming materials that may probably be accepted but cannot be inspected due to urgent production needs, these
four departments shall work together to properly carry out review, identify and record, and separate semi-finished
products from finished products in movement, so as to recall and replace defective products in the future

e HRNEMBERABRZHBLEEMAERBATENRE > MEPT TS (EBIUTF B2 AR H 08  #&F ol o K Al G BR B R

B LEARBOKERTERER

Production process monitoring 4% EiB 72 & Al

e Production process monitoring mainly includes four major parts, being first inspection, self-inspection, special inspection
and in process quality control of the products and the technology, in which different responsible persons carry out
multiple inspections to identify potential problems before a product is finished, as far as possible

e HEBEBAFTESRERNISNER B ER KROAED AFRAEEABETEZARE FEN A mE

Bl A 33 Bl B AE R R

e Finally, the Quality Control Department performs sampling inspection on the packaged finished products and make a

judgement on the statistical analysis and feedbacks

o RMKEBEEEYE RN ME MR RFIERS D TNRE

Statistical analysis and feedback %t 5t %3 #7 #1 )z &

e The Quality Control Department is responsible for collecting all inspection data to conduct regular quality statistics
and analysis on incoming materials, process and finished products. If any problems identified, the department will
inform responsible departments in a timely manner, and follow up and verify the improvement measures taken by the

responsible departments

s HENSEWEMBERAKE EHRERRE BREMNAMNESMEAM DN B EEER KRS EEEPT > LR

HtBREE B EBPPIRI K E 18T
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RIE-HERELRHRS

Product Recall Procedure

The Procedure for Control of Defective Goods of the Group sets out the
control, review and disposal process for defective parts and products,
and clarifies the responsibilities of each responsible department to protect
the rights and interests of customers to the greatest extent. During the
year, there was no recall of sold or shipped products for safety and health
reasons.

&1 am & Bl F

FEBEN(FERRIERRZRF)7IBEHERE
HRERZAERANVEN FEREE
Mg TEHRKSEHMFANIFEEES X
REFREEZFED TR ZEEECDEN
EEZXERMTEZERAR@EERMEE UK
BB

For the disposal of unqualified products returned by customers, the quality department organizes confirmation and
investigation of the reasons for the failure and the relevant responsible units

HRBEEREFTSEMNEE  AmEaAMEST

AEFRRAKRERMEEE

Product recall mechanism
& Bl F
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RIE-HERELGRS

Customer Satisfaction ERREE

The Group attaches great importance to customers’ experience and AEBSGEERELNERS LT E> A1t
evaluation. To this end, we actively build customer communication FKfIEBEBIEEZEEEEBE IEREAE
channels and assign special personnel to manage customer complaint HEBX AL FAG LB KWETEE
hotlines and mailboxes to collect customers’ opinions and understand B >BREXEEZER KM EHHFERER
customers’ needs. We regularly sort out and integrate information on  FE{E BETHIBEE S > T X E MR
new products and services, so that customers can obtain accurate HIiERNAEBEEWFPEESERATSNE R
and sufficient product information directly on the Group’s official {EE b4 RMPERI(BE m=EEN=Z
website anytime, anywhere. In addition, we have established the SEEBREFE)M(FZEIHEE A m=EFHETTH|
Customer Satisfaction Measurement and Evaluation Procedures and the fEFE ) > REm=ERE T Fo

Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey Control Procedures to standardize the

satisfaction survey.

Assess the reliability of the survey according
to the response rate

AEMEOEER SHELERABENTEE

-+

Understand customers with the highest and tar t(a;t?;naf\:? k:)Yects

lowest satisfaction according to the score forgcustomefsejrvice
assigned by customers improvement

REFAERD TRHREEERSREENER 15 RENEERRETH

WEHBRKRIER

-+

Learn specific projects with the highest and
lowest satisfaction according to the scores
assigned to projects

WEEFNTHEAEERSRRENARER

=3

Customer satisfaction survey mechanism

ERmEEHET (FEF
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R ERERHRS

Customer Complaint Mechanism

In order to effectively handle customer complaints, take corrective
measures in a timely manner, and ensure product quality and service
reputation, the Group has compiled the After-sales Claims Settlement
Process and Policy, which sets out the internal after-sales service
management process to ensure the stable and efficient operation of after-
sales services. In addition, we regularly record and count the problematic
products recorded to continuously improve product quality and service
quality. During the year, the Group received a total of 117 complaints,
and resolved them based on the procedures for 100% of the complaining
customers.

The Group has set up the Customer Complaint Handling Procedures, and
the customers can provide feedback and suggestions on our products
and services through telephone, internet, and customer satisfaction
surveys. Customer Service Department, Quality Department, Technology
Department, Supply Chain Management Department and other related
departments and suppliers perform their respective duties and assist
each other to jointly resolve customer complaints. For major customer
complaints, the Group responds to customers within 4 hours, completes
containment measures within 24 hours and completes 8D (Eight
Disciplines Problem Solving) reports within 3 working days.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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Complaint Handling
Department:
Receive complaints
information

Marketing/
Quality Management
Department:
Analyse complaints
S EEIH
IR REYS

1REFERF ¢
EL S

IR ERERHRS

Quality Management
Department:
Resolve complaints

HEEM .

BRI

e |isten to customer
complaints and
identify the type of

e |dentify the responsible
department and
analyse the reasons,
and transfer it to the

complaint responsible department
o EEERIGHF for processing after
R e ]| confirmation by the

quality control director

o HBIBEEFIRDITER
H> e REDRE

e Solve the problems
of the customer
according to the
solution provided
by the Customer
Complaint Handling
Department

o IRIFFFrEEIEALIZM

EEERFIRRIE

BRI R E

B R RE
& - 6

Customer complaint handling process

B F R BT
Anti-corruption

The Group advocates a corporate culture of honesty and fairness and
has adopted a “Zero Tolerance” attitude towards any form of corruption
and bribery. For all global business activities, the Group strictly complies
with laws and regulations on anti-corruption® to prevent any acts of unfair
competition, thus creating an honest and efficient working environment.

Anti-corruption Management

The Group has formulated a series of anti-corruption systems such as
the Anti-fraud Management System and the Regulations on Incorrupt
Practices, requiring every employee to strictly abide by business ethics
and sign the Integrity and Self-discipline Undertaking. We strictly control
the flow of funds of the Group, and avoid any direct or indirect forms of
bribery, corruption, money laundering, embezzlement of public funds and
unfair competition that violate professional ethics. In addition, we evaluate
the materiality and possibility of fraud risk every year and implement the
corresponding risk control measures according to the evaluation results,
including but not limited to providing moral education and strengthening
constraints under documents and systems.

¥ For laws and regulations on anti corruption, please see the section
headed Laws and Regulations in this Report

REE

FEBREBEREZAENEEXL HEM
EANBERERTA RN TEIIN
BE-E2PMENER IR AEEH
BRETREBHEBERRER HEE

AAEENGIFTR EERESUNT
ESUE o

REBEEIF
FERFE(REFEREEGE) « (BRERE

MEVE—RIIREBHE BXRE—M1E8
ITEBRBTEXERIRE(REBREE
Z) RMBBEELERESRMA > W8

EEMERNBMRLANBR -B5 &
P WMAARRAEERFSETHER

SZERNEE I HASEHEER
BB EME KA SEMETG  BRETG
EREMEBNEREZER BEES
RICIREERHRB HFI 058X 6 EL
RE-

° REFHEBERERFSREARS
EREH

ERER
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RIE-HERELGRS

Whistleblower Mechanism ERLIR M)

The Group has established a whistle-blowing and grievance mechanism — Z<£5 @ B 2 17 3= ~ 38 5H ~ 3R E ~ 4848 [0 (1L
consisting of four channels: letters, visits, calls and the Internet, to —B2 | BYERIPITFIL S| S ENE T & B K
encourage employees and related parties with direct or indirect business B EENBEEFEZNERE HFEBEBER
relationships with us to report corruption through various set-up I ZBEERREETE WMAE R
channels to effectively play a supervisory role and prevent corruption. EESE/ER »FBHERITA L E - Bt A ZE
The Audit and Risk Control Department investigates possible business EZfN BJEFEHN B EXEEZTAETHERE I
violations and reports the investigation results to the Board of Directors B EHER KT EETTHESE - HE
or the chairman of the Board. If an employee is found to have violated ZEIRE T HERT L > BKIEMHABERESH
relevant regulations, he/she is subject to disciplinary actions, including F42E BN BIEHRHE -BREERFBEESE > H
dismissal, demotion, and position transfer, based on relevant regulations. IR EE B X B EIXRIRRIE o

If an employee is found to have violated criminal law, such a case is

transferred to judicial authorities for handling.

The whistleblower reports the corruption event via various
channels

HMBALTBBASRESHKREBEN

The Audit and Risk Control Department
investigates the event and collects evidence

Bt BIEERE TR B EGE

After confirming violations, they will be dealt with
in accordance with relevant regulations

RERITRERBEMRET UEE

When necessary, a special investigation team is established,
and external expert is invited to support the investigation

VERRIFRREE N BAEINBERGEHE

Anti-corruption reporting process
REBEEEETIE

During the year, there was no case of non-compliance with relevant laws FE R REBEETMERBBBER - HE -
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to BRERAEREBAEEEEATLENE
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering, and the Group was not R EZEREKZEREE  TEST EERNEEE
involved in any corruption cases. o
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Integrity Culture Training

In order to strengthen the business ethics awareness of all employees,
deepen the core values of integrity and honesty of the Group and further
implement the construction of the compliance management system, we
conduct integrity publicity and education for all employees and the Board,
and publish and publicize relevant institutional documents for integrity
through OA channels. During the year, we also carried out integrity
education and training for all employees, and 100% of the employees of
the Group participated in anti-corruption related training.

Intellectual Property Rights and Privacy
Protection

As an important competitiveness of enterprise development, intellectual
property rights are decisive factors in promoting the sustainable
development of enterprises. In order to improve the management
requirements of intellectual property rights and related patents, safeguard
the rights of the Group and ensure the safety and integrity of intangible
assets, the Group has formulated a series of systems and internal
policies such as the Management Procedures for Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights and the Management Procedures for Confidentiality
of Intellectual Property Rights to ensure the orderly development of
intellectual property rights. In accordance with the requirements of the
China National Intellectual Property Administration, we also refer to
documents such as the Patent Transfer Contract (Template) and Signing
Guidelines (Draft for Comments) and the Patent License Contract
(Template) and Signing Guidelines (Draft for Comments) to guide the
Group to prevent legal risks and better promote the transformation and
implementation of patents.

We actively monitor and analyze the intellectual property dynamics in
the industry to ensure that the Group’s product development and brand
building do not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others.

IPR Risk Control:
BEMBEERE :

Avoid the possibility of infringement
before the commencement of a project

IR E RER R E R A

IPR Acquisition:
FEEUH R

Obtain the maximum scope of
protection when patent licensed

HHETRERTIRAIRELE

IR ERERHRS

1 ERZE B

ATRTCE2EETITNEEEEZEEH  F1t
AEBFEHENZOBER T E—P %
EEHREERAER RMAana2EgaeT
NEEZETHEZSEEHE  FBOARE
BN ATNERNERBEGEXXHF R
FEE -RMPATEAEREIHRREZHYE
i 100%MERBE T 28T R &E B
=llle

M EERLRRE

NHERERAEELIRNEZRF N R
EHEXBERAIREERNRAEERER
mEENREEREREINEEER &
EERREN REEVEENZZ TB

A& B B FlI E P9 BF BR (R0 38 2= 12 R o B 1R
BFE) - (NHERFREEERF)E 27

FEREHNHAEETIFEFHER LHKR
BERANBEEBER 2E(EHBESH
(BiR) k#EsTHE5| (RIRBRER) ) ~ (FF
Bifsrr & E (Bik) xEsTHE5 (BRKER
BI)SEXHEEREREERRER  BFE
EZNECEM-

RPBEmEITENMERSEETEEM
DM LI RAEE N E &SR RE
BRAILMAMBER-

Existing IPR Protection:
MEEIRA A RN -

Protect existing intellectual property
rights from infringement

RENBEETREL

Three stages for protection of intellectual property rights
H E R RAE T 1ERI = A ER
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R ERERHRS

The Group obtained 3 invention patents, 26 utility model patents, 5
design patents and 2 copyrights during the year, and also applied for
16 invention patent authorizations, 12 utility model patent authorizations
and 2 design patent authorizations this year. The Group was not involved
in any litigation related to the infringement of intellectual property rights
during the year.

Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to protecting customer privacy and information
security, and implements the confidentiality of customer information
throughout the entire process from information collection, review,
maintenance to management, to eliminate the leakage of customer
information due to inadequate processing. We add clauses on customer
privacy protection to the contract, and further clarify the details of
customer information security protection work in the employment
contract and employee handbook. We require any employee not to
disclose the customer’s personal information to third parties without the
customer’s consent. All employees must strictly abide by the data privacy
policy, and any violation of data confidentiality is strictly prohibited. During
the year, the Legal Department of the Group issued the Warning Letter
on Confidentiality Obligations, which made detailed and standardized
requirements for the confidentiality obligations of NVC international and
its subsidiaries.

Product Marketing and Labelling

The Group’s product label management strictly follows the national
energy efficiency labelling style. Product labels should clarify information
such as product names, specifications, energy efficiency levels, and
safety instructions to help customers quickly understand product
features, usage scenarios, safety precautions, and other usage
precautions. In addition, we promise not to use false advertising
information and will provide consumers with accurate and authentic
products. During the year, the Group was not aware of incidents of
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy issues and remedies for the products
and services provided.

Product Innovation

Innovation is the unremitting driving force for sustainable development.
The Group adheres to the core strategy of “Technology-driven and
User First”, improves the R&D system through innovative smart lighting
solutions, and continues to explore new products and services, so as to
lead the concept of industry change and promote common sustainable
development.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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Green and Innovative Products

The Group regards improving the living environment of human beings
and improving life quality as the key direction of product research and
development. It strives to improve the life quality of consumers, realize
the vision of sustainable development and continuous evolution, and build
a more intelligent, more environmentally friendly and more technologically
advanced living space. For ensuring that production and sales of lighting
products meet national and industry standards, we further consider
environmental protection factors in product design, raw material
acquisition, etc., and continuously improve the energy efficiency of our
products and reduce the negative impact on the environment.

Customer Needs

ERBR

RIE-HERELHRS

HERANERERE

FEBEUREAREERE RALEREHE
B -FRERMERRELIR SRABESE
TERE BRUFEERT A EEN
TERR O BEBEE BFRE BREN
EEEBMB N - EEREE HENRHA
EmmEERKRITERENER L M
E—SPRERRKR RMHEERES S E®
ABRRAZNEZE THEABIERN
FERM @ REHRENEET E-

Collect market information, investigate consumer demand for environmental and
energy-saving products, then put forward the product planning schemes

BETHER AEHBEEHRFROEBEERRR RHERRE

Carry out overall conceptual design; carry on trial production of products to verify

Product Design/R&D
EmRst e

Raw Material
Assessment

R AR

Production

EmEE

Product Sales

EmEl

reliability and manufacturability; prioritise environmentally friendly materials; improve
products’ own energy efficiency

ETERAER A NERRE M ROIH L BEERBERERFEME RAERS
5 5B R

Conduct material assessments to ensure that raw materials comply with the requirement of
environmental protection regulations

ETMEEHE ) RERERM R SRFERER

Establish stringent specifications on environmental production process to verify quality
and yield rate

HIEBRMEBIRREEREREE BEEEBRRE

Reduce the use of packaging materials in operations, make promotion plan and monitor
product performance

RO EEBERNEEYEHER  fIEEENS) EEERKER

Life-cycle Management of New Products

FEmMBIE L DB EE
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R ERERHRS

Product Research and Development

NVC International adheres to the concept of “Empowering Your LifeScape
o SBASEUNFRFTFE”, and focuses on improving the living environment
and quality of life as the purpose and direction of product research and
development. Its brand-new structure of R&D and product design based
on user needs helps its brands enhance their competitiveness with
technology as the core. The Group identified the three major themes
(namely environment, life and health) as the key areas of product research
and development, and is continuing to build a matrix of scientific research
laboratories in the “Technology Iron Triangle” — the international science
and technology innovation center, the global industrial design center
and the AloT research institute to comprehensively improve technology
research and development capabilities.

The international science and technology innovation center:

Embf e

BELTERREREENIRE > XS
ABEERENMETEHEFRSERMEN
RERABE UBREREANEKRER
RETWEMERE BN REEBE RS %
OB F ] WHEE N RIF EERBE]
SARTEAERMENRREL  FERR
MEE=—A I RAEREERE - —RRR
At 2T ERE T O URAIOTH S
P ZEEFA KA

Committed to comprehensive and basic research and application, promote the progress of basic technology and cutting-

edge technology, and let cutting-edge technology efficiently drive industrial development.

E B AL :
EADHRIR B MR EEER -

HAOREEERFRERER  EHERBRMAOLRRES

The global industrial design center: Based on product development and design, it gathers top industrial designers at
home and abroad to help shorten the update iteration cycle of products.

EHREMRI O - BEREMRFZEER S REBAINERTERSTEN

B #EREE mE A B

The AloT research institute: Based on the full-link product intelligent ecosystem, it provides the latest, comprehensive

and cutting-edge technical solutions for global product and project managers.
AloTHIZFRT : ER2ERESEECERRG A2 KERRBEESEREERTN  2EM ~ FUB KR ATRIR S o

A matrix of scientific research laboratories in the “Technology Iron Triangle”

THIE 8 = Fo F T & e 4B %

Following the development principle of “users first”, the Group has
established a unique information intelligence center and a customer-
centric big data analysis database, from data collection, data access and
storage, visual query and analysis to data-driven decision-making and
product intelligence, so as to achieve a fully data-driven linkage, gain a
comprehensive insight into user needs and provide recommendations for
targeted products and solutions.

In addition, the Group owns three independent core technologies: Arcade
ballast technology, HEPAcharged (high-efficiency particulate air filters)
and disinfection technology centered on the “water” element. The Group
has applied for more than 140 patents, authorized more than 26 invention
patents, more than 108 utility model patents, and more than 7 design
patents. The Group won the “Design Excellence Award” in the China
International Lighting Design Competition many times.
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IF DESHAGN AWARD 2023
Final Jury results

Congratulations!
Your eniry has won an iF DESIGN AWARD 2022

DESIGN
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The product won the German iF Design Award 2022
E MR E20227EH iF %t

The industrial design team of the Group
Research Institute stood out among many works
with its new brand line.

On behalf of NVC International, it continues to
gain international recognition in design and R&D,
focusing on core technologies, so that the award-
winning products have received a high degree of

attention before being fully launched.

EBRMEFMLER B RBE2 T REGERS
SEFERTHRAML

ARE TERERT R E ERFERERRER

B BEEROEM CEREREE2E LETA
WHETHBSNTIE -

Community Engagement

IR ERERHRS

The special science and technology project “Smart
Light Pole” passed the acceptance of experts

MREEMERERIHERBERRK

The “Smart Light Pole” project is an application demonstration
project for the 5G industry and the Internet of Things industry in
Zhuhai. The project employs the Internet of Things technology
to develop a smart light pole system. The extension of the light
pole integrates electronic display, video monitoring, weather
monitoring and broadcast audio to realize functions such as
smart lighting, public broadcasting, Wi-Fi hotspots, remote
intelligent monitoring, real-time monitoring of environmental
data, and fault alarms.

These demonstration light poles have been installed in the
intelligent manufacturing incubation acceleration base park in
the high-tech zone and put into use, and have received good
feedback from users.

BRBRERARKBHGHYMMITERAREER R
FEMBERNHET —EE2BRAMK -ZERINEEST
BFRTR RREE RREN - EES® BREIRH-
AHERE wifiE BEEESRE RERBRBRHEE HE
HRELEE-

THRERREZRTISHESERNEBCMNEREMERN > TR
ANER BRRBREYF-

(&

TESH

FEEBHRAENBTHAEEE RHEE

The Group actively undertakes and fulfills its social responsibilities by
offering assistance to groups in need in the community. In 2022, the
Group donated a total of RMB600,000 to the society. In April 2022,
Vietnam suffered from severe pandemic outbreaks. In order to support
the Vietnamese factory, the IAQ Science and Technology Innovation
Center donated five space disinfection machines to provide a safety
guarantee for Vietnamese colleagues.

TEEEYNERREMER 20225 K
EERFATEERC0OBTARE - KF4
A rUmEBRRE A REE IR
IAQEIRI RO IR A EBH S > BEmE
FAERHZE2FRE-
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Laws and Regulations

The Group establishes and implements internal policies related to
the environment, society and governance to ensure that its business
operations comply with applicable laws and regulations. The table below

ARERER

lists the relevant laws and regulations:

Aspect
=]

Applicable laws and regulations

BRAKEERRZER

FEERIABITIRIE - LG RERER
AR BERXBEEBBEERANZE
BIER - TRINEBRERER

Section

HESHE

Resource consumption

BIRER

e Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
o (REARAMBEHNERE)

Environmental Protection
RigRE

Emissions

HEm

e Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

e Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

o (PEARAMBKRRSHEEAL)

o (PEAREMBEASEIEE)

o (REARAMEBEERBERYSRRENRGZE)

Emission Control

BEmEE ]

Environment and natural
resources
RERAAER

e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

o (REARKMBEREFREL)

Ecological Environment
Conservation
S RIRIERE

Employment and labour standards

e Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
e Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

o (REARHMEEEE)

o (REARAMBESHAREZE)

o (PEAREMBRMEAREL)

o (BUEFHREIRTE)

Protection of Employees’
Rights and Interests

REE T #a

Health and safety

REAZE

e Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases

o (REARAMBEZ2LEEE)

o (PEAREMEBERNEZE)

Health and Safety

REEAZE

Product responsibility

EmEE

e Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China

e Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
e Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China

o (PEARLMBEFZE)

o (PEARANBERESE)

o (REARHEMBEREEEE)

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Anti-corruption

R&s

e Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

¢ Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
o (REAREMERE)

o (PEARAMBIRAFEEHRFE)

Anti-corruption

&g
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Performance Data Summary

Environmental Data

IR ERERHRS

HBERBRWE
RIG IR

2021

Resources consumption

Electricity (kWh)

Petrol (Litre)

Diesel (Litre)

Natural gas (m?)

Total energy consumption (GJ)

Total energy intensity
(GJ/thousand RMB revenue)

Tap water (Tonne)

Water consumption intensity
(Tonne/thousand RMB revenue)

Greenhouse gas emissions
Total emissions (tCOze)
Direct emission (scope 1) (tCOze)

Indirect emission (scope 2) (tCO2e)

Emission intensity
(tCO2e/thousand RMB revenue)

Exhaust gas pollutants
Nitrogen oxides (Tonne)
Sulphur oxides (Tonne)

Smoke and dust (Tonne)

Wastewater pollutants
Chemical oxygen demand (Tonne)
Ammonia — Nitrogen (Tonne)

Lo Apart from intensity data, the environmental data for 2022
disclosed in this report only includes data for “Continuing
Operations” (Greater China Business Center, Zhejiang Jiangshan
Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong Zhuhai Base and

Vietnam factory)

BiIRHFE

BN (E/TER)
U (27

$om (A7)
RAR (LT3 K)

FEUHFEBE (TIEE)
BEEREE (THEE

TRARBEXER)
B2k (R HE)

BEREHR

BYWE (RE_SERES)

B (BE-)
(R —HIERES)
B EE (8E )
(R A EREE
HmmE
(RE—S{CREE
TRARBEZER)

EERISHM
A=Y (ANE)
Aty (R
e =N ONIE)

Bk
(ERB AR (A0H)

24 (R1)

26,316,486 24,134,309
41,831 57,639
17,180 10,836

- 404,585
96,688 104,860
0.0512 0.0442

173,862 133,467
0.0921 0.0562
15,161 15,780
153 1,057
15,008 14,724
0.0080 0.0066
0.2318 0.0663
0.0007 0.0010
0.5044 0.4276
0.33 0.62
0.10 0.16

S PR EBURSN » AR S FTI BERY2022F 1R
BHERGEMFECEERE (KRER
EFRRo T DTILEM s 85 EEM
EERFRSE M KR TR RS
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R ERERHRS

Hazardous waste

Total amount of hazardous waste
generated (Tonne)

Waste oil (Tonne)

Sludge residuals (Tonne)

Packages for waste mineral oil (Tonne)

Oily wastewater (Tonne)

Waste packaging drums (Tonne)

Waste lamp tubes (Tonne)

Activated carbon (Tonne)

Waste circuit boards (Tonne)

Others (Tonne)

Non-hazardous waste

Total amount of non-hazardous waste
generated (Tonne)

Recycled waste (Tonne)

Non-recyclable waste (Tonne)

Consumption of packaging materials
Total amount of packaging materials (Tonne)
Plastic bags (Tonne)

Colour boxes (Tonne)

Paper boxes (Tonne)

Labels (Tonne)

Others (Tonne)

Employee Data

BEEBEREY
BEEEEYBE (R

BEH (A N)

FIERI5TE (ANE)
BEEREY R (RH)
ZMEEK (ANE)
FEELEEAR ()
BEEE (RHE)

EMER (RME)

FEEE B R AR (ANE)
Hith (2 1)

—REEY
—RREEYBE (R

Bl E (AN
RO e (AN

BRERMHERE
BEMEHEE (ANE)
BRR (R

EF N UNIL))

AAE (A1)

R (QH)

H A (A 0)

934
560
374

27,572
67
2,889
24,590

21

STHE

Total number of employees
Gender distribution
Male

Female

Functional distribution
Management

Front-line

Age distribution

<30

30-50

> 50

Regional distribution
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

HWAH
%553
B
ZM%

B RE 53 R
(=Pl
B4R
FHD M
<30
30-50

> 50
& 53
Rl
5B
pSBN
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2,246

835
1,411

501
1,745

309
1,723
214

1,925

313

9.58

0.10

0.12
2.84

6.50
0.02

1,288
875
413

30,588
85
4,124
26,287
19

73

2021

2,627

1,068
1,559

538
2,089

532
1,840
255

2,223
10
394
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2021

Employment type distribution BEEE DM

Full-time £ 2,246 2,626
Part-time I - 1
Contract type distribution BEER DM

Long-term contract RHEME 480 587
Fixed-term contract EEHER 1,766 2,040
Educational distribution BEDM

Doctor’s degree L - 1
Master’s degree [zl 24 28
Bachelor’s degree wH 278 349
College degree A= 294 384
Below college degree AEMUTF 1,650 1,865
Turnover - by age MEKBER—EER

Number of employees lost MEAE

<30 <30 563 594
30-50 30-50 856 876
> 50 > 50 115 126
Quarterly average turnover rate FTEFEREE

<30 <30 45.55% 27.91%
30-50 30-50 12.42% 11.90%
> 50 > 50 13.43% 12.35%
Turnover - by region MEBER—HE

Number of employees lost mEAE

Mainland China 73t 1,231 1,367
Hong Kong a5E 1 3
Overseas o 302 226
Quarterly average turnover rate FETHEREE

Mainland China 73t 15.99% 15.37%
Hong Kong 5% 3.13% 7.50%
Overseas &b 24.12% 14.34%
Turnover - by gender KB — &R

Number of employees lost MEANE

Male B 843 801
Female g 691 795
Quarterly average turnover rate FEFHERKE

Male B4 25.24% 18.75%
Female i 12.24% 12.75%
New hire - by age MIBEER—1RER

Number of new employees EIDN YN

<30 <30 303 538
30-50 30-50 462 677
> 50 > 50 29 44
Quarterly average new hire rate SEFHYMARE

<30 <30 24.51% 25.28%
30-50 30-50 6.70% 9.20%
> 50 > 50 3.39% 4.31%

BELERERARASE 202263
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2021

New hire - by region

Number of new employees
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

Quarterly average new hire rate
Mainland China

Hong Kong

Overseas

New hire - by gender

Number of new employees

Male

Female

Quarterly average new hire rate
Male

Female

Training performance - by gender
Total number of employees trained
Male

Female

Percentage of employees trained
Male

Female

Total training hours

Male

Female

Average training hours

Male

Female

Training performance - by function
Total number of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Percentage of employees trained
Management

Front-line

Total training hours

Management

Front-line

Average training hours
Management

Front-line

Occupational safety and health training™

Total training person-time
Total training hours

o The data of occupational safety and health training covers data

HHEBERLHE
E NN

A

0

B4
FETHOMARE
bl

)

o
MIBEIE R — R
MABAB

St

2t
FETHMARE
St

7t
EANER ST — = R
RNBAZ

St

2k

ZiEAL

EE

2k

ZEI 48 I 88

St

2t

T 39 52 31 B 25
St

oy i

BB AR R 1B O — HR B AE
RNBAH

BIiE

EIES

ZiESLE

EIiE

Ik

A48 B 8K

B

Al #43

T 39 52 31 B 25
=]

A 43

WE 22 EEREI
BIlBmAR
4B BT B8

of Zhejiang Jiangshan Base, Shanghai Qingpu Base, Guangdong

Zhuhai Base and Vietnam NVC
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1

650 1,169

1 3

143 87
8.44% 13.15%
3.13% 7.50%
11.42% 5.52%
474 651
320 608
14.19% 15.24%
5.67% 9.75%
577 873
1,123 1,406
69.10% 81.74%
79.59% 90.19%
11,269 11,479
18,131 19,728
13.50 10.74
12.85 12.65
310 330
1,390 1,949
61.88% 61.34%
79.66% 93.30%
8,574 3,665
20,826 27,642
17.11 6.63
11.93 13.23
2,665 7,689
7,507 15,466

BEZEREBIHEERENRTILUAE
e EESHEEM ERFEEMAEE
BTHEE
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IR ERERHRS

Operational Data EIE e
o e TR

Total number of suppliers T FE R 48 8 / £ 793 1,051
Regional distribution it & 73

Hong Kong SEME / ER 15 14
Mainland China e 5 / ES 742 998
Other regions HAhh & / EX 36 39
Community engagement HESH

Public welfare investment N IN RMB10,000 BT 60 4.5
Hours of voluntary work EETIERE Hour INBF - =

Content Index

The content index of this Report includes the Global Reporting Initiative
Sustainability Reporting Standards, and the Environmental, Social, and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide
EARGM(RE - EREBRIESIDEKX

RER3I

FRERNBRII B (ERBSEFZEBA
REZREBESRE)REBBMEIZAER
EHRAIMBR -+ E(RRE - HEREAR
CEEIRA

Section/Remark

B8 e

Governance
Structure

EFEEHNBREIUTRE !

A statement from the board containing the following elements:
(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;

(if) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation of
how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

=AY .
%:1@;

(i) REEZEHRE - HEREREEN

(ii) EEENRE - HEREREESHREE  QERNTME

Board Statement

BEEZRLKEEEARE HEREAEBER (QEHET
AEBHER BORE  REFRUNAREBRE - HERER
HEAERETER URBHEEIT AEBNREG
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RIR-HERE

AEE

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXZ(RE - HEREBHRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Reporting Principles

BERA

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the following
Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report:

(@) Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process
to identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG
factors; (i) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a
description of significant stakeholders identified, and the
process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

(b) Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools used, and source of
conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

(c) Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

HUTHRERVEGHRBRE - HEREBRSTTNEBNML IR

i

(@) SN RBE - HEREAREERE (VRN ERRRE L&
REBARNBEENEZRE ((HINRDETHNESHE B
HABENFNERLARBETAFTHEZHENBRENER

(b) Bt ERERME SERER WEA) NIREHE R
2,2 Et TR MR A6 A A B R SRRV E A o

© —RMETABRTRRE - HEAREABRSPRER HE
FRAREVIERNEE > EFAEMTER SR LBRMNIER

Reporting Guideline and
Principle

HEIESIRIRE]

Reporting Boundary

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and
describing the process used to identify which entities or operations
are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the
issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change.
RPRE - HEREARSHNRSER LI POEN L BRESET
MARBE - HEREARSNBRE SERBEZ LS BITAR
REAE R REEHFRE -

Reporting Boundary and
Reporting Period

BREBRKREREH
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXG(RE - HEREBRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

A. Environmental
AIRIR

Aspect A1:
Emissions

B EAT:HEK

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIKRE

BRERKEERBEHI - @Ak RItNEES - AERETERYH
EEFH:

(a) BUR ; &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHEBAZEZRRRANER

Emission Control

HERIE S

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective
emissions data

RSARIERA1Y  BHRYEEA AR SR

Energy Consumption,
Emission Control

BERHFE ~ HEIREE

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

BE# @E1) ReREE (BE2) BEREHE
WE CULAMEH) Kk (WERA)

R A RIGIEAL.2

TEMUSESEN BERKHH)

Energy Consumption

BETRIHFE

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility)
FREAESRBEEMRE UAMEE) & (&

R ZE MNUSESEM BEXRMH)

RS R M I51RA1.3

Emission Control

izl 9iel

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility)
FFELBEZEEYES URMWE) Kk &

B ZE MUSESEM BERMH)

R E IS RA1.4

Emission Control

izl el
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXZ(RE - HEREBHRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

KPI A1.5

RAREIEIRALS

Description of emissions target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them

WP U VHFRE B R BESELEER
FT EREX 9 27 B

Emission Control

HERE

KPI A1.6

R REXIEIRAL.6

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
HIlRIEE E B EEEYN S X KPR
5T BVIRLEE B AR I 7 3 B 5 L B AR PR ERERAY
& B

Wastewater and Waste

BE K K BE )

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

BEA2:BRER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and

other raw materials

—RIRE

ERERER (GEER  KREMEMR) BB

Energy Consumption,
Emission Control

BEROH FE ~ BEEE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Energy Consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

RBEAMIERA2.1 RELAOMERRK REHER WE R | EREE
M) B E (UTFETRESS) REE @MU
BESEMU -SERMETE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Management of Water
per unit of production volume, per facility) Resources

FRENIEIRA2.2 REKEREBE USESEMN -SBRE |KEREE
TE)

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) Emission Control
set and steps taken to achieve them

R ENIEIRA2.3 WAPTET VA REA N m B R R R IEDE BEmE
L6 5 AR PR ERER AT A BR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Management of Water
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Resources
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them

R ENIEIRA2.4 Ha S KEGE A AR LRI B AR ERE ) UkFrs] | KEREIE
IR K B AR R 2 3E BB L B AR P ERER
1 2 B

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Packaging Materials
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with Management
reference to per unit produced

FRENIERA2.5 W@ PMTABEMRNGEE UUIAEE) & BEMKEIE

GNER) SEESGLE
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXG(RE - HEREBRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Aspect A3:
The Environment and
Natural Resources

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources

Ecological Environment
Conservation

[EEA3: — RN ERRIRIBRE
RBERRAER
BRETAHRRERRABERENEAT BHBR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Ecological Environment
activities on the environment and natural Conservation
resources and the actions taken to manage
them
A R 4R B 1RABA B ER RS HIRR AR ARE RN EATE ERRIRIE(RE
KERIRERGMEZENTH
Aspect A4: General Disclosure Tackling Climate Change

Climate Change

JEHEA4:
mIREE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer
— RN EE

HAREHERERAUEEHETAEERENERRBEERNEEN
BR

& TR BAE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them

RS A RIEIRAL HMEERAIEEHETAEETZENEKR

RIZEMER > REHITH

Tackling Climate Change

FEH RIREE

BELERERARASE 202263

157



158

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGKRS

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

Section/Remark

ERARBA(RE - HEREARIESIDER BHE R
B. Social
B4t
Aspect B1: General Disclosure Employee Protection

Employment

EBEB1:{EE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare

—RRIKE

BRAHN R E - BEREA TERS R TEHRE 2
REBAR MU E A58 e @ F Y

(a) BR; &

(b) BTHETABEAZENHERZEZRRRANER

BI{RE

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region

Employee Composition

FA R AENIE1EB1.1 BRI EERE - FRANRMEE DNE |EITAEMRK
B
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Employee Composition

and geographical region
FARENIEEB1.2 HMUR - FRAN Rt e B DHEE MK E

B4
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXG(RE - HEREBRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards

Health and Safety

EEB2:EREARE — MR E EEEZE
ERRHZE2TIFRIERREREREHELBEN
(@) BE &
(o) ETHBTABEAZENHEZERRAINER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Health and Safety
R A IE1EB2.1 AT ERGMIE TR A BUR LB RERZE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and Safety
FARENIEEB2.2 REIBGBATIIERH REEZS
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored
FABENIEIEB2.3 WIMPTERAN Y S R R B 2 FE T U AER | REER S
HITRERGE
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Development and Training

Development and
Training

/B EB3:# B R i

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—RRIRE

BRI E B BT T BB R R i SERYEUR o it 15 IR &)

B R R aE sl

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior

management, middle management)

Development and Training

FA B AN IE1EB3.1 BRI REESSE WSRERE HREE | BERE
B 2lonZiIlEEE DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Performance Data
employee by gender and employee category Summary
FARENIEEB3.2 RHUMIKEEERNE D BRLEETMZIIN |HEBERRRE

THR#
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXZ(RE - HEREBHRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Aspect B4:
Labour Standards

[EmEB4:5%5 T 48|

General Disclosure
Information on:
(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour

—RINE
BREPIEE T osas % T
(@) B ; &

(b) BITHETABEARENHERZEZRERRANER

Protection of Employees’
Rights and Interests

REETI#n

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

Protection of Employees’
Rights and Interests

R R A IE1EB4.1 4 g 5 48 BS 1B 1 5O 45 I LAREE 92 B8 T Kz 54 RIES TR
BT
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Protection of Employees’

practices when discovered
B R A X IE1EB4.2 L TE 35 TR IE AR 1B I B H BR A R 1B R BT ER EY
1 2 B

Rights and Interests
RIEBI#%m
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IR ERERHRS

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

Section/Remark

ERERGMRIR - HEREQRIESIDER =3 F
Aspect B5: General Disclosure Supply Chain
Supply Chain Management
Management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain
[EEBS5: i FE 52 B I8 — RN HEEHRE IR
BIRHAERNIRIE R T RBER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply Chain
Management
RAEMIEIEB5.1 RHMEISHNHEEEE HEEHREIE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain
suppliers, number of suppliers where the Management
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored
FRENIEEB5.2 A ERMEAEEENES nERITERMIE |HEESE

A E’Jﬁi\fﬁ%@ DB RBHRRITRESR
737

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored

FARANIEIEB5.3 M BRAMHRESERONRIERTE

REBVIEG) > U R ABRA AT R BE R 75 0%

Promoting Responsible
Procurement

EBSEERE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored

FASEARIEIEBS.4 N EREMSERIEESAIIRMEMKR
BHIBA > LR MITRERE 5

Promoting Green
Procurement

EBRGRE
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Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXZ(RE - HEREBHRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility

[BEB6:E M AT

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

—RRINER

BRFEHESMRBNEREZ2 - EE - RREMESEURHE
5 ER

(a) B ; &

(b) BTHETAREAZENEBERERRAINER

Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

Product Responsibility

FRENIEEB6.1 CEENEEXERAERTRZL2EEEER EmEiE
mZAEWNE 7t

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product Quality
complaints received and how they are dealt Management
with

FRENIERB6.2 FEENERKRBNEHFEEUREE S EnEESEIE
%

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing Intellectual Property

and protecting intellectual property rights

RIS EMISIRB6.3 ik B AR K (RIS A8 A AR A R BV 1E B

Rights and Privacy
Protection

R 3H 2 T PR AL (R IE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

recall procedures

Product Recall Procedure

FARENIEIEB6.4 I MEMEBREKERLBKE R EE A B

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Intellectual Property
and privacy policies, and how they are Rights and Privacy
implemented and monitored Protection

FARENIEIEB6.5  HEIUH BB HIRMRIERFABREER  WRERHN | F#EE K EFARE

TRERER*
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGKRS

Requirements of HKEx’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide

ERXG(RE - HEREBRIESDER

Section/Remark

B

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

Anti-corruption

E@EB7:R&ES —ARIREE REE
BRAM LR 8RR BREFAOR B ¢
(@) BE &
(b) ETHBTABEAZENHEEZERRAINER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or | Management
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases
RRENIEREB7.1 NERAAHETAIEESRELESHE REEEEIF
NE SR EENE B KfFhas
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are | Management
implemented and monitored
FARENIERB7.2 S ERRRBRER URERRITRE (REBEEIF
275k
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided | Integrity Culture Training
to directors and staff
FARENIEEB7.3 M ESFKETRMENKRESE B ZERERREE
Aspect B8: General Disclosure Community Engagement
Community
Investment Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests
[EEBS:HERE — RN E HE2H
EUHte2HlRTREEMTIHERENREREERIDHSER
HE Mm@ EBER
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Engagement
A R A 15 18B8.1 EIEREE HE2H
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community Engagement
FARENIEIEB8.2 EEIHEBEMBAER e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGKRS

GRI Indicators

GRIE1R

Direct Response/

Indicator Description Section Reason for Omission
1518 i3 =11} BHibORE 4AEREE
GRI 1: Fundamentals 2021
GRI1: | E&#2021
GRI 2: General Disclosure 2021
GRI 2: | —RRIFEE2021
The Organization and Its Reporting Practices
AR T HL R &
2-1 Organizational details Annual Report — Company
Profile

2-1 A EIER FR—NBNAB
2-2 Entities included in the organization’s sustainability Reporting Boundary and

reporting Reporting Period
2-2 MABEPIREERRENER BREERNBRSEH
2-3 Reporting period, frequency and contact point Reporting Boundary and

Reporting Period
2-3 BRER REEXREEF R HREBER RS
2-4 Restatements of information - No restatement of
information
2-4 EEEI = mESEM®M
2-5 External assurance = No external assurance
sought yet

2-5 S EREESE - Wi = KSR EE SR
Activities And Workers
EENEL T RS
2-6 Activities, value chain and other business Annual Report — Report of

relationships

EE (R A MRS RA R

Directors

Supply Chain Management
FR-EBEFEGRS
HEEEEIE

2-7
2-7

Employees
8T

Employee Composition
B4

2-8

Workers who are not employees
BIZHNIEE

Employee Composition

BTHAMN

164
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERER

WS

Direct Response/

Indicator Description Section Reason for Omission
51R it =4: 1] BEEERE EREE
Governance
=L
=R
2-9 Governance structure and composition Annual Report — Corporate
Governance Report
2-9 EIRRB R AN FR-CEEARRS
2-10 Nomination and selection of the highest Annual Report — Corporate
governance body Governance Report
2-10 R BIAMIEHIIZ 4 g e FR-CEEARS
2-11 Chair of the highest governance body Annual Report — Corporate
Governance Report
2-11 B ERMBINEIE FR-—CEERRS
2-12 Role of the highest governance body in overseeing |Board Statement
the management of impacts
2-12 TEERXEFE R EAMENEEER EEgEH
2-13 Delegation of responsibility for managing impacts Annual Report — Corporate
Governance Report
2-13 REEBRXENSTEE FR-—PEEARRS
2-14 Role of the highest governance body in Board Statement
sustainability reporting
2-14 EEEAKETFEERRSETNIER EEX88H
2-15 Conflicts of interest Annual Report — Corporate
Governance Report
2-15 ) 2 7 58 FR-GCEEARS
2-16 Communication of critical concerns Stakeholder Engagement
and Materiality Identification
2-16 EEMUIBEN SR FaaERA 7 BB R BB
Bt %E
2-17 Collective knowledge of the highest governance Board Statement
body
2-17 BEERKENERAH EEx888H
2-18 Evaluation of the performance of the highest Annual Report — Corporate
governance body Governance Report —
Remuneration Committee
2-18 HEsEaRBNERETE FR—BEERRSE MM
ZE®
2-19 Remuneration policies Annual Report- Corporate
Governance Report —
Remuneration Committee
2-19 M R FR—BEERRS MM
ZEg
2-20 Process to determine remuneration Annual Report— Corporate
Governance Report —
Remuneration Committee
2-20 EHWNNER FR—PEEARRS MM
ZEg
2-21 Annual total remuneration ratio Annual Report— Corporate
Governance Report —
Remuneration Committee
2-21 FERAFML =X FHR-CEEAMS N
ZEg
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGKRS

Direct Response/

Indicator Description Section Reason for Omission
51R Faatt =8:0] EEERE HREE
Strategy, Policies And Practices
BBR - BRI B %
2-22 Statement on sustainable development strategy Sustainability Management
2-22 RAN D548 3 R BRIV B2 B3 AEEERERE
2-23 Policy commitments Sustainability Management
Environmental Protection
Employee Protection
Excellence in Operation
2-23 BUR A AFEERERE
IRIBRE
BT RE
FHEE
2-24 Embedding policy commitments Employee Protection
2-24 Bh S BUER AR ETRME
2-25 Processes to remediate negative impacts Customer Complaint
Mechanism
2-25 wHRaEFENER =R &S
2-26 Mechanisms for seeking advice and raising Customer Complaint
concerns Mechanism
2-26 SREZBENIE H BI85 ey SE ST
2-27 Compliance with laws and regulations = No major violations
2-27 BRARER - mEREREN
2-28 Membership associations Sustainability Management
2-28 HENHEER AFEERERE
Stakeholder Engagement
FZ AR5 2 M
2-29 Approach to stakeholder engagement Stakeholder Engagement
and Materiality Identification
2-29 R AR 2Bl A A ) 25 48 B 75 7 8 R i Bl 2
Bt E
2-30 Collective bargaining agreements - Not applicable for the places
of operation, and abide by
relevant laws and regulations
2-30 SR R = BT E A 0 B T ERE

ERER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR ERERHRS

Direct Response/

Indicator Description Section Reason for Omission
1513 et =4: 1] BiZEIE AiEER
Material Topics

BEMEE

GRI 3:  Material Topics 2021

GRI3: BEEMEHBE2021

Disclosure of Material Topics

BEMRENKEE

3-1 Process to determine material topics Stakeholder Engagement
and Materiality Identification

3-1 HEBEMZRBENBGERER M tERH BB R H BB
BB

3-2 List of material topics Stakeholder Engagement
and Materiality Identification

3-2 BEHMEBEE M tEREH BB R H B8
BB

GRI Economic Performance 2016

201:

GRI B RIF2016

201 :

3-3 The management approach and its components Annual Report —
Management Discussion
and Analysis

3-3 B EREAME D FR-EBEBANMEFR

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Annual Report — Financial
Highlights

201-1 EXMoENERKEEE FR—UBRE

201-2 Financial implications and other risks and Tackling Climate Change

opportunities due to climate change

201-2 HRREECENNYBEEREMRARMNEE & | IR B

201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other Annual Report — Report of

retirement plans directors

201-3 ElE @A 5t B A E MR KT E FR-BEERS

201-4 Financial assistance received from the government | Annual report — Notes to
the Consolidated Financial
Statements

201-4 T BT H#E 1S BY B BUIE B FR—GEMBRRMEE

GRI Employment 2016

401:

GRI E{%2016

401 :
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELGKRS

Direct Response/

Indicator Description Section Reason for Omission
51R Faatt =4:1] EEERE EREE
3-3 The management approach and its components Employee Protection
3-3 BIEFHEREARE D BTRE
401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover Employee Composition
401-1 WEBIMEI REHE BT4AM
401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are Protection of Employees’
not provided to temporary or part-time employees Rights and Interests -
Compensation and Benefits
401-2 ER2EE TIRMM AR RS TR fRPE 8 T — & bl a8 f
401-3 Parental leave Protection of Employees’
Rights and Interests -
Compensation and Benefits
401-3 AR fRPE 8 T#Em — & b AE Al
GRI Customer Health and Safety 2016
416:
GRI EREREZE2016
416
3-3 The management approach and its components Product Responsibility
— Product Quality
Management
3-3 B A EREARE D EnEf-EREEEE
416-1 Assessment of the health and safety impacts of Product Responsibility
product and service categories — Product Quality
Management
416-1 HELMRBBEEETEREZ2ZENTG EnEf-EREEEE
416-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning the health |- No incidents of non-
and safety impacts of products and services compliance during the year
416-2 EmMRBEANERAZEZENTEREMY = FRETEREMH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NVC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NVC
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 177 to 344,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Standards”) issued by
the International Accounting Standard Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

ENVR PR Gl

=2

RETERIZERERABRKRER
(REEFHSFMUETLEIBERAE)

BER

KIZEEN (LT IEM) EEsT2E
REI7TTEE44BEELTEHEZERERAE
(MERE) REKWB AR HBIEEE))
WiRE T EHRE BFER2022F128 31
HHNGEUERRERBEZBLEEFEDN
GeERRUNGEEERREMZE WA
R EORGREFRNGEERERER U
FizE M HRERNT BFEEANSTTEHER

B

BMRBR LERSMBRRREDER
St EEZEE (BHREAENZEE))
BB HBRS 2R (TERMBRS
ZR)) EEMAFHRER SEER2022
F1I2BNBNGEMBRARBEZALL
FENGEVBREREGERETRE
WERREEBLARINKERELER
%O

EREVER

HMERBEEEBGHMOAE ((EB G
AE)) EMNEBESER (EBBHE
Al ETES - HMEXFTER T AERN
EEEREEARS MU EA GRS HTR
RAENEETI BOPFE—D B RE
EEAEHMASEMNEEZSHMBERET
A (Fsr8U)) - HMBUY SEE TERE
TTRIRNEMEXBREEE - HMAMEGE
HPFMESHES EEERTERBEEMS
HANBSERREHER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MEEEE

FSEEtFE R

HEBSHEZESRBRFAOEEHE R
MR EMHBRRNBARSEEZN
FR-BEFHEEAERMBABZRERSY
BREAKRMASRRKHETREN - HFMAL
EHELESREHEBIER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEStNARERARESFR

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate,
Brilliant Lights International Holding Pte. Ltd. (“BLIHP’)
F—5 B & 2\ FBrilliant Lights International Holding
Pte. Ltd. (TBLIHPJ) #9717 8t 1B 571

We identified the impairment assessment of interest
in an associate, BLIHP, as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the total
assets of the consolidated financial statements, and
significant judgment and estimates are involved in
determining the recoverable amount of interest in
BLIHP.

I H B E A BIBLIHPEY &5 8 (B 5T (4 FE & 4 R 38
B FER EHRGRENGOUBERRBEENEE
Mo BN E E R BLIHPH # 4 2 Al Bl 28R B R
FI B R k5t o

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

QOur procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of interest in BLIHP included:
HPIA RN BLIHPRY #E & B (E s B2 o B4

° Understanding and evaluating the key control
over the management’s impairment assessment
process of its interest in BLIHP;

. T R R T E IR E p H S BLIHPRY #E & Rl B 5T
HIBIZRFTETHN EZ T ;

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuer and obtaining an
understanding of its scope of work and terms of
engagement;

. TEBUSEREEGEMNBEREN BE
RENRESHMN T RETFHERIEBER ;



Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BB EE

Independent Auditor’s Report
EARVR 2 GIES

MEEFFE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANEANAREMRESEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest
in BLIHP with carrying amount of approximately
RMB818,152,000 which represented 24.9% of the
net assets of the Group. As disclosed in Note 24
to the consolidated financial statements, BLIHP
is engaged in investment holding, manufacture
and sales of lamps, luminaries, lamp transformers,
lighting electronic products and other appliances.
Due to the deteriorated financial performance of
BLIHP, the Group’s management conducted an
impairment assessment of the interest in BLIHP by
comparing the recoverable amount of the interest in
BLIHP which were estimated based on value in use
calculation with the carrying amount.
JR2022F12A31H ) EEENBLIHPES #D IR
HENAAREKS18,152F it BEEBFEEN
24.9% ° MU AR B M F5ER R MY 5E24 PR I B8 > BLIHPIE S
REERURBERIEEN R BE ERHERS
RS FEm KR EMERS c HRBLIHPEY B F ik T =
6> EEEETIEEBBLERNBLIHPRE M AU E &
B (REFAEAEsE b BERmEHNBLIHPH#
mEIT R EFT G o

° Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs, namely sales growth
rates, gross margin and perpetual growth rates,
based on the historical financial performance of
BLIHP and the industry trend; and

. RIEBLIHPE R I B RIFRITE S > HAkI#E
BRREA (BEHEERE  ERX R KA
EX)NEEM; &

° Engaging our internal valuation expert to
evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation
technique, i.e. discounted cash flows method,
and the reasonability of discount rate used in
the value in use calculation.

. ZEBEMVAFHEER T Gt EERABER
FRANMGEESZE BIHTRREREE) RITTFE
HEE M-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

EEEE

FREEFFE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANEANAREMRESEE

The Group’s management engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to assist them to
determine the recoverable amount of interest in
BLIHP, based on the past performance of BLIHP
and the expectations from the Group’s management
for the market development estimate. The value in
use calculation is based on the investor’s share of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by BLIHP, based on certain
key assumptions and inputs, namely sales growth
rates, gross margin, perpetual growth rates and
discount rate, used to estimate future cash flows.
EEENEEEZEB U SEREXGEMBEIKE
RIEBLIHPHBAERIEU R EEEBEBH MG E
Bst B e ERBLIHPZ R eI W Bl £ RE o 51 &
FREBENKREEEBGTERBLIHPE ZE £ NG R
REERENRE MEMGSHERE THERR
WA BB RRBEREMANEEEREER EH
K KABERRIFTREK

Based on the value in use of the interest in BLIHP,
impairment loss of RMB45,724,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
ERBLIHPH #m N AEE > 81E2022412831H
IFFERRBEREBARE45,724F T
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report,but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ENVR PR Gl

Hthi5 8

EAREFSRAHHEHMEEEE -HMER
BETNENFRANER  BEFAEERS
MBRERBAISH N EPRZEERS o

BB FEEMBERROBREL A REH M
ER RAUTAHZFHMEESEREIM
TR B SR o

MEMAEGREMBRENES  RANE
EFREBHMERS ELLBET  ZEHEM
ERRERRGAMBBREANKMESRTE
BPFTRNBERFEENBENE MU
FEEANBRRANBR - ERNKMAER
THRIF IREMAIXSEMEEFEE
AERRL APARERERZFE-EES
H HZfIREEARS -

EERABEMGRESMBHRRA
AENEE

ERRAEFRAAERBEAERESEE
EERMHNBERMBEREENREEBAF
HFHANKEERGREEMPTENEEH
BRE ITHEISAEETVBREN
MUANFEAREFAERMERNEKR
ERRA BN EEES-

ERUGEEMBRERF - EFQEHNE &
EERECENREN EEBRIBER TR
BHEFBEEABANER UAERERE
KERGSHER RIFEFEER S5EHE
BENEFELEE NHEEMBEERENER

GE

REBREEEE SEENMHHRSE

e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

Z B EM L&
HEE

HFNER EHGECHMBREBRERES

Hisd

R 75 ¥R R KR

A EEARRGFNERMEBRNEKNES
Bﬁﬂtﬂ%g’fé@{%m Iﬁﬂ@%ﬁzﬁa%

WZHMRS - HAEZREAMARENE
BERm BT (FRER RSRMANE
RoBRIEZAREREEMBE R - HAA
EREHREHAETEEAMEMALTE L5
AEAFNEE aEBRIBESKTHRFRSE
BAERZZREBESFERETHE
TRABRE SR E KRR - $HRMR I A
DR EREFEi iR S e MR G EFRH E M
BRI K EBEREF BiRE M B IRKRE
REABEGMBERERMAFLNLEER
B RIBRNERRA ARG FEEN-

EREBEEBEFENETESHNBRESR
RPERBTEXHE RETEFRERE
B o FFI7F

. s ) Kz 5T 1 AR & BE 5 ¥R AR B S BRGE
8 5 5 1T B B AY B K #6 58 Rt /L Bg
HELERBRRE RAITEZRER
éﬁ“ﬁﬁ%&@;%f@uuﬁ%&ﬁﬁ’]
BERIEMER - AR IEFR Y Kk &
mARE BRER Y ERRL 0K
BRAEERZ £ AL RAEHRE
HMEFEMERNWERERRAL R
?lﬁ%ﬁﬁ%—i&zﬂ@%kﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ@
BB A

. THREARS AR AP URE
BENBEFSEF BENLIEY B
EENSEENBEUNMEERER -

. FEEEMHEAEER
R AE & 5t & st AR E
PE o

ESRTR-R
&



Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

%
i

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

-
=8
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Independent Auditor’s Report
EA VR 2 G

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka |.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

:-\7r A j:ﬁ 15—%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

Revenue
Cost of sales

GROSS PROFIT

Other income
Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Impairment losses in respect of
goodwill

Impairment losses in respect of
interests in associates

Impairment losses under expected
credit loss model, net of reversal

Other expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss) profit for the year attributable

to owners of the Company

Profit for the year attributable to

non-controlling interests

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (RMB cents)

2022 2021
20224 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
et TFARYE TFARK
A 5 1,888,447 2,374,947
#HE B A (1,456,995) (1,712,515)
EH 431,452 662,432
Haug A 7 49,194 46,524
HihiBm 8 (40,695) 986
HERDIHEH (270,188) (272,684)
EEEHR (225,988) (256,222)
ERBENREERL 23
= (24,309)
BREARBE AT ERN 24
T EE K (50,148) =
TAREEERAEET 9
BY R (B 38 55 0 0 BR 8 149 (4)
Hih& 10 (43,207) (69,811)
&R 11 (16,641) (7,528)
B E N B 4 142,930 (16,394)
el (B538) FH (23,142) 62,990
Frig & A 12 (14,342) (29,524)
A F (F518) FH 13 (37,484) 33,466

KATHEE NEMLAE (B518)
F (66,119) 5,814
JE 2 ) 14 4 2 FE i AN S A1) T

28,635 27,652
(37,484) 33,466
2022 2021
20224 20214

sk (58 &2
EXK (ANRED) 17 (1.56) 0.14
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

maiEmREMEEIAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (EXPENSE)

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

— Exchange differences arising
on translation from functional
currency to presentation
currency

A (§518) FE

Htt2EKA (BR)

HETREN N EERm <HEE -

—RNEERRESD
2HEBEENEREZE

— Fair value loss on investments in  —# A A BE AHMEE

equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”), net of tax

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or l0ss:
— Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
— Share of other comprehensive
(expense) income of associates,
net of related income tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (EXPENSE)
FOR THE YEAR

WA (MR EES A
Hth2EUW AL RET R
KRERRBEEEE HRRIE

HEEM D EE R m#AHIES :

— MBI EBELEN
FER A

—BEBREASEMEE
(BR) YA > f1FRAERE
FIES L

FEHMZERA (BRA)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TrEXEREREGS
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive (expense) MTFE A EER
income attributable to: 2HF (BR) WAE&E:
— Owners of the Company e VNCIET=DN
— Non-controlling interests —JEEHI M

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARME FARE
(37,484) 33,466
29,213 (17,710)
(300) =
28,913 (17,710)
77,274 (35,657)
(70,039) 18,898
7,235 (16,759)
36,148 (34,469)
(1,336) (1,003)
(29,832) (29,443)

28,496 28,440
(1,336) (1,003)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NOTES
Vg3
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERKZE 18
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19
Investment properties KEYE 20
Goodwill (RS 21
Other intangible assets Hihmp & E 22
Interests in associates RS AR 2w 24
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BARBESAEMZEBAN
HmIT A 25
Financial assets at fair value BAnBESTAER
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (MFERAEEFAER B
SREE 29
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIEE E 34
Deposits ReB & 27
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =78 28
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R ZIEERERR 26
Other receivables, deposits and HEUWIR REBS RFEN R
prepayments 27
Tax recoverable BRI
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBESTABRNEMEE 29
Pledged bank deposits BIEIFIRITEN 30
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 30
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE A
Trade payables B EMIRER 31
Other payables and accruals HUEMERARBIRE B 32
Contract liabilities aRAaE 33
Borrowings EEN 35
Deferred income IR FE UL 36
Lease liabilities HESE 37
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEAESAEGNEERE 29

Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

nBEE

HWEERRHERE

4= A,
17177 N e |

MFIRRR

At 31 December 2022

F2022F12531H

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARK
369,435 345,591
177,432 194,908
12,584 7,785
211,386 211,386
327,270 342,886
830,213 597,470
14,488 14,788

= 527

9,364 10,043
297,009 296,987
2,249,181 2,022,371
447,860 624,038
319,348 500,403
85,983 113,581
4,330 13,879
30,138 40,600
373,071 83,272
592,390 948,268
1,853,120 2,324,041
228,385 609,820
172,655 254,301
39,008 34,205
271,858 40,035
1,009 1,009
10,776 14,890
7,441 =
11,576 15,937
742,708 970,197
1,110,412 1,353,844
3,359,593 3,376,215
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE IR

At 31 December 2022

JR2022&E 12531 H

2022 2021
20224F 20214
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE TFARYE TARK

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Deferred income IR IE IR 2 36 1,568 1,658
Lease liabilities HEAE 37 21,626 30,352
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIBEE 34 53,233 59,703
76,427 91,713
NET ASSETS FEE 3,283,166 3,284,502

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR#E
Share capital &N 38 3 3
Reserves B 3,165,349 3,195,181

Equity attributable to owners of ZERQFEE AEMLER

the Company 3,165,352 3,195,184
Non-controlling interests JEIEF MR S 117,814 89,318
TOTAL EQUITY s 3,283,166 3,284,502

The consolidated financial statements on pages 177 to 344 were R E177EI44B 25 HEREREN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2023438 30H &K & H ot /& RIZET) 3>

2023 and are signed on its behalf by: WHNIEERNREE
WANG DONGLEI CHAN KIM YUNG, EVA
ILE (kS
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE EF

180 NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



8%

=

s
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(=]
B F2022F 12531 HIFFEE

4 A

nin

(oov'62) (oov'62) S S = = = = - - SIopjoyaIeys
RN ERH GFEE Bujouo0-uou 0} pred puspiNg

- = S ((7440) = v2e'L = - - - THYALVE aMBSal AIOJNIES 0} Jojsuel]

(800'}) 0’8z (evv'62) 18' (262'ge) - = = = = BV ET Yy Jesh 6y} 10} BWOOUI BAISUBYSIALIOD [BJO]

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

8688 - 8688k - 868'81 - - - - - Gl
Yk Y WEZ  Xe) 80Ul Pajelel JO U ‘SaJelo0sse Jo
WEEYSETS  8Woou sNsUsyaIdUI0d JBYI0 JO BIeyS

(299'ge) 83/ (y'9e) = (5pp'9e) = = = = - e suojesedo ubielo} Jo UoiejsuBI)
R IYEEEY uo Buisiie ssousseyip 8bueydx3
(or2'21) = (0r2'21) = (or2'21) = = = = - fousna uoejuesald
BEURAWFILELE 01 AoU81INO UOIIOUNY JO UONB[SUEBI)
YEGHEHIY uo Buisiie saousiayp 8bueyoxg
Y (HE) BEZHE  ewooul (ssusdxs) sisusysiduwod sy
99r'ee 259'L¢ 718's vi8's - - - = = = A A Jeak 8u} 10} 1j0id
S06'7hE'C  8L0'06 le9veg's  SOMov0't  (v86'hLe) Hv'86 (906'8) (85H7) 96h's9e'c ¢ BLE I 120eH 120z Arenuer | 1y
(EH)
(e100)

adY+  sdvE SEY: sEYE H¥Y+E mdIYE ®IYE REYE sdY+E REY:
000,dINd 000.9Nd 000.dINd 000,dINd 000.9Nd 000.dINd 000.dINd 000.9Nd 000,dINd 000.dNd

57 Rl £S By  YEEd SEVI¥E YEIE 9E%:  BRO%  yH
TG He ki
Anba S}saleul [e10L syoid EINEREY! VRS EIVERE)! EINERE)! wnjwa.d [eyden
[e10L Bulfjonuoo paurelay uoiesue}  Aloinielg uoienieras  Aynb3 aleys aleys
-UON fouslno JuBWISeAY|
ubaio4
HEYEHETY

Auedwo?) 8y} Jo $18UMO 8U} 0} B|GBINQURY

181

BETERERARASE 202263



R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H‘T\ iﬁﬁ/}llgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARKE FARYE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
(Loss) profit before tax a1 (&518) FE (23,142) 62,990
Adjustments for: BUTEIERE :
Interest income F) B WA (13,481) (9,587)
Finance costs M #ER 16,641 7,528
Share of results of associates S AR EE (142,930) 16,394
Gain on disposal of property, BREYH* BMEKMREEEN
plant and equipment I & (213) (1,292)
Loss on disposal of other EEHMEFEENEIE
intangible assets 308 163
Depreciation of property, ME - -BERRETE
plant and equipment 38,017 42,767
Depreciation of investment BEYMEITE
properties 331 240
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEINE
assets 20,159 23,944
Amortisation of other intangible Hihma & EEH
assets 48,136 48,656
Impairment loss in respect of BEEYE BEMRZEBENREIRL
property, plant and equipment 1,005 6,209
Impairment losses in respect of BREAREE AN E RN BEEL
interests in associates 50,148 -
Impairment loss in respect of BB ENREIRL
goodwill - 24,309
Impairment losses under BHEEBATERE
expected credit loss in respect & LT AR R B9 R TE?%SE ? Rk 84
of trade receivables, net of
reversal (405) 8,204
Impairment losses under FEHREEBATERAEM
expected credit loss in respect & U BR FR BV R (B 4R 2K
of other receivables, net of 0Bk EH
reversal 256 (8,200)
Write-down of inventories WoRES 25,156 8,477
Government grants released to BEReBEmRNBUTEE
consolidated statement of
profit or loss (90) (89)
Fair value changes of held-for- REEBEREN QA ABEES
trading investments 16,448 (16,213)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-F iﬁ%l}ﬂ%i

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease in held-for-trading
financial assets

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and
bills receivables

Decrease (increase) in other
receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease in trade and bills
payables

(Decrease) increase in other
payables and accruals

Increase (decrease) in contract
liabilities

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of pledged bank
deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank
deposits

Interest received

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Additions to other intangible assets

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Additional capital investment
in an associate

Payment for consideration of
acquisition of an associate

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

F &R (1)
B 5k REBUERRUR D (10)

H M EWERTR  REE E= K
Faf RO (1)

B2 R EBEEM RIS
HE R TRIRE A

GRL) s
ARE SN (HD)

sEFERS
BAFEH

BEEBHFAREFE

REEE

FERBNRITEMR

PRABFNIRTER

BHFE
BEYME -BERRFE

BREVFE BB R HE

BIFT 1SR IE
/J\%ﬁfﬁlmﬁ/ﬁé
W E A S
HEEABNEIERRSE

IYBE-—XKBHEATNAE

REFSFFAREFE

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARYE TARK
36,344 214,500
1,982 337
157,487 (225,239)
193,077 (14,126)
45,863 (11,552)
(381,052) (16,531)
(102,475) 3,630
5,046 (11,971)
(43,728) (60,952)
(14,908) (61,705)
(58,636) (122,657)
(373,071) (83,272)
83,272 75,671
13,481 9,587
(58,247) (49,844)
6,505 8,764
(33,254) (24,012)
- 8
(210,000) =
- (7,284)
(571,314) (70,382)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ZeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid to non-controlling

shareholders
Lease payments
Interest paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM

(USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT THE END OF YEAR,
represented by bank balances
and cash

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARYE TFARK
R EEE
RITERFIERIE 239,562 11,274
BERITER (6,921) (3,573)
EIEEEHIME R R IR R
- (29,400)
GEN=ENEN (14,333) (19,896)
BENFE (16,641) (7,528)
RMEEHRE A REFHE
201,667 (49,123)
HERAEEEBMHLFE
(428,283) (242,162)
FNRERFEEEY
948,268 1,226,773
EEXEETEFE
72,405 (36,343)
FXRRERFEEEY
IERITHERARE
592,390 948,268

BETERERARASE 202263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE M HRRMEE

17177 N e |
For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

NVC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in the territory of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”") as a limited liability company on 2 March 2006
and was redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its substantial
shareholder is Elec-Tech International Co. Ltd., with its shares
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and
sale of lamps, luminaries, lighting electronic products and related
products. Information on the Group’s subsidiaries is set out in
Note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is different from the Company’s functional
currency of United States dollars (“US$”). The directors of
the Company adopted RMB as presentation currency for the
convenience of the financial statements users.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

—RiRE

ETEEERERAE (TARQAE])
BE—XAORABRAE > FR2006FE38
CHEXRBHBREE (ABHEER
BB ) stz T i20104E3H830
HEMERESHEE NARSEE X
Bl E22F AT E (19615 A5 = » 45
EHRES]) THEREERSER
Bl ERMNEBBERSFERA
AERLET - HEBERFAZHES
BHEERBROABRAR (HRMES
EARBEME (THE) FIFESHR
SFrE™) c AATMNEMP™ERKE
TEEEMBENMUNERATE
Bl — B E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”)

Amendments to IFRS Standards that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards Standards 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to IFRS Standards in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

XABRMEBRS R (TH
R RS EER) Z1E5T

18 7S £F FE 38 1) A 2% B R PR B 755 3
HEER Z(E5T

RAEEE X ZEBEE RERBHBER
gt #EAZE T (ARG EANZR
B Bl R2022FE181HEIEA
MNAEEEEHBARBERBNUT
B B B 75 3R 5 ZE B Y18 5T LUAR Bl Ax
B BHRE

BRPHREER BISERNIE

Xk ) it
B PR & 5+ ZE Bl ME- BB X
F165R 2 1E5] R T
FRBIFRE
I
B PR 2 51 ZE Al BEMESE—
FI7HE BT BITE418
DRI
B REEN BEEMERS
Z1E5] #B1120184F
F20204F
BERZ
FENE

AEFERBERMBREERZE
SR AEERAFERBEFENG
HBARRMEBER RILEEFETH
BRPORBTREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'’
June 2020 and
December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback®

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January
2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Except for the amendments to IFRS Standards mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to IFRS Standards will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments
retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method)
to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the (“2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments
to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the (“2022
Amendments”) (continued)

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could become
repayable within twelve months after the reporting period, if
the entity classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement of those
liabilities is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period. The 2022 Amendments
also defer the effective date of applying the 2020 Amendments to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments,
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024, with early application permitted. If an entity
applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue
of the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS Standards”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Standards in issue but
not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such
items to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such a
case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
IAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Standards issued by the IASB.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GEMBRRINGHREER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAEHEE &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 ZEEMEBERRNEREE
statements (continued) (#&)
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the FEmMA—RERAXRKBE
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. mEBRBERATIAREN A R

BE-

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an ANABERETMBEREE
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction BESEETHNERRS
between market participants at the measurement date, e E— I8 B E P K EN Y &
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or B—IEEER YT ER &
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating M EREEEEHRIWNA
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes REEHBEMGERME
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability YNNGt - EHEESNEEDN
if market participants would take those characteristics NABEMELGETR  AEH
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the EZETHEZEEGRSEH
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ AZEENEBETEER
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial BeEZENEEB ThERgs
statements is determined on such a basis, except HHRBRPAER,RIFE
for share-based payment transactions that are within MNARBEHELER LS
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing LIEETE > B PR B 75 3y &5 2E Bl
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with F2sE TUIRID A E R 2 77
IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some BEAUBRMD AR Z IRIE
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net MR F RS ZER FE 165 [FE
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS BEIAENEEXSZ  UKHAE
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B Zo022F 12H31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEUBHRRNGEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAREHBE (B)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 FEMBEHRRNENESR
statements (continued) Cf%”)

3.2

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs and
are considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

For business combinations in which the acquisition date
is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions
of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued by IASB in March 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, in
which the Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets
are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 /ncome Taxes and IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below);
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B Zo022F 12H31 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEUBHRRNGEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAEHEE &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 HKAXEHHEK &
Business combinations (continued) ,%‘%‘ ﬁ 3‘/# (,Eg

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an interest in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net interest in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the interest in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group’s intellectual property if all of the
following criteria are met:

° the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities
that significantly affect the intellectual property to
which the customer has rights;

o the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects of
the Group’s activities; and

o those activities do not result in the transfer of
a good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers the
grant of licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time at which the
licence is granted.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
volume rebates to major customers for early repayment,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using the expected value method, which
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities
The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group

expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.
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BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continueq)
Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled (therefore, revenue would not be
recognised for the products expected to be

returned/exchanged);
(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and
(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost

of sales) for its right to recover products from
customers and are presented as right to returned
goods asset.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied
the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease maodification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continueq)

The Group as a lessor

All leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in USD or other currencies to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss subsequently.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not capitalised to qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as “deferred income”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS Standards require or permit the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE2022F 12531 HIFFE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GeMBRRINGHREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAEHEE &)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EFEAGHHEK #E)
Taxation /ﬁ?\lﬁ
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax FriEMEXIEREEEENNRIE
currently payable and deferred tax. B2 3R R TE BY 48 A0 o
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for BPREEMNKRIBETYUERXRESE
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before MAEAREE ERRF A
tax because of income or expense that are taxable MiReT (B518) #EARE > ®a]
or deductible in other years and items that are never ERAOETEMEERERR
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax oMW KARBELIER
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or EEBAZRKR DA RIINRNIE
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. HoAEEFEWEEHRIBBEEK
BRBSHERAEBHRIE
HEmNREGTH
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences BEIEMBL TG e MBHRE
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities hTEEREENETESEM
in the consolidated financial statements and the st EEERAEHERE
corresponding tax bases used in the computation B Er B = ZE R0 o IR IEFR 18
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally BEEEEMFABEESRRE
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred B ERERET IRIERIEE El
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible EEEERIBEEIERN
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable KEH I PR G BF = 58 R L PRy
that taxable profits will be available against which those Aol =5 Eml o Yy
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such HEEEREHESRRINEE
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if @M EEELENTZH
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition BERBGBZVBEESD (7S
(other than in a business combination) of assets and ESEHBIN) ZEIRERIESE
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable ERBEEFTHES b
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax MEREEEREERE 215
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference B A ERRDIRERIBES
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. &o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continueq)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

=
AT

ey

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

E#?%%E%E’\Jg@ﬁ%%ﬁ&

g5tHR (&)

ERGHEER (@)
HIE (&)

BRIERMBEEEMHARER
bt B~ B K B = A B A R AY
FERME R =8 BEAE
B AJ LA HE ) 5% ' By £ ER A 5
MEEARRIARRZER
7= B2 7~ K ] AE 85 [0 B9 18 L BR
Sho BZERE R Em AR
NG EREBEMEENE
EMEBEEENRRAIERR
%) 8 SRR A R DU 85 B B 2
BA B9 i BR B TR 5T 0 B RR 2R
1 [0 By R 5T o

BIEMBREENREEI N
BHMEPREBR  HABAEE
B RABRRA B BRI
XD EERF T L
1R

BRIEMEBEEERBEREAH
BEAREEEENEHREE
HENRKRE  ZMERUE
BEHARMEETHNEEER
TRME (kK BEHES
o

BIERBEEBREENE
[ Bk 7 2 [ i ¥R 5 A oK TR BF
BEHEEEEERARR
HENASXRMELENRTE
%D

BETERERARASE 202263

221



222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continueq)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess
of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, including costs
of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable

future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with definite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(if) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

3.2 EXREGHHERK &
EHTA (&)
THEE (B
THEEN TR A EE

(&

(i) FEEKBLAEBEFA
HithnzEWAZEm T
=

BrAnfBEES AHME
EWARNEDR T AER
BARBESFE M
AEBEEFHELENNE
REEEREMEEK
AFRRBLRFERA
EhEE TEERE
TREN G hERE
RER Rt @ o
BRITEWNEMDEE
Bm UREESEER
REB AT o

EXREERRTIEKRE
Z 1B By 0 BRIERE BR A
R IR B = A (R UR o] 2B
DTREMET > [RARR
EZERATAERN
REERBm PR -
RERBmPFATH
ik AR E °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
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AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
3.2  Significant accounting policies (continueq) 3.2 HAKEHHEEK &
Financial instruments (continueq) ﬁ" HEI A ( 5)
Financial assets (continued) THEE #B)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEENIIERAEEE
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(i) Financial assets at FVTPL iy FBARBESTABERZD
THMEE
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or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit AR 2 EEW KB
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
deposits, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

/|

z

Z5

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

MBHRRIBREER

g5tHR (&)

EXREHE B
EFHTA (&)

EHEE (&

1R [ [X 71 75 2R 25 ZE Bl 9%

ATETHE G % S E
B1E (&)

FEBRKRITEEAME
MO BE 5 BUERRESRF
BAATAREEEE

MFFBEHMIAmMS  A&H
SFENBREREMEFI12(E
BHEHEERE RIEEER
bR BT RERUREE EF
FUBR T *EERBEE

HFRREERR EOEIE
BHARHAEERERDERA
M HEBLURZEEEBONT
FEMTERESTRE LW
TG o

(i) EERERE L7

REEEERRES B
T EBLUREE EFH
B> AEBELEEKSRT
BERHREHBHEIREYN
NERHEZEMT AR
T HEIHBERIREYN
B & B o F Itb 5T 15 B >
rEBEEESERE
EENEEREEE
B SEEEREKRE
BIEEARER AL S
TN EEWATEME
o

BETERERARASE 202263

239



240

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available);

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(if) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over 1 year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continueq)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had goodwill of
approximately RMB211,386,000 (2021: RMB211,386,000)
which was arise from acquisitions of businesses. The Group’s
management conducted impairment assessments of the
goodwill by comparing the recoverable amounts of the CGUs
with respective carrying amounts and engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to assist them to determine the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs based on the respective
CGUs’ past performance and the expectations from the Group’s
management for the market development estimate. The value
in use calculations utilised cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and an appropriate discount rate, and involve
significant judgement and estimates on certain key inputs,
namely sales growth rate, gross margin, perpetual growth rates
and discount rate. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is
lower than respective carrying amount, impairment loss would be
recognised. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve, and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s wholesale
operations.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of goodwill are
RMB211,386,000 (2021: RMB211,386,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of RMB410,233,000 (2021: RMB410,233,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
Note 21.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest in BLIHP with
carrying amount of approximately RMB818,152,000 (2021:
RMB583,239,000) which represented 24.9% (2021: 17.8%)
of the net assets of the Group. As disclosed in Note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements, BLIHP is engaged in
investment holding, manufacture and sales of lamps, luminaries,
lamp transformers, lighting electronic products and other
appliances. Due to the deteriorated financial performance
of BLIHP as disclosed in Note 24, the Group’s management
conducted an impairment assessment of the interest in BLIHP
by comparing the recoverable amount of the interest in BLIHP,
which were estimated based on value in use calculation, with the
carrying amount.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past performance of
BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s management for
the market development estimate. The value in use calculation
is based on the investor’s share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by BLIHP,
based on certain key assumptions and inputs, namely sales
growth rates, gross margin, perpetual growth rates and discount
rate, used to estimate future cash flows. In cases where the
actual cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in
facts and circumstances which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, a material reversal or further
recognition of impairment may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.

During the current year, the management determined an
impairment loss amounting to RMB45,724,000 was recognised in
profit or loss as the recoverable amount of the interest in BLIHP
which represented the value in use was lower than the carrying
amount. Details of the impairment assessment are disclosed in
Note 24.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
based on aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Due to
greater financial uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic,
the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the current
year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led
to increased average credit default rates. The information about
the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes
44(b) and 26 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAT5 R R MY 5E

fi= A,
i 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE20224F 12531 HIFEE

REVENUE 5. KA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) SHERERUWA
customers
For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE20225F12831HLLEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments SE brand brand brand Total
B Bl & R
EtmhE FELTRE FELT R a8F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®E FARE TAR® TAE®
Sales to external HASMBER
customers 291,215 118,197 1,479,035 1,888,447
Geographical markets  IEmii5
United States E= - - 1,147,019 1,147,019
Japan SF:N 71 - 237,664 237,735
The PRC HE = 118,197 = 118,197
Netherland i B - - 59,019 59,019
United Kingdom L 153,009 - 6,277 159,286
Other countries HtnE =R 138,135 - 29,056 167,191
Total &t 291,215 118,197 1,479,035 1,888,447
Timing of revenue WA B % I P
recognition
A point in time ERE 291,215 118,197 1,479,035 1,888,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

5. REVENUE (continued)

5.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

WA &)

(i) BUEREEWA GE)

B E2021F12831HILEFE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
Segments ban= brand brand brand Total
]S A 7]
BELmhE FELRE FELRE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE FAR FAR
Sales to external SHESNEEE
customers 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
Geographical markets ~ thIEmHi5
United States EH 996 - 1,272,895 1,273,891
Japan HZ& = - 303,643 303,643
The PRC =2 - 251,503 - 251,503
Netherland far B8 - - 169,706 169,706
United Kingdom T 165,169 = 1,778 166,947
Other countries HMBEI R 146,563 - 62,694 209,257
Total =51 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
Timing of revenue WA B SR B
recognition
A point in time HEFRE R 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group sells lighting products to the retailers over the
world.

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the specific location (delivery). Following the delivery,
the customers have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers
have a right to exchange for defective products within
30 days. The Group uses its accumulated historical
experience to estimate the number of exchange on a
portfolio level using the expected value method. Revenue
is recognised for sales which are considered highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. A contract liability
is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The Group’s right to recover the product
when customers exercise their right is recognised as a
right to returned goods and a corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

5. REVENUE (continued)

(iii)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All goods provided by the Group are for contracts
with original expected duration of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (‘CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:
. International NVC brand — sales of NVC branded lighting

products outside the PRC

o Domestic non-NVC brand — domestic sales of non-NVC
branded lighting products in the PRC

o International non-NVC brand - sales of non-NVC branded
lighting products outside the PRC

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

WA &)

iy PEFEEERZETE
HNEEZXZER

rEBRREHNORAEERT Y
RIRGRAHARS —FHU
THEE - REERTHRS
ZERSB155ERIET Al > 0 B T &%
FEREMERZRZERR
TIREE

RE D

RHETERDE RGN BRITM
BEFTERBDRTEE BIEEEE
RERANTEBEERRAL) WER
SRR RIRHENE SRS

AEMEs A5ERERMBRE
ZRFEERAAZE 7 A TR E 2D BRI
S

. RE T mhE - E R N
EETmERBER

. BRI FELmE-NRERER
HEFELmERRER

. B FRIF B L mhd — i R E R S
HEFELmERAER



6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segments:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation

Other income

Other gains and losses
Unallocated expenses

Impairment losses in respect of
interests in associates

Impairment losses under
expected credit loss model,

net of reversal
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before tax

DEUEA
HETFIIBER

DEEE

HEEE
HAfr A
Hiti#a
ANECER

ERRBE AR NERR

EAISEEES
BHESBRARETH
BEIRK - 0B

MHER
= UNCIE S

MRATES B

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

6. REDH E

WUTABRI BB DI M0 AEEH
ON-E T Y

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022512831HILEEE

International Domestic
NVC non-NVC

International
non-NVC

brand brand brand Consolidated
il Bl il

ELmhg
RMB’000
FTARY

FELmE
RMB’000
FARH

FELmIE
RMB’000
FARK

291,215 118,197 1,479,035 1,888,447

92,655 13,199 325,598 431,452

49,194
(40,695)
(539,383)
(50,148)
149

(16,641)
142,930

(23,142)
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

REDER (&

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12B31HLILEEE
International Domestic International
NVC non-NVC non-NVC
brand brand brand  Consolidated
3 i 3
BELmkE FEELRE FEELRE o)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR FARE FARE FARE
Segment revenue: DEUWA
Sales to external customers  SHE FINFES 312,728 251,503 1,810,716 2,374,947
Segment results DEEE 105,804 42,710 513,918 662,432
Reconciliation HETEHE
Other income H A 46,524
Other gains and losses HiiB 986
Unallocated expenses F*HERER (598,717)
Impairment loss in respect of BRI EMNEER%
goodwill (24,309)
Impairment losses under FEHREEEARETHN
expected credit loss model, AR BRI
net of reversal (4)
Finance costs % & H (7,528)
Share of results of associates — E{L & /A B 24 (16,394)
Profit before tax GIRIbE 62,990

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of other income, other gains and losses, impairment
losses in respect of interests in associates, impairment loss
in respect of goodwill, impairment under expected credit loss
model, net of reversal, unallocated expenses, finance costs and
share of results of associates. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e MR MTEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. REQE &

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results TEESERAEFTERBEROIINLCE
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment EEEHRF - AN ETELSEREA
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review radrRBRoERKRRTGZE
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and HMmEESEBIEER Btk 275
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and NDEEEERDLEBE DT HIL > 12
segment results are presented. 25D EWMA R DBELE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HZ2022512R31 AL EE
International Domestic International Total
NVC non-NVC non-NVC  reportable
brand brand LEN segments

Others Consolidated

s Eila] R BE

Etmi
RMB'000
TARK

FELRE
RMB'000
TARR

FELRE
RMB'000
TARRE

HERE Rt Ra
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE  TAE®  TARW

SADBREANNEEHE

Amounts included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or &%

segment assets:
Capital expenditure* BAY 2,578 4,806 99,053 106,437 230 106,667
Write-down of inventories WHEE 2,934 2,009 20,213 25,156 - 25,156
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 6,320 11,172 86,552 104,044 2,599 106,643
Amounts regularly provided to the R EEEARAR (M

CODM but not included inthe ~ BRE ADHPEER A

measure of segment profit or BEHENEE:

loss or segment assets:
Impairment losses recognised ¥ E 7 RUCRH R E B UGR

(reversed) on trade receivables  FRFER () HERRE:

and other receivables, net FE 1,598 (54) (1,693) (149) - (149)
Impairment losses inrespect of ~ BERKEA AN ERNHE

interests in associates B& 50,148 - - 50,148 - 50,148
Impairment loss in respect of BERENE BERRENHE

property, plant and equipment 8% - - 1,005 1,005 - 1,005

BETERERARASE 202263
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. 4 i 4y TR Cf{éﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12B31 HLLEE
International Domestic  International Total
NVC non-NVC non-NVC reportable
brand brand brand segments Others  Consolidated
EileS A i’ BE
Bt FETRE FELaE PHEE Hfth &8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE
Amounts included in the measure S ADBERA A FEEHE
of segment profit or loss or NEH:
segment assets:
Capital expenditure® BRL 5,060 9,321 94,261 108,642 5129 113771
Write-down of inventories WHESE 943 1,798 574 8,477 - 8,477
Depreciation and amortisation 378 Rz 844 7,030 17,590 88,437 113,057 2550 115,607
Amounts regularly provided to the R BEEAR AR (T
CODM but notincluded inthe B RStADHBEZHHE
measure of segment profit or BEMNENEE .
loss or segment assets:
Impairment losses recognised 58 ZRIERFR REAEUE
(reversed) on trade receivables  FFERR () BURERE .
and other receivables, net FE 3,482 230 4492 8,204 (8,200) 4
Impairment loss in respect of BRBENEERE
goodwil 24,309 - - 24,309 - 24,309

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment and other intangible assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6. KERE &
Geographical information & &k
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and other REEBNEFUPR TR EEMESE -
countries.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers EREAAEBRRBINTIEZLHNKAE
is presented based on the location of the customers’ operations. BRI REZERHNKESHELZ S c R
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented AEBERHEENBERLRES
based on the geographical location of the assets. ENMEBANEZS .
Revenue from
external customers
Year ended Non-current assets
SEBEEBBA
HEUTHHLEEE EREEE

<GVAPTPIPPN  31/12/2021 WERVAPTPIPAN  31/12/2021
20224 20214 20214 20214
12H31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
TARE TARE TAR® TARE

United States eS| 1,147,019 1,273,891 7,933 9,791
Japan B 237,735 303,643 17,452 17,853
The PRC s 118,197 251,503 2,061,788 1,834,538
Netherland far 59,019 169,706 - =
United Kingdom HH 159,286 166,947 49,665 46,700
Other countries H %R 167,191 209,257 88,491 88,658

1,888,447 2,374,947 2,225,329 1,997,540

Note: Non-current assets excluded equity instruments and Mat . IERFEENDIEEDE THE KIRIE
deferred tax assets. MIBEE-

ETERERERAT 02F% 261



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 6.
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

REDER (&

Customer A' HEA
Customer B! =EB'
Customer C! =BG

U Revenue from International Non-NVC brand segment.

7. OTHER INCOME 7.

BEFEERMER
HEFEEMAEEBHEEZEI10%

UENERWANT :

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARKE FARH

635,594 700,713

489,078 440,770

237,735 303,626

T REEREELREHBHRA -
HUg A

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARME FARHK

Government grants and other subsidies BT 4 B K E 485 (B =)

(Note)
Bank interest income IRITFIE WA
Other interest income HF S WA
Surcharges from suppliers REMEEBMINE
Rental income — lease payments that are AU A —EZBFE & ™
fixed
Consultancy service income B ARFS UL A
Trademark licensing fee EiIRsr e &
Samples recharged to customers REZEFPHERSERA
Others Hth

262 NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

12,829 15,697
12,839 8,505
642 1,082
1,347 59
1,651 1,630
7,270 6,447
10,131 11,389
- 394
2,485 1,321
49,194 46,524




7.

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

Government grants of RMB12,739,000 (2021:
RMB15,608,000) have been received in the current year.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, government
grants in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies and other
subsidies were received by various subsidiaries of the
Group. The government grants were unconditional and
therefore recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the current year. Other government grants
have been received by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as
tax subsidies and incentives for research and development
activities and the expansion of production capacity of
energy-saving lamps. Government grants associated
with assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position as disclosed in
Note 36.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

Hthe A (&

Briat . AREEWEIBTHAARK12,739
Fit (20215 : AR#15,608F
JC) c B E2022F 12831 HIEE
B AEEZRNE R R U A
Covid-1948 B BY B AT #88 B A0 EL At 4
A o A8 BE BT #8 B B AR Y
WEARFENFGEmRPHER -
AEENTENBASDEERSE
HMBAS#E > (FAMEMBEEE
B U KRIBAEISEEN EEREINR
Wit fes Bl AT BB 45 it © B 5 EEARRA B9
BRHEPERGEEHBERTERSD
MR AR IE W s (A AN Bfd SE 36T K

Net foreign exchange losses SNEESR IR

(Loss) gain from fair value changes of RGUEFEREN LA NEE
held-for-trading investments #E) (BX) Wa

Impairment loss recognised in respect of FE¥I ¥ BB KR HEREEH
property, plant and equipment PEAEECES

Gain on disposal of property, plant and ~ EEWE BE &R EZ W@
equipment

Loss on disposal of other intangible EEHMBFEEEZIEX
assets

Others Hih

2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FAR®
(21,603) (9,065)
(16,448) 16,213
(1,005) (6,209)
213 1,292

(308) (163)
(1,544) (1,082)
(40,695) 986

ELERERARAT 022F®% 263
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9.
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

RS ERAER TRREE

FUTIEE (hif) ma2R

Impairment losses (reversed)

recognised on: EEBXK
— trade receivables -B ZERARR
— other receivables ~E i FE AR R

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 44(b).

R > BRI
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE TARK
(405) 8,204
256 (8,200)
(149) 4

BT (5 B & TS MY 5E44(0)

10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Hth&HR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE TFARL
Research and development costs MRS ER 43,207 69,811
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. MBEER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH TFAR
Interest on vendor financing HEEREF R 4,207 3,090
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEf R 2,858 8,588
Interest on borrowings ERS) 9,576 905
16,641 7,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

12. FRGIHER

Current tax: BRHATR IS :
Hong Kong 58
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B ZFTER
Other countries HAME xR

Under(over)provision in prior years: MatFE DR (B1R) !
Hong Kong 5B
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE b EFREH
Other countries H B =

Deferred tax (Note 34) SEIEFRTE (F72234)

Total =1

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 2,000,000 of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARH TARK
8,702 17,265
6,213 8,742
3,240 1,439
18,155 27,446
412 773
1,213 (2,013)
353 788
1,978 (452)
(5,791) 2,530
14,342 29,524

EHBIEFEN2018FE3H21HEB
C2017FEM%E (1B:]) (B75R) 1&H
BE) (MEFAIEZ]) > 5| A MR HIF
BREGE KA EZRN2018FE3A
8HEEMA LR WRRXAEER
FRIZ - RBIEMAFERBESE
EEREEBSEMNE2,000FTBTH
i #8.25% R = > m2,000
FAETULNF BEEZ16.5%0HK
REFR - AT EMBRFIFERIGE
NEBSEMNABEESEL16.5%
B — MR- o

TRBEERD BREMAENFRKR
RHEMIRNEREEETHBER
RMEFERN - MEFENETENE
MIREEERNFEH16.5%51H

RIFPEEEFMERZE (TREMSI
A REEMBRIEABEREN 1R
AR B B B A B RS R E A B R AR =R
#5259% o
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For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

ETi Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) Limited (“Zhuhai SSL”) and
Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron Co., Ltd. (“Sunny”) were
recognised as high-tech enterprise by the PRC tax authority and
entitled a preferential tax rate of 15% during both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:

12.

FRGIRER (&

18 (Bkig) ABEREERAE (TE
BRAD) EFHITIL=KREFER
NE (T= k) # B 5 R FE a0
AEHEMECE BERMEEERE
B15%MNEEMRE

HMtBE ZEELENRNELRES
BB EEERTREETE -

FARNEBERAZTRES BT R
ZHal (B18) FHHRLT ¢

(Loss) profit before tax Al (B8 A8

BPHFRISMETENRE
(M5
FEINRAS IR &

Tax at the average income tax rate (Note)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ BERIRUMARIRFE &

purpose
Under (over) provision in respect of HETFEEDR (Bi)
prior years

RERMBEBENRBZE
B AR ERHNRIERE

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary AERIEINEREEEN
differences not recognised METE

Withholding tax on undistributed profits of £ FEIAS & I @ A 5 Kk 2 B F)E

subsidiaries operating in the PRC BIFER
Withholding tax on distributed profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC

Income tax at concessionary rate

ESFEEE)
REBMEFAENFRF/R

PRSI

Income tax expense

Note: The average income tax rates for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 represent the average tax rate
of the operations in different jurisdictions on the basis
of the relative amounts of (loss) profit before tax and the

relevant statutory rates.
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2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE FARH
(23,142) 62,990
(6,186) 12,533
25,868 36,154
(49,205) (32,092)
1,978 (452)
42,309 9,437

= 778

5,393 20,736

50 =

= 735

(5,865) (18,305)
14,342 29,524

Bzt - BiE20224F K2021F128318 1k
FERFHEMBMNERISRZERA
(B518) A H R BRI = 8 R AR RA
ERREHNAREEEEEER
BT R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. &£ (518) #3178
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: NE (FBE) MBI &NBR UL TRIE
BER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARYE TFARK
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S EM %7 BN 4,708 5,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expense FEz2 4 &R ES M4 1,431,839 1,704,038
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hithmm & E e
(included in “selling and distribution GIATHHE RDEER 1)
expenses”) 48,136 48,656
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment —E BB R EE 38,017 42,767
- Investment properties —KEYE 331 240
- Right-of-use-assets —EHEEEE 20,159 23,944
Total amortisation and depreciation HIH S T EARER 106,643 115,607
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMY (BEEEK
directors’ and chief executive’s RE1TEBA S #
remuneration (Note 14)): (Htz£14)) -
Wages and salaries TENFHE 262,367 338,353
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETBIMHRR 24,448 26,500
Other welfare expenses HihE5 & B 9,348 8,036
Total staff costs B T i A4EZE 296,163 372,889
Impairment loss in respect of property, BREME BEKRZEN
plant and equipment PEAEEEES 1,005 6,209
Research and development costs M ~EEER
(included in “other expenses”) GtATHMER]) 43,207 69,811
Write-down of inventories WRES
(included in “cost of sales”) Gt ATEHE R Z) 25,156 8,477

ELERERARAT 022F®R 267



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 2022412531 HIF FE/E
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EFERREITHABSHHM
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear, BEFHHIRESE AT GG E
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong MAFEEBEELESTHRAEFHIWN
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: B
2022 20225
Chief
Executive
Ms. CHAN
Mr. WANG Kim Yung, Mr. XIAO Mr. WANG Ms. CAO
Donglei Eva Yu  Keven Dun Qin Total
RETHASR
I4ERE  REBit HFEE THERE B2yt Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE TARE FARE FARE FARKE
(note 1)
(1)
A) EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS A) H#7EZE
Fees ik 259 259 259 259 259 1,295
Other emoluments: Hihdh
Salaries and allowance HekEl 5,071 7,091 1,350 430 - 13,942
Pension scheme RIS BB
contributions 28 55 - 21 - 104
Sub-total INEt 5,358 7,405 1,609 710 259 15,34

The executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
LTEATESNMEDARSHFADRFEENEESHRURBMA AT

Mr. YE Yong
HELE
RMB’000
FARK
B) NON-EXECUTIVE B) FHTES
DIRECTORS
Fees ik 259
Other emoluments: EfiES
Salaries and allowance HEE K2 725
Pension scheme RINEEEIEN
contributions 18
Sub-total 1N 1,002

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.
TRFATEENME P REREARTREREAT (BR) WESHZAT o
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FAT5 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE20224F 12531 HIFEE

fi= A,
i 3

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EFERREITHABSHHM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) =
Mr. WANG Kong Wai, Mr. CHEN
Xuexian Conway Hong Total
IBRRE FhERLE RBih %L Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE FARE FARE
C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BIFHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees e 259 431 259 949
The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.
BT ESNNE AR ERER AR ESHRR M.
Total At 17,292
Note 1:Mr. WANG Kevin Dun was re-designated from a non- Ktz FEEERAKRATIERITESHEE
executive director of the Company to an executive ARATHITES > §2022495 1
director of the Company with effect from 1 September B4Ry o
2022.
ol 20214
Chief
Executive
Ms. CHAN
Mr. WANG Kim Yung, Mr. XIAO Mr. WANG Ms. CAO
Donglei _ . ,__ Fva Yu Dongmin Qin Total
! %Emﬂlfa omng
TLERE  RIBuT HFRE FLBi4E EEes =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE FARE
(note 1) (note 2)
(Hfzt1) (Hiztz)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) H7&%
Fees ik 249 249 249 11 112 970
Other emoluments: Hitfs
Salaries and allowance He ki 5,000 7,054 1,346 838 - 14,238
Performance related ES 5
bonuses* 4,000 3,000 596 - 50 7,646
Pension scheme RINEEIET
contributions 16 28 - 19 - 63
Sub-total et 9,265 10,331 2,191 968 162 22,917

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

LERTEZNMENARSHFADRFEENEESHRURB AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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B E2020F 12531 HIFFEE
14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. EFERREITHASHHM
EMOLUMENTS (continued) =)
Mr.YE  Mr. WANG
Yong  Keven Dun Total
HERE FBiE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
TAR®E  FARE  TARE
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B) JE#TEZR
Fees e 249 249 498
Other emoluments: Hitrf2
Salaries and allowance HE k2 696 - 696
Pension scheme contributions RS EIET 17 - 17
Sub-total et 962 249 1,211
The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as the director of the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable.
TRERTEENMEPHEREARTRERE AT (ER) WESHZAT o
Mr. LEE
Mr. WANG  Kong Wai, Mr. CHEN Mr. JIA
Xuexian Conway Hong Hongbo Total
F2A%E FTEERE  RAkE BARAL At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
TAE® TARE TARE TARE TARE
(note 4) (note 3)
(Hizt4) (Hiz3)
C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUkBTESR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees e 249 415 21 177 862
The independent non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.
TRBUFATEENM SRR ERATADEEMIA
Total At 24,990



14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note 1: Ms. WANG Dongming was re-designated from Non-
Executive Director to Executive Director with effect from 1
May 2021 and retired on 11 June 2021.

Note 2: Ms. CAO Qin was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 19 July 2021.

Note 3: Mr. JIA Hongbo resigned as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 17 September
2021.

Note 4: Mr. CHEN Hong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
December 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled
to bonus payments which are based on the profit for the
year of the Group and their individual performance.

14.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

EEREHITHABSHM
(#)

i1 ERBREERR2021E581 A1 IE
HITEEHERITES L2021
F6HR11BEBE-

Histo . EEL+R2021E7F198 B HF
BHTES

Hia23 BALR T ER 202169817 B BHE
EREEIULIFRTES

Mitat4 - BR5ASEETR2021F 1281 B EZSE
PRI ABBILIEATES-

RmEFE EFARSBITHRABL
5] 1L IR X R BOER AR A #r BN Y
2o

* RABETHITESAEWEURE

FEBRFFMHARBEFBARRS
fFRITEAL
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 15.
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included three directors (2021: three directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2021: two) highest

paid employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

Il & # i (g 8

RESAREBRURSHNESESIE
=AIEE (2021F . =UESE) » Hif
Mz IEE N LI sE14 - BE R B E SR
NAREARBRSITHRAENGT
ML (20214 : M) R FMNES
BB T -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 2B R EYH &

Performance related bonuses FERE
Pension scheme contribution BIRE TR

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARK FARK

2,680 2,004

372 1,019

206 48

3,258 3,071
H#FEMARUTEBEANIELRAQF

EENRESTFMESENAEBUT :

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalent to RMB863,001 to
RMB1,294,000)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,294,001 to
RMB1,726,000)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,726,001 to
RMB2,157,000)

Total

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH BEA#
1,000,000 7t £ 1,500,000 75
(HHEMR AR 863,001 7TE
A E#1,294,0007T) 1 -
1,500,001 75 E2,000,000E 7T (8
ENRAR1,294,001tE AR
#51,726,000 7T) - 2
2,000,001 75 E2,500,0007 7T
(HHER AR¥1,726,0017TE
AE#2,157,0007T) 1 -
&t 2 2

There was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and

five highest paid employees as incentive on joining or as
compensation for the loss of office during both years.
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ir e MR MTEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

16. DIVIDENDS 16. KR2
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of EHE2022F 12831 H K20214F128
the Company during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 B1HIEEE A AT EKTHERS
December 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the IKERZEEKREE > B SE R E
end of the reporting period. BEREIREAKRE -
17. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. 8k (518 &7
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable ENBHEBEANELEEELAESRK (B18)
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: BAAEEENRUTEE
(Loss) earnings figures are calculated as follows: (B518) BAEEMNTENT
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARHE TAR®
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic AR EERERRFIN
earnings per share (E518) FIH (66,119) 5,814
2021
20214
000
T
Weighted average number of BRErEERER (B18) BAM
ordinary shares for the purpose of ZE RN &
basic (loss) earnings per share 4,227,281 4,227,281

No diluted (loss) earnings per share for both 2022 and 2021 were
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for
both 2022 and 2021.

2022F 2021 KR EHNEE T K
(B518) A » A A20224F k20214
WEBETBEZERK-
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

18. ME -BEKR=E

Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
#F kBE  RBERHH  REREE L] HRIR B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE TARH TARHE TARB TARE TARHE TARH
CoST A
At 1 January 2021 R20211581H 218,034 31,231 332,29 19,819 12,757 5,893 620,029
Additions hE 14,031 11,109 34,561 3,462 2,679 22421 88,263
Transfers ag (3,058) 346 448 - - (794) (3,058)
Disposals RE - (7,980) (68,190) (3,886) (964) - (81,020
Exchange adjustments ERHE (2,053) (686) (1,016) (427) (222) (1,868) (6,272)
At 31 December 2021 R2021126318 206,954 34,020 298,098 18,968 14,250 25,652 617,942
Additions RE 2,067 4,617 28,315 3,890 857 33,667 73413
Transfers Y (7,656) - 462 - - (462) (7,656)
Disposals RE - (2,035) (36,570) (1,141) (1,036) - (40,782)
Exchange adjustments ERHE (1,871) 374 930 176 529 1,182 1,320
At 31 December 2022 120226128310 219,494 36,976 291,235 21,893 14,600 60,039 644,237
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION SHERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 20211518 (50,068) (17,943) (208,401) (14,340) (8,542) - (299,294)
Provided for the year ERERE (6,778) (7,697) (23,122) (2,327) (2,843 - (42,767)
Transfers 85 840 - - - - - 840
Impaiment logs recognised REGEINHESS
in profit or loss (347) - (5,581) (184) (97) - 6,209)
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - 7,980 62,248 3,099 21 - 73,548
Exchange adjustments ERHE 572 175 232 304 248 - 1,631
At 31 December 2021 12021126310 (65,781) (17,485) (174,624) (13,448 (11,013 - (272,351)
Provided for the year FREfE (5,836) (6,424) (22,010) (3,008) (739) - (38,017)
Impaiment loss recognised in RERRINHERRE
profit or loss - - (1,005) - - - (1,005)
Transfers a2 252 - - - - - 252
Eliminated on disposal HEREH - 1,578 31,461 789 870 - 34,698
Exchange adjustments ERHE 188 (53) (229) (74) (492) - (659)
At 31 December 2022 120225128310 (68,903) (22,384) (166,400) (15,741) (11,374) - (274,802)
CARRYING VALUES A
At 31 December 2022 12022128310 160,591 14,592 124,835 6,152 3,226 60,039 369,435
At 31 December 2021 120215128310 171,173 16,535 123,474 5,520 3,237 25,652 345,591
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BEKSE (&
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for Fi¥E - BMEKRKE (ERIER
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual 9N EEt R FIGEBERIEELS LSS
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following BUTREERITE ©
rates per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease, EF REERH18E405F
or 18 to 40 years Fh Y 8 KT HA R
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term of lease, iEEE RS 2ESFR
or 2 to 5 years BB 42 HA
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years MR REE 3FE104E
Furniture and fixtures 1 to 7 years XEREE 1E7F
Motor vehicles 4 to 8 years 4 B BB & 4E8E
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FHREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
gL HEmE =1
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAREH FTARE FARE
As at 31 December 2022 #2022F12H31H
Carrying amount ERMEE 31,388 146,044 177,432
As at 31 December 2021 2021%12H31H
Carrying amount IREE 31,458 163,450 194,908
For the year ended HFE2022%F12A318 ILEE
31 December 2022
Depreciation charge ERX 788 19,371 20,159
For the year ended HZE2021F128318 LEE
31 December 2021
Depreciation charge MERXZ 788 23,156 23,944
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ERE M HRRMEE

17177 N e |
For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

19. EREEE (B

Expense relating to short-leases BT ERRENER
Total cash outflow for leases RWEmHA &SR
Addition to right-of-use assets REFRAEEE

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
equipment and vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 3 months to 47 years for both years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for various
offices. As at 31 December 2022, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB32,402,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB146,044,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: lease liabilities of RMB45,242,000 and
related right-of-use assets of RMB163,450,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Rent concessions

No rent concessions have been received by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and December 2021.
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2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE TARK
5,679 858
22,870 24,287
828 8,946

RMEFE  AEEHEESERA
E EE-REREWHAEEZ
Be-rmEFE  HESRZIMEAR
FATEREEHRETIL - BERRTD
REEZEEFT LEIFEOMK
TR A1 o 1EE E B H IR R 5T (5 A
RN RGN AEBRAS
[B) B9 E & I & &£ & [7) 7J 52 ) 317 BY
HARR

AEBHEASMAET LG
B R2022F12831H s fATHE 4
S8 FWERREERSZTHE
RIS HRFAE AR S AL

H B PRI 55

tE9h > 7R2022FE 12831 H » LUARREfE
AHEE AR146,044T ohERTAE
Ea8EARK32,402F T (20214
FHEaBAR45,242F T R HRE
FREESEE ARK163,450F jT) °
BHEASAENEEE ERHNER
Bmi HEBZE A MEREM
LFE - HMEEEFNSHIEEERNIKFR

HEEE

B E2022F K2021F12831H IEF
B> RERRKEHASESE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20.

The Group leases out various offices under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years (2021: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights
to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in
the event the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

REME

FEERBELEHEHBEETHA
EoHEESALN -HEEBEVWSD
AEA1 E34E (20214 1 E34) » A&
AEAERESFAZHEEEREEY
YAHELLAN o FE TR A 1T IE HE SR 12 A
HBERT RZEBEESRBEES
BEBIRER o

AEBFAERBERZHFMARZINEG
R ARFEEEHUNERERE
BNIEERSHE-HEGRAES
FerEERER/AABATEEE
HRBEEMENEER-

RMB’000
FAE®

cosT Rz
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1B1H 7,992
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BYE -BERZEEH 2,218
At 31 December 2021 $22021F12831H 10,210
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B BEMEEEH 5,130
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831H 15,340
DEPRECIATION e

At 1 January 2021 7202141818 (2,185)
Provided for the year N (240)
At 31 December 2021 R2021FE12831H (2,425)
Provided for the year KEEEH (331)
At 31 December 2022 122022 12831H (2,756)
CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2022 R2022F12831H 12,584
At 31 December 2021 R2021FE12831H 7,785

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2022 was RMB19,560,000 (2021: RMB14,815,000).

R2022FE12831H  KEBEEY
¥ N RAABEAARE19,560T T
(20214 : AR¥14,815F7T)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE2022F 12531 HIFFE
20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 20. IREYE (&
The fair value was determined by management of the Group NABEJCALAERSEREZRIENR
based on the depreciated replacement cost approach, where EEENAEIETE EREREIHG AL
the key inputs are unit replacement cost, based on current cost EREEYENEREANENE
of replacement of the property, and adopted depreciation rate, ERAURIBEEZEEAB BN
based on professional judgment. EXo
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best REFYEN AR EBER  WENR
use of the properties is their current use. The fair value of the SEERERGRAHEBER NRE
investment properties is at level 3 fair value hierarchy at the end R REMENAABEAFEIR
of the reporting period. NABEES
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight- P EYERIOERN B LZEHT
line basis over 30 years. Eo
21. GOODWILL 21. ﬁ%i
Elec-Tech Shanghai
Solid State Arcata
Lighting Electronics
(HK) Limited Co., Ltd. NVC DK
(“HKSSL”) (“Arcata”) A/S Others Total
1%iE (B8
RERE LiEm£%
BERAT  BFARAA NVC DK
(F&E#&RED (TA+%1) A/S Hith “act
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FTARH FTARKE TARKE FTARE
(Note 45)
(Hzta5)
COST (D%
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 7220211818
2021 and 31 December 2022 20215128318 K
2022412831H 377,233 7,369 24,309 212,708 621,619
IMPAIRMENT BB
At 1 January 2021 1R2021E181H 173,216 - - 212,708 385,924
Impairment loss recognised BHERAEERSE - - 24,309 - 24,309
At 31 December 2021 and 20218128318 K
31 December 2022 2022F12831H 173,216 = 24,309 212,708 410,233
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 120225128311 204,017 7,369 - - 211,386
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 204,017 7,369 - - 211,386
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed EFmE2RENAZNEBEE RN
in Note 23. O3IFEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ir e MR MTEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

22, HithEREE

Trademarks ~ Trademarks Deferred
(indefinite (finite Computer Customer development
useful lives)  useful lives) software relationships costs Patents Total
BE(ER  HE(ER RIERE
AERES) FUERES) B ZRRG S R L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE FARE FARE TARE FARE FARE TARE
COoST A
At 1 January 2021 120211818 17,600 80,159 5,350 330,228 7,262 187,832 628,431
Additions AE = - 1,165 - 3,203 19,644 24,012
Acquired on acquisition of LA
a subsidiary - - - 1,496 - - 1,496
Disposals EE - - (172) - - - (172)
Exchange adjustment ERHE - - - (656) - (246) (902)
At 31 December 2021 2021128310 17,600 80,159 6,343 331,068 10,465 207,230 652,865
Additions AE - - 244 - 6,072 26,938 38,254
Disposals RE - - (539) - - = (539)
Exchange adjustment ERHE - - 11 (274) - 1,279 1,016
At 31 December 2022 2022128310 17,600 80,159 6,059 330,794 16,537 235,447 686,596
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION 254
At 1 January 2021 72021451818 - (34,736) (2,634) (66,317) - (157944 (261,631)
Charge for the year KERY - (16,032) (410) (15,365) - (16,849) (48,656)
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - 9 - - - 9
Exchange adjustment ERERE - - - 58 - 246 299
At 31 December 2021 120218128310 = (50,768) (3,035) (81,629) - (174,547) (309,979)
Charge for the year AERY - (16,032) (413) (14,840) - (16,851) (48,136)
Eliminated on disposals HERT - - 28 - - = 23
Exchange adjustment ERHE - - - 45 - (1,279) (1,234)
At 31 December 2022 #2022812831H - (66,800) (3,425) (96,424) - (192,677) (359,326)
CARRYING VALUES REME
At 31 December 2022 12022128318 17,600 13,359 2,634 234,370 16,637 42,770 327,270
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 17,600 29,391 3,308 249,439 10,465 32,683 342,886
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

22.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Deferred development costs are internally generated. The Group’s
computer software, customer relationships and patents were
acquired from third parties. Trademarks were purchased as part
of a business combination in prior years.

The above intangible assets other than trademarks with indefinite
useful lives have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following period:

Trademarks with finite

useful lives
Computer software
Customer relationships
Patents

5 years

5to 10 years
5 to 20 years
5 to 10 years

The trademarks with indefinite useful lives are renewable at
minimal cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the trademarks continuously and has
the ability to do so. Various studies including market, competitive
and environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities
have been performed by management of the Group, which
supports that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the management of
the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the
impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND  23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives set out in Notes 21 and 22 have been
allocated to three individual CGUs. The carrying amounts of
goodwill and trademarks (net of accumulated impairment losses)
allocated to these units are as follows:

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

8 5 LR IR BT 5 R
W E AR AR

LB EREM S 21 K229 Fr
FEERAERNERFHNER
ENRE=ZEERFETELEMU-D
REFZFEMANEERBEENREE
(RERRREBERR WT :

Goodwill Trademarks
meE [}

2022 2021 2021 2021
20225 20214 2021 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARE FTARE TARK
HKSSL EBIRE 204,017 204,017 17,600 17,600
Arcata ERSE 7,369 7,369 - =
NVC DK A/S NVC DK A/S - - - -
211,386 211,386 17,600 17,600

In addition to goodwill and trademarks above, property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(including allocation of corporate assets) that generate cash
flows together with the related goodwill and trademarks are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of impairment
assessment.

SRrEAEERERIN EERTRE
WX -BERRFE HUETLEE
RERREE (BESEARNEE)
BEEEFBHERBER TAZEN
REEEEM DETRESG-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

HKSSL

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 16.21% (2021:
15.60%). HKSSL's cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2021: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the historical consumer price index
growth rate and does not exceed the average consumer price
index growth rate in the United States. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have
been reassessed as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group’s wholesales operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
on HKSSL. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of HKSSL to exceed the recoverable amount of HKSSL.
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

Arcata

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 14.14% (2021:
14.0%). Arcata’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2021: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average consumer price index growth
rate in the PRC for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include sales growth rates and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have
been reassessed as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions of the Group’s wholesales operations.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment on Arcata. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of Arcata to exceed the recoverable amount of
Arcata.

23.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z
E%&Eﬁﬁpﬁ%f%m
mEEREANR (B
f =13

ZEBEMANTWEEREERIEERE
BEtELET %t EERENRERE
B#EN KERAFHREEAENIR
ERETAAKRITIRE14.14% (2021
F114.0%) cMEEREFBULD
BEReaFEEEBTEM2% (20214F :
2%) MEXEHEBH ZEEXEER
METENEREER I BEAEBES
B A8 BE 1T B T 3508 B B 18 15 BUE
EX.tEHEHEEMS RN E R
1EX E—ii@%mt]\/ﬂuﬂj'fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’@
EHEREREEKREHNER > ZEFER
ZEBEMBAERREMAEEEH MBS E
BHMEHH EEINAFERSNMGE
AHEEM » RACovid-19% 15 PI SE N
ﬁé’f@&/,\ﬁr‘jfﬁﬁzﬁu&%ﬂﬁi
S8 E (BEAEEN S EKE
FRET) 52202248 20215128 31 El
E’Jﬁ%»ugi‘ﬁiﬂﬂ\i%%&Tﬁfﬁﬁe
KB R AT o

B E2022F 12831 H K2021F128
S1HIEEE AEBEEBEEMF
BIERE BEBRA EAUZSE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (continued)

NVC DK A/S

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 15.5%. NVC DK
A/S’s cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 1% growth rate. This growth rate is based
on the inflation rate of Denmark in 2026 as projected by the
International Monetary Fund. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include sales growth rates and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management of the
Group determines that impairment loss of RMB24,309,000 in
respect of the goodwill has been recognised as the recoverable
amount of this unit is less than its carrying amount.

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

23.

24.

B8R AREE GREHN
®REERENR (&)
NVC DK A/S

ZEBEUMNTWESEEREEHB
BB LIEE ZtEEREERE
EEHEMNRELEHTHFEEN
BEMETA RITIRZE15.5%NVC
DK A/SEEHMU EMIBES REFH

BENIREEXHEESH ZEBRE

XENEREBESHAMTBANH
F2026FWBERKRX -5tEER

BEEEANEMBARBRRARER
A/ st AR GEHEERE
REMEK st ERZEUBER
BREBEHMHERNTAR-

HE2021F12B31HLEEE » K&
EEEBRET AN ZEML TG
SHREREEREE BEEIXEHBE
FURERE AR #24,309F jt o

Cost of interests in associates
Share of post-acquisition profit and
other comprehensive income,
net of dividends received
Impairment losses recognised

B UR S

BRI ERBE

Details of each of the Group’s principal associates at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:
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i ERF EREMEEEA

REE ATz ER

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FAR®

1,029,217 819,217

(148,856) (221,747)

(50,148) =

830,213 597,470
AEBRZFEBME AT NBRESHAR

REBIWT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24.
Country of Principal Proportion of
incorporation/ place of  ownership interest
Name of entities registration business held by the Group
MR/ FEEMGAMAR
BRERE HER FEEEME i ]

Brilliant Lights International Singapore Singapore 30%
Holding Pte. Ltd. (“BLIHP”)

Brilliant Lights International N N 30%
Holding Pte. Ltd. (TBLIHP )

Zhuhai Zhengtong Electrical The PRC The PRC 10%
Industrial Co., Ltd.*
(“ZZED)

KEMEREIEE HE HE 10%
BRAB" (KEER))

Elekzon PTY Limited Australia Australia 20%
(“Elekzon”)

Elekzon PTY Limited M M 20%
(TElekzon 1)

Beijing Marriott Runde Energy The PRC The PRC 20%
Saving Technology Co., Ltd.?
(“BIWH)

TREBRHEEMEREK FE HE 20%

BRAR (EREBR)

s These companies are limited liability company in the PRC.

The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the share of results
of associates for the year or constitute a substantial portion of the
Group’s interests in associates. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

30%

30%

10%

10%

20%

20%

20%

20%

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

REERR 2 #w ()

Proportion of
voting rights held
by the Group Principal activities
SEEMERER
a7 TEEDH

2021
20214
(Note)
(Hizt)

30% 30%  Investment holding and
manufacture and sales of
lamps, luminaries, lamp
transformers, lighting
electronic products and
other appliances

30% 30% BEEBRUKRNERFEEL
BERERERE R
REFERKREMER

10% 10%  Sales of lamps, luminaries,
lighting electronic products
and other appliances

10% 10% HESLR BE RAETE
R HER

20% 20%  Sales of lamps, luminaries,
lighting electronic products
and other appliances

20% 20% SHEXR-BE -RRAEFE
R EMER

20% 20%  Research and development of
LED lighting products and
other appliances

20% 20% LEDRFAEmMKHMRXEN
&

*
0

ZEARBEEREANAREER
ER)

ERINHEERHIERTERIGH
ERBDFEXEWBEHREER B
ERNARmEERIB D ZEAEB B
ERF EERRIHAMBERT
HBE gTLERBESRR-
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24.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note: In the opinion of the directors, BLIHP, ZZEl, Elekzon and

BJWH are regarded as associates of the Group because
the Group appoints director in the board of directors of
the respective companies which indicates the Group has
significant influence over the respective companies.

Impairment assessment of interest in BLIHP

BLIHP and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “BLIHP
Group”) are engaged in manufacturing and sales of lamps,
luminaries, lamp transformers, lighting electronic products and
other appliances with the NVC brand in PRC. BLIHP’s sales were
made through various e-commerce platforms and traditional
sale channels, representing the online and offline segments
respectively. Triggered by the influence of Covid-19 pandemic in
PRC, BLIHP’s offline business had been adversely affected during
the year ended 31 December 2022, resulting in a substantial
shortfall in operating profit when compared to previous year’s
financial budgets approved by management. Consequently,
the Group’s management concluded there was indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessment on the
carrying amount of interest in BLIHP, an associate of the Group,
as a whole.

The Group’s management engaged an independent qualified
professional valuer to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount of interest in BLIHP, based on the past performance of
BLIHP and the expectations from the Group’s management for
the market development estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Impairment assessment of interest in BLIHP
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the interest in BLIHP is determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and discount rate
of 14.0% (2021: 14.0%). BLIHP’s cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2021: 2%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average consumer
price index growth rate in the PRC for the relevant industry.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include sales
growth rates and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. The cash flow projections, growth rates
and discount rate have been reassessed as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 taking into consideration higher degree of
estimation uncertainties in the current year due to how the
Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in
financial markets, including potential disruptions of BLIHP’s offline
business. The recoverable amount of the interests in BLIHP
amounted to RMB818,152,000 as at 31 December 2022.

The results of the impairment assessment using these
assumptions show that the recoverable amount is below the
carrying amount of interest in BLIHP as at 31 December 2022.
The directors of the Company have consequently determined an
impairment loss amounting to RMB45,724,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2022.

If the discount rate was changed to 14.5%, which management
considers a reasonably possible change, while other parameters
remain constant, the recoverable amount of interest in BLIHP
would be reduced to RMB760,700,000 and a further impairment
loss amounting to RMB57,452,000 would be recognised.

If the budgeted sales pertaining to offline business covering
a 5-year period was decreased by 12%, which management
considers a reasonably possible change, while other parameters
remain constant, the recoverable amount of interest in BLIHP
would be reduced to RMB715,834,000 and a further impairment
loss amounting to RMB102,318,000 would be recognised.

24.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

REERR 2 #w ()
MBLIHPEY#E s B BT (2

MRBLIHPH # @ T W B £ 2EE R
BERBENELIBEC %8S
BEREEEBHENRE RS
FREENBEEREBEIAFTIEEX
14.0% (20214 : 14.0%) °BLIHPR
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TR EEIBARES7,452F T o

WOFERNEG TERERANTEEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24, REEATIZES (B)
Summarised financial information of a material —RITEBESATINIFEE R
associate )

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Standards.

ERTEETEHELNDNYBE
FHEEZEEINMT - U THBEREE
ERBMERRRERRMFREE
AR BV B AT EER

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

SRS LAMERET  HEREH
EPNGECET P INE

BLIHP BLIHP
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARYE
Current assets MEEE 2,535,670 2,474,668
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ~ JERBIBE (FEEEHSE) 3,985,623 4,077,224
Goodwill EES 2,009,136 2,259,871
Current liabilities =N (2,889,012) (3,244,932)
Non-current liabilities ERBER (2,606,635) (3,001,305)
Net assets FEE 3,034,782 2,565,526
Less: o
— goodwill —HE (1,656,247) (1,906,982)
— non-controlling interests in —RBEABZWEB R B MNIEE
the associate’s subsidiaries wltEEm (THE AT RIEE
(“Associate’s NCI”) Gk mll)) (244,654) (238,473)
Net assets, excluding goodwill and FEE FAOEBRERBMERTN
Associate’s NCI JEFESI M = 1,133,881 420,071
Proportion of the Group’s ownership KEBMEEB DL 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEBEEBHEADZTEE
associates, excluding goodwill and TEERERBE AT
Associate’s NCI JESESI = 340,164 126,021
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate W& AT HE 473,526 473,526
Impairment loss recognised B ER1E (45,724) -
Other adjustment HhiEze 50,186 (16,308)
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 818,152 583,239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24. REHERBIZHELE (B)
Summarised financial information of a material —REEBHE N TN FEE R
associate (continued) B (=
2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARKE FARYE
Revenue ON 4,368,921 4,490,821
Profit (loss) for the year REFH (F518) 475,099 (52,585)
Profit (loss) for the year excluding non- AEFTE (B18) > FEER
controlling interests in an associate’s BMEATZHBATN
subsidiaries JEZEHI M m 468,918 (61,666)
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEZEUWAES 241,636 10,409
Total comprehensive income for the year ZEZEUWA ST AEER
excluding non-controlling interests in BERB 2B AN
an associate’s subsidiaries PRSI 235,455 1,328
Aggregate information of associate that are not B 7 B KB E AT B E4E
individually material Bk

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021

#H F2022%F B E20214F
WPIZERN=NIR: 0 12531 H IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARK FARE

The Group’s share of profit KEEEGEFE 2,255 2,106

The Group’s share of total comprehensive Zs&EE(EEE N A S 5t
income 2,255 2,106

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ZEBRZEHE AT NELER
interests in these associates AEtEREE 12,061 14,231

BETERERARASE 202263
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E 202212531 HIFF/ZE
25. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI 25. BEAREBESAHEMEEI
A TH

2021

20224F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

TFTARK FARYE

Listed equity securities EhERES 13,700 14,000

Unlisted equity investments JE MRS 788 788

14,488 14,788

The above listed equity investments represents ordinary shares
of an entity listed in the PRC and the above unlisted equity
investments represent the Group’s equity interest in a private
entity established in the PRC. Both investments are not held for
trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes and
realising their performance potential in the long run.

R EThREREEERE LT
BEENERER LHRFLEHREaRE
EAEBRETREMAIINMEERRERN
RiE-2ERELFFIEXZEH
MmEARPEBRENMETER A5
EXEERER TAREEEAR
NABESAEMERRA AR
ERANIEBaERIZIRENAR
BEEHKSRFERRATAZX
SRERREBEBERRFEENNR
BEARET o

26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. B REEEIWER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAEK
Trade receivables B 5 ENER™ 326,585 494,933
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (11,579) (11,983)
315,006 482,950
Bills receivables R FEURER R 4,342 17,453
319,348 500,403

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customer amounted to RMB499,924,000.
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due from
related parties of RMB1,248,000 (2021: RMB1,365,000) which
are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major
customers of the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the transaction
date, and an analysis of bills receivables by age, net of allowance
for credit losses, presented based on the bills issuance date at
the end of the reporting period.

26.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

B REBEEBKIRR (&

FEW R R SRR A R 1E1,248F 7t
(20214 : AE#1,365F 75) 5t A
AEBBSEWRI  ZFERFNE
NEERGHHREARERTER
PR o

UTRERNXZHEBEINESZRE
WERR (BEHNREEEEEB) R
B URERKRESHRNZREE
TTEEZY) ZRE B DR RBEEIK
IR (BHREEBIBEER) Dif-

Trade receivables B 5 FEURBR TR
Within 3 months 3MEB R

4 to 6 months 4ZE6E AR

7 to 12 months 7E12@ 8

1 to 2 years 1EE2F
Over 2 years 2F Mk

Bill receivables EiRFEURER TR
Within 3 months 3EARN

4 to 6 months 4Z61@ B

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB54,256,000 (2021: RMB49,899,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMB10,049,000 (2021: RMB12,204,000) has been past due
90 days or more and is not considered as in default based on
repayment records of those customers and continuous business
with the Group.

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TARK
265,861 425,312
46,473 53,480
1,285 1,571
520 1,748

867 839
315,006 482,950
2,643 14,853
1,699 2,600
4,342 17,453

R2022F12831H  AEENE S
FEWNBR N ERZEP EIFREAEE A A
R#654,256F 75 (202145 : AR
49,899F jT) WEWERR » ZE I
IR IR E HEAE AHEE - E A HAGREE
Fo AR®E10,049F 7T (20214 © A
E#12,204F 5) EEHOHTEE
B BIRIBEZER P WIEREC &
FREREBMNFEER THELE
i\ o

m
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ERE M HRRMEE

7 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

26.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, total bills received amounted to
RMB4,342,000 (2021: RMB17,453,000) are held by the Group
for future settlement of trade receivables. All bills received by the
Group are with a maturity period of less than six months. Other
than bills receivables, the Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Trade receivables amounted to RMB57,435,000 (2021:
RMB163,300,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 42).

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables
are set out in Note 44(b).

Transfer of financial assets

The following were the Group’s financial assets at 31 December
2022 and 2021 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing
those bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amount
of the bills receivables and the full carrying amount of the trade
payables (see Note 31) for endorsed bills receivables. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bills receivables endorsed to suppliers with full recourse

26.

B REEBRKIRR (&

R2022F 1283 1H  A&EBRFEE
EEWERARBEARKAL 342F T
(20214 : AR #17,453F %) ° B
MRAKREEE ZEINERR - AEE X
BT A ZHM R H RS DR
@A o FREHEWIRRIN > AEBE W
EZEEREAEMERER-

EREE AR HE57,435F 75 (20214
AR #163,300F Jt) B9 E 7 FE W ER
REEAETEBRERNETRZF LU
3R (fF5E42)

B 5 hEEEWRDRB R ET G
1EE R MT5E44(b) ©

HETHMEE

UTRAREER2022E12831H K
2021F12B31HBBUEERER
R EERRERRREETHERS
HNEmMEE HRNAEBE RS REHZ
% /e YR BR FR AR R B9 2 K JEL B R SR
WEMBEMRESENZEREIER
BREREWRSNEIREE KR
BSEMERR (BHeE31) 23R
HE ZETHEEEAERNEGS
B 75 AR 0 2R LU SH R AR B s ©

RIREGEERBE T EIEREL
FIRE W IRL

HEEENREE
R ERNREE

Carrying amount of transferred assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 27.

PREPAYMENTS

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Non-current asset EREEE
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEENEN
PRC value added tax recoverable ARIBEFEIEER

Deposits paid to and other receivables KRTFE=ZFHNREBEREW
from third parties F=HEMBUERRR
Other receivables due from related parties & B8 B 75 B9 E 1th FE U BR X

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EERBRE

Other receivables due from related parties F& U B8 B 75 B9 E 1th FE UK BR X

— Associates —ERE

- An entity with significant influence over —¥ZAAB]HE E AR EN
the Company =552

- Subsidiaries of the entity with —HARNBBEATEN
significant influence over the BRENWEAR

Company

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set out
in Note 44(b).

WEEME BERREXTREE

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
=+ =
HEU R R KR TE
(BEN
NE 7N

2022 2021

20224F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARYE TFARH

297,009 296,987

12,050 22,710

26,958 36,647

24,162 27,643

25,505 29,045

88,675 116,045
(2,692) (2,464)

85,983 113,581

12,593 16,246

6,647 7,254

6,265 5,545

25,505 29,045

H A FE WL BR AR B0 R B 5T (i sF 1B E I
i 5E44(0) ©
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Fo0224F 12531 H IFFEE
28. INVENTORIES 28.
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAREE TFARH
Raw materials and consumables FEMEFHFE & 80,432 147,606
Work in progress F s 22,745 40,777
Finished goods X & 344,683 435,655
447,860 624,038

During the current year, management of the Group considered
the market performance and the expected net realisable value
of the inventories, net. As a result, the Group has written down
inventories of reversal, of RMB25,156,000 (2021: RMB8,477,000)
to their net realisable values and included in “Cost of sales”.

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT FVTPL  29.

REEE ~EBEEEBEZEET S
EREREFENBHEUESIEFEE X
It ZAEBERES GORERL) A
E125,156F T (20214F : AR
8,477F 7o) MUBRZEH A IR FE > I
st ATSHER A o

BAnBEFABRDNER
BEE (B8R

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARME FARHK

Listed securities held for trading: FIEBEEB LmEs .
Equity securities listed in the PRC, R =R RAES
at fair value A RBEESR

Derivatives that are not designated in REHAGRAGEPIEENTT

hedge accounting relationships: £TE:

Foreign currency forward SRR R A —
contracts — Current (liabilities) WE) (B BE
assets

Foreign currency forward SN IRER A AT —
contracts — Non-current assets FERBEE
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS (LIABILITIES) AT FVTPL

(continued)

Major items of the foreign currency forward contracts are as

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2022:

Notional amount

HEEE

Maturity
EHAHE

29.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

BARBEFABRDNER
BEE (B8R (&

HE2022F12A31HLEEE :

Exchange rate

EZX

Sell GBP1,764,000
HE1,764,0002 §

Sell USD5,000,000
i £5,000,000% 7T

Sell USD5,000,000
i £5,000,000% 7T

Sell USD5,000,000

28 February 2023
2023F2H28H

15 February 2023
2023F2815H

7 March 2023
2023F387H

7 March 2023

GBP1: RMB8.90
13285 : AR%8.9070

USD1: RMB6.54
17T . ARM6.547T

USD1: RMB6.43
170 ¢ AR6.437T

USD1: RMB6.43

! £5,000,0003 7T 2023F387H 12570 ¢ AR#6.437T
Year ended 31 December 2021: HE2021F12H31HILEFEE :
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
LEEHE EH#R E=x
Sell GBP1,989,000 17 May 2022 GBP1: RMB9.00
1,989,000 §% 2022%F5817H 13488 | AR#9.007T

Sell GBP1,000,000
H £ 1,000,000 §5

Sell GBP1,764,000
HE1,764,0005% £

30 December 2022

20225F12H30H

28 February 2023
2023%F2H28H

GBP1: RMB9.05
1318% | AR¥9.057¢

GBP1: RMB8.90
13285 : AR¥8.9070
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ERE M HRRMEE

17177 N e |
For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

30.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short
term deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term
cash commitments, which carry interest at market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.03% (2021: 0.01% to 0.03%).

As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits amounting
to RMB320,317,000 carry fixed interest rate of 3.25% and
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the Group’s
bank borrowing amounting to RMB239,563,000, which will be
repayable in February 2023. Subsequent to the end of reporting
period, the bank borrowing was fully repaid in February 2023 and
the pledged bank deposits were released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowing. The remaining pledged bank deposits
amounting to RMB52,754,000 (2021: RMB83,272,000) carry
fixed interest rate ranging from 1.45% to 2% (2021: 1.55% to
2.75%) and represent deposits pledged to banks as security for
the bills issued by the Group to the relevant suppliers for future
settlement of trade payables. The pledge bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bill payables.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and pledged
bank deposits are set out in Note 44(b).
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30.

RERFEEEY EHEKHE
IRITFER

HehBE2EBYERIHENR
BEERmERNERE RS X
WIAEHER BN F0.01%E0.03%
(20214 : 0.01%%E0.03%) W %5
MEFE o

R2022F12H31H £ 8EA AR
320,317 F oM E R IFR T EIZE
EFIZE3.25%t E > 15K FIRITU
ERAERER2023F 28 BER
TEZRARIEE239,563F TTHITERR ©
RIREBR%E  IRITE 202352
B2 EER  BIRFIRITERNIER
RITENEERBE - SHEAARE
52,754F 75 (20214 | AR #§83,272
T NER TERIFIRITEFEREN
F1.45%F2% (20214 . 1.556%F
2.75%) WEEF Xt B 1I5EBT
RITHEFEAXEEHBREME
BELEEZEUHABEEEZEN
EREIE R o BIRIFIRTTERE R
HEREN EE S ERFRE o

RTEHRREBRIFERTERNEE
SEhsF BB MY 5E44(b)



31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

TRADE PAYABLES

31.

Trade payables due to third parties

Trade payables due to related parties

BN E=7EZEMRR
FE{J RA B 75 &2 53 P A BR AR

Trade payables due to third parties under fHFERE RIS L HE T E (T

supplier finance arrangement (Note)
Trade payables due to related parties
under supplier finance arrangement

(Note)

E=7H B HENRM H52)
HERMEZ RN
REE 75 B 5 FE (T ARAR (M7 22)

Note: These relate to trade payables in which the Group has

issued bills to the relevant suppliers and related parties for

future settlement trade payables. The Group continues to

recognise these trade payables as the relevant banks are

obliged to make payments only on due dates of the bills,

under the same conditions as agreed with the suppliers

and related parties without further extension. In the

consolidated statement of cash flows, settlements of these

bills are included within operating cash flows based on the

nature of the arrangements.

Bl FE20224F 12531 HIFFE
B 5 B IR

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TARK
192,797 409,871
11,006 40,259
24,582 159,110
- 580
228,385 609,820

Mta . ZERFERERDMARMER
R BAZE LB REE
BEZRUERNE ZEIERR
B -AEREERIZEESE
HRR ARARRITRREMRE
8 2 BB 75 15 E RO AR R AR £F 1B 7E
SEIPELGR MAGE-—DIE
He-RGaRERERD
MEEREZHOEEST A

RERE -

BETERERARASE 202263
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

31. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 31.

B RRMR (&

2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFTARK FARYE
Trade payables due to related parties  FE{dRiH 75 2 5 FE{FER R
— Subsidiaries of the entity with —HARBEEAXENERN
significant influence over the B J&8 /A 5]
Company 7,971 14,821
— Associates =N 3,035 25,438
11,006 40,259
Trade payables due to related parties {HFERERIE ZHE TR RIS
under supplier finance arrangement B3 EFIRR
— Subsidiaries of the entity with —HARBEEAFENERN
significant influence over the S EENE
Company - 580

The followings is an aged analysis of trade payables not under
supplier finance arrangement presented based on the transaction

TEREHWIFENZZ BEANHE
BHREZHTEZREMERNKRE

date. Do
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY TFARL
Within 3 months I EN= 187,206 428,538
4 to 6 months 4ZE6@ A 8,656 11,085
7 to 12 months 7TE12EA 4,969 1,272
1 to 2 years 1EF2E 1,683 7,415
Over 2 years 2FE L F 1,289 1,820
203,803 450,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE20224F 12531 HIFEE
31. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 31. BEEMAKRM E
The followings is an aged analysis of trade payables under TEREFVWEREEBRITHEENMHE
supplier finance arrangement presented based on the bills EHMEZHE TTE ZERFE®
issuance date. Mo
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE FARE
Within 3 months 3EA R 10,448 118,693
4 to 6 months 4ZE6E A 14,134 40,997
24,582 159,690
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 30 to 180 EESYNEHEESEA30E180K
days (2021: 30 to 180 days). (20214 : 30FE180XK) °
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HtEMIRFKRTEIRER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR
Other payables and accruals HihEA RS A TBIRER 155,189 236,874
Dividend payable FEATAR B 3,771 3,452
Refund liabilities BTAEE 8,479 10,555
Other payables due to related parties Hfth FE T RA RS /5 BR AR 5,216 3,420
172,655 254,301

Other payables due to related parties H {th & BA Bt 75 BR AR

— Associates —HE AT 1,584 1,164
— Subsidiaries of the entity with —HBANBDEEALEN
significant influence over the BRENWEAR
Company 3,632 2,256
5,216 3,420
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

33.

aR&RE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE TARK

Sales of goods HE S

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB47,028,000.

The contract liabilities were expected to be recognised as
revenue in the next 12 months. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contract which has
an original expected duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

39,008 34,205

R2021E1B1H aREBEA AR
47 028F IT ©

BHERERRERKI2ER RiE
BAWA - RIFEERMHHRSZERE
165EMIEF Rl DEETFRTEMEH (R
FREAER A —FRER) IR ZER
RTHEE -

TRETTHEINBAREESEH
BEENAREEUKEMNRBAREE
BITHNBENERBHNAREE-

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TARE

Revenue recognised that was included — FE#st A &R & ELA
in contract liability balance at the [ELi: N
beginning of the year
— Sales of goods —HESMm
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in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 34. IRERIBEEE EE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MR G BERAIRENEYmMS
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities ETFiRERBEEEREBEE R
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax UTNAMFBEREMS NELERIE
balances for financial reporting purpose: LEER DA -
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY TFARL
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIEE E 9,364 10,043
Deferred tax liabilities RIEIRIEE G (53,233) (59,703)
(43,869) (49,660)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets UTFANREAFERBTEERIIH
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior FTEIRIERIE (BE BEURESE
years: & .
Taxable
Fair value Fair value temporary
adjustments change of difference
arising from Deductible financial arising
business temporary assets at from
combinations differences FVTPL relocation Total
RAAER
FHABEN e
rEAH TREE 51H2Z
HECN A ARER &
EIEEES ERER 5] ERNESR L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE

At 1 January 2021 #o02141818 (50,262) 16,293 - (13,141) (47,130)
Deferred tax credit (charged) to I8 T3t A (18R #9

orofit or loss BIERE 5,269 6,220) (2,047) 468 (2,530)
At 31 December 2021 20014128318 (#5,013) 10,073 (2,047) (12,673 (49,660)
Deferred tax credit (charged) to ~ FMBZHEHA (1ER) £

profit or loss EILRE 5,269 (1,382 1,436 468 5,791
At 31 December 2022 20006128318 (39,744) 8,691 611) (12,205) (43,869)
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TV

ERE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

34.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group has accumulated tax losses of RMB51,401,000
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB51,401,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the respective group companies in which the losses
arose. In addition, the Group has accumulated tax losses of
RMB103,417,000 (2021: RMB28,228,000) and RMB159,359,000
(2021: RMB76,269,000) as at 31 December 2022, which will
expire in one to five years and in one to ten years for offsetting
against taxable future profits, respectively.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses of RMB314,177,000 (2021: RMB155,898,000) arising
from the subsidiaries as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available in the foreseeable future against which the
accumulated tax losses can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB365,588,000 (2021: RMB350,582,000).
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately RMB45,196,000 (2021: RMB50,365,000) of
such deductible temporary differences. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining approximately
RMB320,392,000 (2021: RMB300,217,000) as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB476,853,000
(2021: RMB471,232,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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34.

BEREERE &R (B

R2022F12H31H  KEBM Rt
RIEEIE ARKS1,401F 75 (2021
£ AR M51,401F 5) > o] 4 [R &f
HWIHELEEEZHEBEEELATMNR
HPERIR A o I AN > FR2022F12
B3 1H AEEBNRFRNIERBIE A
E#103,417F 7t (2021F : AR
28,228 F 7t) M AR #159,3597T
(20214 : AE¥76,269F7T) > 7
DRI ESE AR KR 1EA10E WK i
E i E b

HRAEERANTBEERKRZSE
AHAMNRARIEEE T HESR
MAEIESE  MERAAEZERNB RS
EXNREBBARE314177F T
(20214 : AR"155,898F jt) e
RIREIRIBEE ©

RIRE AR > A B 89 A 1008 & B
EXEA NR365,5688F 75 (2021
F . AR#8350,582F 7¢) c 2% 1]
MEEREEERGARKL5196F
7t (2021%F : AR #50,365F 7T)
ERIPELERBEE -FGFHAR
#320,392F 75 (20214 : ARHE
300,217F 7o) RFERIEIEIR I & /= »
R2&RKBIHAER B LB 303 E =
FEIE 5 BO FE AN AR I o

RIFPE =TSR E > 5200841
B1HEE » s E M &A= A F
HEIRR G EBHBWTEINR c A A
EEAE DTG TR EENED R
B BEETERNERERERERED
BEAZBIE AT BHREKD
TR M E A SRR EESR
HREFE ARIE476,853F 7 (2021
F:ARMEATT,232F 7T) tEHERIER
TE 5 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B F 2022512531 H IF EZ
35. BORROWINGS 35. f&m™
2022 2021
20225 202148
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY TFARK
Secured bank loans BIRFIRITER 271,858 39,450
Unsecured bank loans FEIRIRIRITER - 585
271,858 40,035

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE FARH

The carrying amounts of above borrowings _ %t f& 3% FE £ — £ &8 5§

that are repayable within one year or BEREEEKRRNREE
contain a repayment on demand clause ~ (fEREh& & FEER)
(shown under current liabilities) 271,858 40,035
Borrowings comprise: EXeE .
Contractual
Maturity date interest rate Carrying amount
5HAE ELEES REE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN TARH
Secured bank loans (Note a) BRERTER (WiFa)  On demand Base*+1.90% p.a. 32,296 39,450
RE KA EAFEEE1.90%
(2021: on (2021: Base*+
demand) 1.90% p.a.)
(20214 : (20214 : B AF|R-
BERA) +EF1.90%)
Unsecured bank loans EWPRTER On demand 4.00% per month - 585
BEXA 2 H4.00%
(2021: on (2021: 4.00%
demand) per month)
(20214 (20214
BERE) 5H4.00%)
Secured bank loans (Note b) BRI ER Watb) February 2023 3.60% p.a. 239,562 -
2023524 §43.60%
271,858 40,035

BETERERARASE 202263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE 202012531 HIFF
35. BORROWINGS (continued) 35. fa®k
Note a: The secured bank loans represented facilities secured Hista:

by the pledge of certain trade receivables (Note 26). The
loan is repayable upon the collection of the factored trade
receivables.

Note b: The secured bank loans represented facilities secured by Miztb .
the pledged bank deposits (Note 30). The loan was fully

repaid in February 2023.

“Base” refers to the Bank of England base rate.

(&)

BIEMIRTEREUETEZRK
BRAR (B EE26) 1RIEIR 2 B E o 1 UL
CE2RENE ZRBURRE  ZE
EMENAEERE-

AT EREUABRRIRTE
R (MIEE30) fRIIR 2R E - BNE
122023F 2 £ HEE

ME AR %) 35 56 SR AT B B
ES

36. DEFERRED INCOME 36. IEEWIE

Government grants related to property, 12 ~ 5 & 5% 518 BB BUAT 4 B

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TARK

plant and equipment 2,577 2,667
Analysis as: S :

— non-current —JERE 1,568 1,658

— current — R 1,009 1,009

2,577 2,667

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

37. LEASE LIABILITIES

37. HE&GR

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year
but not exceeding two years

Within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding five years

Within a period of more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under current
liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12
months shown under non-current
liabilities

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range
from 3.7% to 9.4% (2021: 5.8% to 9.4%).

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR
EEHEEEE
—FR 10,776 14,890
—EL EBRBBRENHERA
6,391 9,409
MEMU EBRBBAFNABRA
12,610 14,633
BBAENHB A 2,625 6,310
32,402 45,242
BB aE N HIRE121E B 2 H
EEMNRIE
(10,776) (14,890)
RIERBERB NI RI12EH %R
EEIB
21,626 30,352

HEERTHANBEERFEN

F3.7%E9.4% (20214F : 5.8%F

9.4%) M IZH K5t o

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than DB EBRESRIESGEIINN G
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out A ENEESFEEYWT .
below:
Other
HK$ usD currencies
BT ET Hihg#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARE FTARE FARYE
As at 31 December 2022 R2022812831H 383 7,386 5,305
As at 31 December 2021 2021512831 H 1,700 9,479 12,581

BETERERARASE 202263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B F2022F 12531 H IEFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share of
US$0.0000001 each

Authorised:
At beginning and end of year

Issued and fully paid
At beginning of year

At end of year

39. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Amounts contracted for but

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements:

Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

38. R
Number of shares Share capital
R EE (&
2021
20214
RMB
ARETT
S E{E0.0000001ETTH
B
EE
RENRER 500,000,000 500,000,000 341,385 341,385
ERITRER
REH 4,227,281 4,227,281 3,074 3,074
REXR 4,227,281 4,227,281 3,074 3,074
39. BXRKHEMEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE TFARK
BEFINERRGEHBIRE
BENEEE
g2/ EN =Y
5,882 27,327

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z
PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FARTEMBATFIE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RIREHR A A EEEBEIEA
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below. B A FEEIMT .
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ML/ BETR
Rk BRRRE/
RETE EEhh HRRESES FERREENRE IEEH
directly indirectly
Ef ik
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2021 20225 2021%F
Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 - = 51% 51%  Manufacture and sale of lamps and
("Zhejiang NVC") related products
MWIELEEERAF" HE ARH HERHBERFREBER
(MHI%EL)) 20,000,0007C
Zhejiang Jiangshan Sunny Electron The PRC RMB10,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of light tubes
Co., Ltd.* for energy-saving lamps and
related products
WDIL=REFERAF" HE ARH HERHFEDEREEREBER
10,000,007
Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron  The PRC US$7,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of light tubes
Co., Ltd.* for energy-saving lamps and
related products
LUGEERRBERAR" HE 7,000,000% 7 HERHAEDEREEREBER
Arcata* The PRC US$10,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of lamp
transformers and other lighting
electronic products
F+F HE 10,000,000% 7 HERFERBARS RAMERA
World Through Investments Limited BvI US$50,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EEREFRAT EREARES 50,000% 70 REER
NVC Lighting Limited England and (GBP5,000,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lamps, luminaries and
Wales/the UK other lighting products
NVC Lighting Limited EREREAL 5,000,0008% BEXR BAREMBRHER
/#E
NVC Lighting International Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lamps, luminaries and
other lighting products
EIRBERERAR &E 200,000% 7 BB R BAREMRHER
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B F2022F 12531 H IEFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

40.

TR EEMBABFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
L/ BETR
R EfREL/
GRS BEME ARRERES FEERLENRE TERH
directly indirectly
Ef ik
2022 2021 2022 2021
020F WIS 20227 [Pk
NVC International Development Hong Kong HK$1 - = 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
FERREREEERAR Y 127 REER
LED Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding, R&D on LED
semiconductor technology and
related applications
REZRERAT &8 100,000% 70 REER MARBELEDFERR
R IAEER
Zhuhai NVC Youpin Industrial The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development and sale of
Co., Ltd.” luminaries and solar modules
KEELBREXERAT" HE ARE HERBERERABERH
10,000,00070
Arcata (Yangzhou) Electronics The PRC RMB5,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Manufacture, processing, sales and
Co., Ltd.* technical consultation of electronic
components and digital audio and
video codec equipment
A% (AN BFERAT" HE ARE RENI HERRUBIAE
5,000,007 - BFERRRRE R MR

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FARTEMBATFIE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ML/ BETR
AR BRERE/
AGER S B HRRERES FEAREEHRE TERH
directly indirectly
Ef ik

2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F WIS 20227 IS

Shenzhen Leiyun Optoelectronics The PRC RMB10,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Installation of intelligent control
Technology Co., Ltd.*™ systems, lighting systems,

intelligent lighting products,
lamps, smart door locks.
Research, development,
manufacture and sales of parts,
low- voltage electrical appliances,
anti-theft alarms, fire emergency
equipment, lightning protection

equipment products
RIBEHERHARAT" G AB% REBLEHRG DO B
10,000,00070 BHER YORREAEMH 5

% NERKEEH (EEE
BERER ARESRRRNE

REER

HKSSL Hong Kong USD15,000,000 100% 100% - - Trading of lighting products and
investment holding

HEthE &E 15,000,000%7 BERBERRRELR

ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc. The United USD25,000 - - 100% 100%  Trading LED lighting products and

States LED fixtures

ETI Solid State. Lighting Inc. 35 25,000%7% EELEDRHERKLEDI 5}

ETI Solid State Lighting (Wuhu) Ltd.*  The PRC USD15,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development,
manufacturing and trading of LED
lighting products

1ol ) KERRERAE HE 15,000,000% 7 & REREELEDRBER

ETI Solid State Lighting (Zhuhai) The PRC RMB130,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development,

Limited™ manufacturing and trading of LED
lighting products

1ol (B8) ABREARAT" HE AR e REREBLEDRBER

130,000,000
NVC Lighting Japan K.K. Japan Japanese Yen - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of LED
300,010,000 lighting products
NVC Lighting Japan KK. B 300,010,000 NEREELEDRAER
H
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 22022412531 H IFFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. BERAREEMBATFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
L/ BETR
AR EfERE/
GRS BEME ARRERES FEEEEENRE TERH
directly indirectly
Ef ik
2022 2021 2022 2021
020F WIS 20227 [Pk
Yidong (Zhuhai) Technology Co., Ltd.**  The PRC RMB1,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Trading LED lighting products
183 (58) BEBRAT" HE AR 1,000,000 BELEDRMER
NVC Technologies Canada Ltd. Canada - - = 100% 100%  Investment holding
NVC Technologies Canada Ltd. MEX - RERR
NVC Global Solutions Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ELER (8 BRAA Y 100,000t RELRK
Yixun (Huizhou) Lighting Technology ~ The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100% 100%  Research, development, sale and
Co., Ltd.* distribution of lighting products
188 (EM) XBREARAT HE AR 5,000,0007 HE HERNHERBER
Shenzhen Bao Cheng E-Commence ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Co., Ltd.* products through e-commerce
platforms and distribution
channels
ATEAEFEHERAT" HE AR1,000,0007 PRETHETORNHERENE
RAHBHAER
NVC Lighting & Electrical Technology  Singapore Singapore Dollars - = 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Singapore Pte. Ltd. 100 products, management
consultancy services
WMRELRAZRRERAT MK 100378 HERDMHRINER EEAINY
Crawford Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
RERFERAF Y 10,0007 REER
NVC Vietnam Technology and Lighting ~ Vietnam USD8,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric lighting
Company Limited (approximately equipment
Vietnamese Dong
("VND')
186,400,000,000)
NVC Vietnam Technology and Lighting ~ #7 8,000%7 (4 NEETRERE
Company Limited 186,400,000,000
e ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FARTEMBATFIE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(continued)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered and Effective equity interest
Company name and business paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ML/ BETR
AR BRERE/
AGER S B HRRERES FEAREEHRE TERH
directly indirectly
Ef ik

2022 2021 2022 2021
2022F WIS 20227 IS

NVC International Vietnam Company ~ Vietnam USD20,000 - = 100% 100%  Manufacture of electric lighting
Limited (approximately equipment
VND
462,800,000,000)
NVC International Vietnam Company ~ #& 20,000£ 7% (4 HEETRERE
Limited 462,800,000,000
HEE)
NVC International Investment (BVI) BVI USD10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Limited
NVC International Investment (BVI) HEABREE 10,000%7 REER
Limited
Bengbu Leiting Electronic Business ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - = 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
Co., Ltd products through e-commerce
platforms and distribution
channels
EREEEFHHERAT e AR 1,000,007 BRETHETORDHRERE
RABRBER
NVC Lighting AB Sweden Swedish Kronor - = 60% 60%  Sale and distribution of lighting
30,000 products
NVC Lighting AB it 30,0002 52 68 HERNHRPER
NVC Lighting Finland Oy Finland Euro15,000 - = 75% 75%  Sale and distribution of lighting
products
NVG Lighting Finland Oy Y| 15,00081 7 HERAHRAER
NVC DK A/S* Denmark Danish Krone - - 100% 100%  Sale and distribution of lighting
('DKK") 500,000 products
NVC DK A/S* fi% 500,000/ % 52 58 HERDHRAER
(TA%ERH)
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

* These companies were wholly-foreign-owned companies in
the PRC.

* These companies were limited liability companies in the

PRC.

W The Company was acquired during the year ended 31
December 2021, details was set out in Note 45.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of both years.

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

ownership
interests and
Place of incorporation voting rights held by
and principal place non-controlling
Name of subsidiaries of business interests
JefE R R
1M B 3L 3t R FRisFrB i &
AR BHE REEEEME ERLH

Zhejiang NVC The PRC 49% 49%

MIET hE

Individual immaterial subsidiaries BB FEEHIEERHIE—
with non-controlling interests EFEHBAT

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

Zkggﬁigﬁﬂ‘%’&ﬂﬁ%

=

BEEEAFEFMEDNIEEE
BB AR F B

TRINTEAERFEFEERR

KEBIFZERBLAT !
Profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests
ARE
JEsE I s RetIFEHIM
gl s

2022 2021 2022 2021
20226 20214 20226 20214
RMB’000 [aIVIzNeel RMB’000 [SiNISKeo}
SUNLE TART EEUNCLE TARY

19,805 26,435 120,050 100,245

8,830 1217 (2,236)  (10,927)

28,635 27,652 117,814 89,318

ERAEEBEAEAFEFEEm
WEWNBRENTBEERNREZHT
M- UTHHBERREARERR
BB EHRIBI = RE

BETERERARASE 202263
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i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Zhejiang NVC

Current assets MENE E

Non-current assets IEMEEE

Current liabilities Gk 2B=KE

Non-current liabilities FERBEE

Equity attributable to owners of the KABVHER NE(EE S

Company
Non-controlling interests of Zhejiang NVC #7188 = BIIEIE & M =
Revenue A
Expenses X

Profit and total comprehensive income KEFBREZEBA S
for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income KABHEE ABEFIERK
attributable to owners of the Company S2EBA G

Profit and total comprehensive income ALE B IEEGI R
attributable to the non-controlling LA R EEWA & T
interests of Zhejiang NVC

Profit for the year REF

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B @ #7718 £ FEIZHI1EE =
of Zhejiang NVC TR R

Net cash inflow from operating activities 4 & EEELERESTAFEE
Net cash outflow from investing activites R & EENELERE L FEE
Net cash outflow from financing activities FAE EENELERE L FEE

Net cash inflow (outflow) WERA () 258

NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

40. ZISgé‘ﬂIEWE’&E%ﬂ%

=l
AIE L

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARKE TFARH
313,206 453,990
86,088 71,389
(153,691) (320,178)
(603) 619)
124,950 104,337
120,050 100,245
677,077 797,471
(636,659) (743,523)
40,418 53,948
20,613 27,513
19,805 26,435
40,418 53,948

= 29,400

23,579 34,242
(9,193) (8,718)

= (60,000)

14,386 (34,476)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE20220F12831 HIFF/E
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. FBBERS
(@) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated (a) MRz a PR R R E i
financial statements, the Group has following transactions FIWBEEIN  AEBEREE S
with related parties: BEUTRS
Relationships Nature of transactions 2022 2021

EEE XBHE 20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE FARHK

Subsidiaries of the entity
with significant influence
over the Group:

HEAEEMAEBEATLENERN Trade sales 2,091 4,771
MEAE : tHE
Purchase 38,398 75,815
e
Rental income 781 1,228
A& WA
Other expenses - 11
Hhp
Rental expenses 60 74
e

Associates of the Group:

AEEMNBERT . Trade sales 1,958 4,735
sy
Purchase 12,868 29,898
BE
Consultancy service income 7,270 6,447
B AR WA
Trademark license income 10,131 9,494
EARET A A

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) RNEETESIE A E BN
Group

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE TARK

Short-term employee benefits RHrRERN 20,459 28,061
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ERE M HRRMEE

7 o = |
For the

year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 H IEFE

42.

43.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s borrowings had been secured by the pledge of the
Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the respective assets
are as follows:

Trade receivables B 5 EUERRR
Pledged bank deposits BEFIRITER

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year. The capital structure of the Group consists
of borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 35 and
37 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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42. IKWEE
KEBNERUELRERNE EFIR
HOEEEENERERENT ¢

2022 2021

2022 20214

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat FARKE FARH
57,435 163,300

373,071 83,272

430,506 246,572

43.

BEXEHE

AEBCEAEEETRGREAER
BETERSERELCE ANEBE
EEHFRREGHSRRERFNES
B AEBERRBRBEFE
MRBTE AEEBEAERERE DA
REE3RITHBNEMKREESR
B -NERENBEFEBYREAT
EAEARGEDZ (BREEEHTRA
BEMBREMER)

EEESHFER—RELRBF
RHILERN -0 EEBEEEE
ERRAERSEERWHERE &
REEEBRMZER ~EERBR
IKERE S BITHRMN  ROEER
BONEFABRFEARH FEH
BEEARE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44, R I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) SR T E%ER
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARH
Financial assets ERMEE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL S84 A A BE AB @2
— Held-for-trading -FER5 30,138 41,127
Financial assets at amortised cost R IHM A EN SRMEE 1,331,784 1,586,167
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAREESAREMEEERAN
EmITA 14,488 14,788
Financial liability EMERE
Financial liabilities at amortised BEIER A ENTRER
cost 587,818 797,290
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREBAESFABGNEREE 7,441 =

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and (b)

polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets (liabilities) at
FVTPL, trade and bills receivables, deposits, other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, other payables and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective manner. The
policies to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Market risk

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk during both years.

MHEREEREBERER

rEENTEESRIEGE
BRARBESAHMEEWY
ABNEZ T A -RAABES
AB@ZHNERMEE (BRE) B
ZREBHEEBIRR  REE
HthFE R BIRIFIRITE
PRERREFEY BH
FEATBRTR ~ MR AR B
Mo lbtFESRMT AFBRER
ZEENNF BZEEMIA
ERpRREEDSER (B
HERR AR ERR R H M E R
R EERRRARBER
JEV B o R 5% 40 fR0 Ok A% 5% 35 L B
WEREN T -EEREEE
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, bank balances and
borrowings which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. They are mainly denominated in RMB and USD.
The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from transactions that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RMB’000

44,
(b)

Liabilities

&af@E

EWMIH (&

MHBRREEBRKREE
(&)

P B

é:
AABDETHEATEINGE
BE CRITEBRRER X
SEEHIINERAR ZFRE
FTEUARERETHE K
EETEEHUEERERD
EEEBMIINERFENRS
FIT EE 2 A9 51 B8 B =R fEL B o

RERE R AEELUSNE 5
BEzEBREEREBAEREZ
SREIEWNT :

Assets

BE

2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TAREE TAR®E TAR

FARE

AR
e

RMB
usSD

12,558

7,621
18,713

158,359
198,113

506,847
247,780

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2021: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies of respective group entities.5% (2021:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2021: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A negative number
below indicates an increase in loss for the year (2021:
a decrease in profit for the year) where the functional
currencies of group entities strengthen 5% (2021: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5% (2021:
5%) weakening of functional currencies of group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the loss for the year (2021:
profit for the year) and the amounts below would be
negative.

44.

#r e A5 ER R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

EWMIA (&

(b) ﬂéiﬁ))ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ&&%

EiEmpEE (&)
R E T

TRELRAEBHEETR S
NEEKEEEEEIERH
INIE T+ B K B2 5% (20214 :
5%) ZBKE 5% (20214 :
5%) hEEEEEAEEIN
MmN RS RAZ®
RELLR KIBEIEEEINE
PEXR A AR IBE S~ (g o
BREDNEEERKRSE
2SN E2EIEE ) I
RIREEARIZE5% (20214F :
5%) vEXRSEFH BB ELT
HE- UTEAHRTNERSHE
B9 Ih A5 & & 2 AE B S S T (&
5% (20214 : 5%) WZAE K
BB (20214 © AEF]HE R
D) o HMEBBERBNINEER
AR E R E5% (20214 ¢
5%) > HAFEEE (20214F :
EFH) BHEAEFEBEERD
FEHLTEEAEE-.

Profit or loss Bm
RMB AR
USD E7T

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the relevant years.

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARKE TARK
(20,274) (6,030)
(9,409) (7,176)

EEERR FRERTHE
BR A8 BE 45 B2 B9 LB  EERRL S
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits (see Note 30) and
fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 35 for details). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note
35 for details). The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on borrowings. The Group aims at keeping borrowings
at variable rates. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising from
any interest rate movements based on interest rate level
and outlook. The management will review the proportion
of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure they
are within reasonable range.

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

44.

EWMIH (&

(b)

Interest income FEUWA
Financial assets at

amortised cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at FVTPL:

44.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

ERMTA (&)

(b)

Interest expense MEMZ
Financial liabilities at amortised

cost

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point (2021: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank borrowings represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2021: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss (2021: post-tax profit)
for the year would decrease/increase by RMB161,000
(2021: increase/decrease by RMB158,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in
variable rate borrowing.

REBHER A ENTREE

,ﬂ\?i’s‘j}ﬁ%"é‘ﬂﬁffﬁ‘—ﬁ&&%
=]

FIEREE (&)
WEEARBEFAERZD
THEaEnNFERY
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FARHK
9,576 905

HRE T

TSR E 2 AR 5 R S 8
REM KRR EE - %D TR
BRRBEMARAREENESR
TRAZFHRERE - FBIRT
BRI E A5 T F50M8
B (20214 1 50M@ &R - £
REEEHNMXGEEE
BT E - AR EEERE AT
BRTEHREENRERE
FERBRILRAEKN WIRITHE
HAEEERREDNTA -

WHRIZE EF T E501E EH B
(20214 : 501 & 2) > MFR
BEEMESSHFIE B RE
BEAFREIE (20214F | FiR
BAE) BRI BN ARK
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk and other
price risk arising from its investments in equity securities
measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI, and financial assets
(liabilities) at FVTPL, respectively. For equity securities
measured at FVTPL listed in the PRC, the management
of the Group manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. In addition,
the Group also invested in certain quoted equity securities
National Equities Exchange and Quotations for long
term strategic purposes which had been designated as
FVTOCI. The Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity and other price risk at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 5%
(2021: 5%) higher/lower, the loss (2021: post-tax profit)
for the year would decrease/increase by RMB1,135,000
(2021: increase/decrease by RMB1,985,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets(liabilities)
measured at FVTPL and the other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by RMB724,000 (2021: other
comprehensive expense would decrease/increase by
RMB739,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
equity investments measured at FVTOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and bill receivables, other receivables, deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group only accepts
bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks if
trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising
from the endorsed or discounted bills is insignificant. In
this regard, the management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 9% (2021:
14%) and 31% (2021: 54%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model by grouping trade receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to the
Group’s aging of balances. Impairment of RMB405,000
is reversed (2021: RMB8,204,000 is recognised) during
the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

thl A
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances/bills receivables

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bill receivables is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bills receivables by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL on pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and bills receivables is considered to be insignificant and
therefore no loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management
makes periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
12m ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables
and deposits are insignificant and thus no loss allowance
is recognised.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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44.

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

AEEE TR

Low risk

HER

Watch list

B

Doubtful

a5k

Loss

B

Write-off

iG]

Description

fhid

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have
any material past-due amounts

HFHEANERBE BEYERFERBHMNA

Debtor frequently repays after due dates

but usually settle in full

EBARERIHERENEEE 2B

There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial

recognition through information developed internally or

external resources

REABEHIISERIEEER

1

EER RO SN

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired

AEBBTEEERLEEAE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect

of recovery

ARBERNEBALREAMFEE  BAEH

RAEWERENRESE

At B

SARI=

thl A
777

ERITH #E)

(b) HMBRAMEEEERBE

Cﬂﬁ )

1= B /m 2 R i (B 5T 15 (48)

AEBEAREERRER

A RETER

Trade receivables

B 7 e AR

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired
GERBREERSE
—RBLEERE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired
FEREREERE
—RELEERE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

GERBHREERSE
—RBEEERE
Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
FERBEREERE
—-BELEERE

Amount is written off

OB R

BETERERARASE 202263

Other

financial assets
HitnEmEE
12m ECL

2EARHAEEER

12m ECL

2R BBEEHE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired

FRIBAHEERE
- RELEEERE

Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
FEAEREESE
—BELEEERE

Amount is written off

AR
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B FE2022F 12531 HIFFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. EWMITH (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HFEAEKEEBIEREER

polices (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal
credit credit

Notes  rating rating 12m or lifetime
b[3: ] 128 B Sk F &5

M EEFAE ABEEFE  BHEESR

(#&)

n

1= B /m 5 R i B 5T 1S (8)
TEHIARESMEER
BEEEEERTENES
R BREEIR

Gross carrying amount

IREAE(E

ECL 2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK TAR

Financial assets at
amortised cost

REBHRAIRZENEE
Trade receivables 26 N/A Low risk (note 1)  Lifetime ECL 326,585 494,933
(Collective assessment)
E AER RERK W21) FEBEHEESE
(ERBaT(E)
Bills receivables 26 AA N/A 12m ECL 4,342 17,453
ZRRIRR BB 12BARHAEEEE
Other receivables and deposits 27 N/A Low risk (note 2)  12m ECL 49,667 56,688
EmEUER RES AEA ‘R Hit2) 12BREHEEESE
Pledged bank deposits/ 30  AA N/A 12m ECL 965,461 1,031,540
bank balances
BIFRITER/ RITHER BB 12BABHREERE
Notes: Bz -
(1) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the (1) MEZREWEET AERE

simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

M

(continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess
the impairment of trade receivables from
customers because these customers consist
of a large number of customers with common
risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired).

ir e MR MTEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

44, £FET R (&

(b) HMBRAMEEEERBE
(#)

EE BB R B EFE (&)
W3E © (#)
DR/

FREEBEERKRERE
B—8 0 AER AR
BRMARE ST BT R B
ZERTBEEB R BAAZ
ERREEAREAFHE
EBREFENER  2EFHEE
R E R IRIE S IR
PR A ZIEARRIAMAE D o T
KRHEEMEEERES
FE R BR AR FT B H R (E E &
REKR BRERDBER
FREABEMREERE R
EEERE BENRAE
BT RS o

Average Gross carrying
amount
IREAEE

% RMB’000

FARE

loss rate
FIERE

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
Current BP &R

Less than 2 months past due B DRR2ER
2 to 6 months past due HAHR2E6ME B

7 to 12 months past due mHA7E121E B
Over 1 year past due ARA1FE U £

1.59 272,328
2.68 44,208
21.57 3,778
69.36 3,166
98.37 3,105
326,585
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Notes: (continued)

44.

EMTITAE #E
(b) HERAKEEBEREE

(&)

1= B /m B2 R A B (E

et - (&

(1) (continued) (1) %,

Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount
TR E IREARE
% RMB’000
FARE

31 December 2021 20215128318
Current BPHA 1.02 461,678
Less than 2 months past due mH DR 2E AR 4.93 22,387
2 to 6 months past due mHIcE61E B 35.33 4,195
7 to 12 months past due BHITE12 B 18.35 2,395
Over 1 year past due BHAITEM £ 99.30 4,278
494,933

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group made a
reversal of impairment allowance of RMB405,000
(2021: recognition of impairment allowance of
RMB8,204,000) for trade receivables based on the
provision matrix.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Notes: (continued)

2) In determining the ECL, the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information as appropriate.
There had been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. As at 31 December
2022, impairment allowance of RMB256,000
were made (2021: impairment allowance of
RMB825,000 were reversed) on other receivables
from third parties and related parties amounting
to RMB24,162,000 and RMB25,505,000
(2021: RMB27,643,000 and RMB29,045,000),
respectively.

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

44, £FET R (&
HERGESEEERKE

(b)

(&)

1= B /m 5 R BT (E

Miat (8

@)

NEEEAEERER
TEEEHEEERBEN
BHCBRAEEER -8
TIARER LR (5 B R Rt
mEBEIE N - 722022412
B31H WMEKBFE=FAK
R B 5 B E U BR 7R (9
BB AREE24,162F TR
AR #25,505F 75 (2021
£ ANR#27,643F TR A
R #29,045F 7T) ) fEH A
EZH AR 1256,000F 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

B FE2022F 12531 HIFFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, EFIT R (&
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) MHBEEMEEEEZERER
polices (continued) (#)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) /S" §/§7 /Z@ V74 //ﬁ /E' 5-7-'- ﬂ’_lf C%’F)
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss, TRITEREBEBIE T ERM
allowances that has been recognised for trade receivables B 2 FE W BRE TR EE SR A9 S 18
under the simplified approach. BEEHER ©
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired Total
FIEHTEE TFEHATAHR
EERE EE/E
(R&% (B#&E
EERE) EERE) =1
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARKE FARME FARYE
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F181H 7,447 - 7,447
Changes due to financial ®2021FE181HER B
instruments recognised as at ETMTASIRNES !
1 January 2021:
— Impairment losses recognised — BB RERSE 612 - 612
— Impairment losses reversed — B LR ERSE (3,930) - (3,930)
New financial assets Wi EREE 11,522 = 11,522
Transfer [ $24 (3,556) 3,556 =
Write-offs e - (3,556) (3,556)
Exchange realignment PE A= (112) = (112)
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021412831H 11,983 - 11,983
Changes due to financial R2022FE1B1HER
instruments recognised as at BERsRerm LRSI
1 January 2022: Ry
— Impairment losses recognised — BB EEE 745 - 745
— Impairment losses reversed — B &L ERSE (8,777) - (8,777)
New financial assets M EmMEE 7,627 = 7,627
Exchange realignment PE e B 1 = 1
As at 31 December 2022 7R2022812H31H 11,579 - 11,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44,

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are
mainly due to:

RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Zo022F 12531 HIFF/E
EMTH #E
(b) HMFRAMEEBIEREER
(#)

1= B /m 5 R BT (E

B 5 IR NS 18 B s &
FERK

2022 2021

20224 20214
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)

in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
not credit- not credit-
impaired impaired
FEBTFEIEE R LR
B m GRl) EasknNez)
FABLEEERE EXEIE-0AE
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARKE FARE

Settlement in full of trade debtors 24 HAEREEA AR

with a gross carrying amount 489,595F 7T (20214 | AR

of RMB489,595,000 (2021: 493,207F 7T) M E 7 YRR

RMB493,207,000) (8,033) (7,592)
New trade receivables with MGEEREEAART

gross carrying amount of 317,043F 7T (20214F : AR

RMB317,043,000 (2021: 488,216 7T) B & 57 FE IRBR =X

RMB488,216,000) balances B 7,627 11,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss,
allowances that has been recognised for other

44, £FET R (&

(b) ﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ*ﬁ&&%
&

1= B /m B2 R A B (E

T &7 B HESDH fth AR UK AR
M EE R R

receivables.
Lifetime ECL
(credit-
12m ECL impaired Total
FIEHATEHA
EE/E
12@AEE (BREEE
EERE WAE) =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARH FARH TAR®
As at 1 January 2021 20211818 6,139 111,500 117,639
Impairment losses B LR ERIE T
reversed, net (825) (7,375) (8,200)
Transfers g (2,850) 2,850 =
Write-offs 5 - (106,975) (106,975)
As at 31 December 2021 72021512831H 2,464 - 2,464
Impairment losses recognised B #5278 B &5 12 256 - 256
Transfers g (256) 256 =
Write-offs 67! - (256) (256)
Exchange realignment PE R aE 2L 228 - 228
As at 31 December 2022 72022812831 H 2,692 - 2,692

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Notes 26 and 27 respectively.

332 NVC International Holdings Limited 2022 Annual Report

EHAEERRE S REME
WEEFMASHNEERRZ
E—FTEEREDHNHNH
512627 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the Group
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

44,
(b)

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

EWMIA (&

MEREEEBERER
(&)

T EZ/mE

HEERDERR ~EE
EERMEFEEERAES
ZHRERRESEYKF L
RAEEEZEBRNES I
BMERERERFZHE -F
EEEEREZFRITERN
EAER -

TRFIEAEBERERZ
REREMEIIBR - ZKRTH %
rEBAXNZRFEHHG
BEzeMmERzATRES

MEREHE - ARMS > ERR

TREAEEFTEEER:
BERBREEMRMBIERET

I

EMWeTt AR FHIRE L E e
H T EE R A /N2 H
BILERBENEEZBAM
Fo

TREBEMNEREEZHER
Bo-HAERERFENX,
AR SRARSHRF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

zlﬁ! A
7 o = |

FAFSER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 22022412531 H IFFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continueq)

44,

EWMIH (&

(b) HERAKEEBEREE
#)

Weighted  On demand Total
average or within 1-2 2-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year years years years cash flows amount
REREH FRRE
MEEIRIE R—ER —EME ZERf BRLE MEBH KEfE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FARE  TAR®  TARE  FAEE  TARE  TAR
At 31 December 2022 12022 12831H
Non-derivative: E
Trade payable BAEMER - 228,385 - - - 228,385 228,385
Other payables HitEERN - 87,575 - - - 87,575 87,575
Borrowings (EEA
- fixed rate -E8 3.60 248,186 - - - 248,186 239,562
- variable rate 1) 2.08 32,296 - - - 32,296 32,296
Lease liabilities RE&R 7.79 11,615 6,902 13,619 2,835 34,971 32,402
608,057 6,902 13,619 2,835 631,413 620,220
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or within 1-2 2-5 Over5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year years years years cash flows amount
RERET FRRE
MET 7% R—%R —EME ZERE BRLE k=gt REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FARE FARE FARE TARE TARE TARK
At 31 December 2021 120214126318
Non-derivative: JETE:
Trade payable BARMEN - 609,820 - - - 609,820 609,820
Other payables A B - 147,435 = = - 147435 147,435
Borrowings (R
- fixed rate -ER 48,00 585 - - - 585 585
- Variable rate %8 2.15 40,298 - - - 40,298 39,450
Lease liabilities HEaf 717 16,757 10,883 18,447 6,630 52,717 45,242
814,895 10,883 18,447 6,630 850,855 842,532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company have set up a valuation committee,
which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation
committee works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the valuation committee’s findings to the directors
of the Company every quarter to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities;

44,
(c)

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

EWMIHE (&

TRHIRNAAEEE

rEBEDESHMIARYF
ERENBAREBEFE-F
ABEZREHI—EHER
AERYHFERENMGESZ
Eg URMARBEFEERE
BENMGERL EREARE-

RESHRARBER  AEER
BERMSHHERBREHE -
TEE-—ERBARENRS
NT AEBZBE=78E8
BAEMETHE HREZE
THGERIBEEMNER
GERIBREBREANGEES
ERBABE -BEVHES
FERAEABDESTTERMG
BEZETHNERUBELAR
BENSHHRA-

() FEEREEMEREE
KAREEFENZ
HBEERBRIAL
g

rEBETERMEER
BEREHARBAREE
sFE- TRIEHARBN
MEEZETMEEN
AnBE (LHEZEFFA
HERERBABE)
MR kEn nEES
ENBASHZARE
REEDHNRAAEES
EFfBAREBESHRZ
mAl (B—REF=MHR)

BBk

.  E—HAAAME
B s 8 EMEA
#E o R
SERT 5 R

(RERBE) ;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

()

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. EMI R &
(¢)  Fair value measurements of financial (c) E=EMIAMAREBE=E
instruments (continued) (#)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) KEEF I8 = 1 B E

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a WU IEEFAENE

recurring basis (continued) HEEREENAA
1B ()

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those ° E_HRRARE
derived from inputs other than quoted B2 RBEERN
prices included within Level 1 that are E—RFEESH
observable for the assets or liabilities, WEINE ET
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly BETEHER_
(i.e. derived from prices); and AR ME

i B 1% (BN 1E %
B1%) 5 (B
REER) ; &

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those ° E=ZHFARE
derived from valuation techniques that BxtE2EREE®E
included inputs for the assets or liabilities W IEE L o] T ER
that are not based on observable market EHiEERNE
data (unobservable inputs). ETBEINE A

2H (FABR

WAL WG

75 5% o
Relationship of

Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Line items Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
31 December

TARRHASHA

788 RUTHANAREE AREEER  GEFIRMREAZE EXTURRHAZE  AABEORE

12A318
2022 2021
20226 20215
RMB'000 RMB'000
Assets Assets
(liabilities) (liabilities)
TARH TARE
&E (8f) )
Listed securities 30,138 39,709 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A N/A
held for trading active market.
BEEELTRS F—H RERTHZEE- TBR TER
Equity investments 13,700 14,000 Level 2 Quoted bid prices in a N/A N/A
at FVTOCI market with insignificant
transaction volume.
BARBES AHM2E F-R RREEFANTRZR  FER TER
WARRAEE B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir e MR MTEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44, ERTH (&

(c)  Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMIAMARBE=E
instruments (continued) (#&)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) EF RS HEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a WURAAREEEFE
recurring basis (continued) HEEREEHNAA

A
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Line items Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
31 December
FIREHAZHA
(R-E] RUTEBNARER ARBEESEE BEFEREREASE EATIRRGAZE  ARABENMEAG
12A31H
2022 2021
20226 20014
RMB’000 RMB'000
Assets Assets
(liabilities) (liabilities)
TARH FARE
EE (Bf) I
Equity investments 788 788 Level 3 Income approach - in Discount rate, taking into A significant increase in the
at FVTOCI this approach, the account weighted discount rate would
discounted cash flow average cost of capital result in a significant
method was used to determined using a decrease in the fair
capture the present Capital Asset Pricing value
value of the expected Model, ranging from
future economic 14% to 16% (2021:
benefits to be derived 14% to 16%)
from the ownership of
this investee, based on
an appropriate discount
rate.
RARNBEIARMEE B=R WAE-ERERER F HRX ZRIFAELE WREABLABERA
BANRARE BRRREREERE EEBELRENME AEERETE
BENTREEERH THERRE BEA
FREUIRBERD  14%E16% (20215
FAERERNLER 14%%16%)
wRE.

BETERERARASE 202263

337



338
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AR e IR R I EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 22022412531 H IFFE
44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 44. EMI R &
(c)  Fair value measurements of financial (c) E=EMIAMAREBE=E
instruments (continued) (#)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) EF R EHEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a WURAREEEE
recurring basis (continued) /ﬁ_ﬂ ﬁ E /} ,é Eﬂg Zx‘fb

18 (&
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
Line items Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
31 December
FIREHASHA
788 RUTEBNALER ARBEESEE BESERMRREAZE EATIRRGAZE  AABENER
12A31H
2022 2021
2022 20015
RMB'’000 RMB'000
Assets Assets
(liabilities) (liabilities)
TAEH FARE
BE (8f) =R
Foreign currency forward (7,441) 1,418 Level 2 Discounted cash flow - N/A N/A
contracts Future cash flows are
estimated based on
forward exchange
rates (from observable
forward exchange
rates at the end of the
reporting period) and
contracted forward
rates, discounted at
rate that reflects the
credit risk of various
counterparties.
SMEBEHREH FH FRRERE-FRRRER FBR TER
ERREEMEX (R
BREBRIHZIN
BREX) kaRES
ExfE BRREA
ARZHFERERR
EE{Re
\/\\ Paxad _
There is no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 for E; 'ﬂ_ﬁ f EJ?_’ > R i
both years. B MR E= R B

EmEE-
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAT5 R R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Zlﬁl P
i 3

44, EMT R (&
EMIAMNAAEENSE

(c)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(&)

(i)

FEF AR R
KRR EBEHENZ
HEEREBRBIAA
&8 (&

FEZRAAIEEE
AR

Equity
investments at
FVTOCI
BAREE

T A HAth
2EBAR
RAKE
RMB’000
FARE

As at 1 January 2021
Transfer from interests in associates

As at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2022

®2021F181H
BEEANBEARNED

H2021%E12831B &
2022 12H31H

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measure at fair value on

a recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.

(ii)

788

788

I FERRAE B M B LY
RAEE BN
BEREZHBERIL
nIEE

IR E R ELIA
AEESENHMRE
BEERERMEBENAR
BEDRBEAREER
ARFFERSREDN
EE-

ERABEERR IR
EMBRRESDN TR
BEEREREENKE
BEEAARBERSE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE M HRRMEE

7 o = |

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

45.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired a
100% equity interest in NVC DK A/S. NVC DK A/S is principally
engaged in the sales and distribution of lighting products and was
acquired with the objective of expanding the Group’s customer
base.

Consideration transferred

g N

REE2021F12831HIEFEE > &
EEUWENVC DK A/SHI100% 8 HE o
NVC DK A/SEEW ERHE RBVH
ERDiE WEZA AR EERERALE
ERNELER-

HERE

RMB'000
TARE

Cash consideration (Note) HeRE Bat)

Note: Cash consideration is at DKK 1 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition

Kt . BEREAISZERE BEROA
Ri#&15T)

RUBERAKBNEERERN
af&

RMB’000

TFARM

Inventories =78 4
Trade receivables B SRR 660
Other receivables and prepayments Hfth e R BR T R FB AT =X 16
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE 1,496
Customer relationship EE R 8
Trade payables B 5 MR (24,182)
Accruals and other payables TEIR & F K H A FE (T BR 7R (2,311)
(24,309)

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
receivables) with fair value of RMB660,000 at the date of
acquisition had gross contractual amounts of RMB660,000.
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45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition:

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLE20204F 12531 H IFF Z

45. WWRHBRE (&

WREREENEE !

RMB’000
FTARME
Consideration transferred HEAE =
Less: recognised amounts of net liabilities assumed B BRESERENEDEEE 24,309
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEREENESE 24,309

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of NVC DK A/S

BAZSWEFEELENBHENLT
BIARIER -

UIZBENVC DK A/SEFEIIRE A
HEE

RMB’000
FARK
Cash consideration paid BNRERE
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired B BEWERESRIREEEBYER
8

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year was a loss of RMB1,116,000
attributable to the additional business generated by NVC DK A/
S. Revenue for the year includes RMB7,643,000 generated from
NVC DK A/S.

Had the acquisition of NVC DK A/S been completed on 1
January 2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have
been RMB2,375,520,000 and profit for the year would have been
RMB31,647,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

WKEEERAEEEENTE

AEFTFEREIENVC DK A/SELER
BIONEFELEEARKEI,116T
TToARFIWABIENVC DK A/SESE
M ARET7,643F 50

MW 2021E1 81 HERENVC DK
A/SHEE  REBNEAKFEWAEZS
AR M2 ,375,5620F 75> A&~ E X4
KA ANRM31,647T 5o tEEZBRE
SR Z B W AMNAR R H W ER
2021 F1B1HE " EBER T
BENWARKESEE  INEBEEES
HRREENTER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BLFE2020F 12531 HIFFZ

46. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 46.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

MEZBFREERGRHNHER

TERFINEERREZHMELES
BEEs aRERERFRELEFH-
MELZHELENEAREEREMRE

BEERAARRERERNEEED
HREOREAEXRDPHESRELTY

from financing activities. EXNRERENEE-
Dividend Lease
payable Borrowings liabilities Total
RS f& =R HEAa®RE &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARK FTARKE FAREKE FARHK
(Note 35) (Note 37)
(H15£35) (H15£37)
At 1 January 2021 R2021FE1B1H - 33,659 58,099 91,758
Financing cash flow MERERE (29,400) 3,706 (23,429) (49,123)
Interest expenses FMEMAZ - 3,995 3,533 7,528
Non-cash movements JERESEH
Additions NE - - 8,946 8,946
Dividend declared BEEIREE 29,400 = = 29,400
Exchange adjustments PE R AR - (1,325) (1,907) (3,232)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12H31H - 40,035 45,242 85,277
Financing cash flow MERERE - 218,858 (17,191) 201,667
Interest expenses B R - 13,783 2,858 16,641
Non-cash movements JEREEEH
Additions /m\ﬁ - - 828 828
Exchange adjustments B 2 5 B - (818) 665 (153)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12831H - 271,858 32,402 304,260
47. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 47. EXRIERERH

During the current year, the Group entered into new lease
agreements for the use of leased offices and warehouses ranged
from two year to eleven years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
amounting to RMB828,000 and RMB828,000 (2021:
RMB8,946,000 and RMB8,946,000), respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

48.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Interest in an associate

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Due from subsidiaries
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Lease liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
ME-BERRAE
ERREE
N YNSIESEE =
REE QTS

FRBEEGS
MEEE
& W B 188 2~ B RRIE

TR s ELAth FE U AR R
REKRIREEEY

MBEESS

REBERE

FEAS KB A B RIR
HiE IR ERRE A
HEEE

mBaEa s

RBEEFE

HMEERRHAR

FRIEIE

HEEE

FEE

in e M ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Bl F20224F 12531 HIEFE

ERBENMBIRRR KB

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TARK

1,599 2,234
353 1,632
908,990 987,184
818,152 583,239
1,729,094 1,674,289
1,368,257 834,604
10,991 10,502
208,216 574,239
1,587,464 1,419,345
1,034,466 674,519
33,965 34,333
383 1,349
1,068,814 710,201
518,650 709,144
2,247,744 2,283,433
- 350
2,247,744 2,283,083
3 3
2,247,741 2,283,080
2,247,744 2,283,083
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ERE M HRRMEE

7 o = |
For the year ended 31 December 2022
B FE2022F 12531 HIFFE
48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  48. Z QSRR R R EE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) f=]
Movement in Company’s reserves AT EEES
Foreign
currency
Share Retained translation
premium profits reserve Total
B 17 it 18 BEANE IERERE 8%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2021 1202141818 2,365,156 205,811 (244,942) 2,326,025
Loss for the year KEFE - (25,235) = (25,235)
Other comprehensive income ~ ZF E 2 & UK A
for the year = = (17,710) (17,710)
At 31 December 2021 R2021812831H 2,365,156 180,576 (262,652) 2,283,080
Loss for the year KEEE - (64,552) = (64,552)
Other comprehensive income A< E 2 EUA
for the year = = 29,213 29,213
At 31 December 2022 120228128311 2,365,156 116,024 (233,439) 2,247,741
49. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 49. HEAER

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a subsidiary of
the Group was involved in a legal dispute concerning patent
infringement, arising in the normal course of business. At the
end of the reporting period and up to the date on which these
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion, taking into account
of the advice from the Group’s external legal counsel, that this
legal dispute is still in a preliminary stage and the expected
outcome is uncertain. Therefore it is not practicable for the
directors of the Company to estimate reliably the amount of the
obligation that may arise from this dispute, and the timing and any
potential impact on the Group.
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Definitions

&

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following EARFEHR P BFEXE R BFRIES > o=
words and expressions shall have the following meanings. FRHEZEEMUTNTREZ-

“Board”
g

“China” or “Mainland China” or “PRC”

TFREL
“CG Code”
=== il

“Company” or “our Company”

“Corresponding Period”
L

»

“Director(s)

g%

“Arcata” or “Shanghai Arcata”

JoRSCAE AN =R S EN

the board of Directors of the Company.
KRBEEGo

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references in
this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not apply to Taiwan, the Macau
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong.

FREARENE BEMAFERIMESEMS  BRXESBMEN RERF
RAR IR E 2 BEAEESE  BPIFRITHRERE S -

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

ERRAMESR Tz (EEERTR )

NVC International Holdings Limited (28 =B ZERE A BRA E)) (formerly known
as NVC Lighting Holding Limited (B +HREIZERBRAE)), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 2 March 2006 and subsequently
redomiciled to the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
ETERZERBRAD FEELRBERBIRAR) » —xKN2006F382H 7%
HEERMREFEEMAIL BEN201053A30HFxMitEEHERE R
B UREHEEELFEMA—RKEREERAE  EROIEBAMERL
o

the year ended 31 December 2021.
BIEEE2021F12831HIEFE-

the director(s) of the Company.

KABESF-

Shanghai Arcata Electronics Co., Ltd.* (&R FEEFAERAE), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 22 September 2005 and our indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary.

EBRAREEFARAT > —KN2005F9822H T HREZEMEIINBREER
8 2HRMANEEEEREAS -

BELERERARASE 202263
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Definitions

2

“ETIC”

“Group”
TREE]

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars’

&ty

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“Huizhou NVC”

FEME
“LED”

FLED
“Listing Rules”
M{EmHRaI
“Model Code”

TR SRRl

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (ZHESZHEBRKRMDBERA ) (formerly
known as Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (EEREZHEBRKRMDBRAR)),
a PRC incorporated company whose shares are currently listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. It is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
ZHERHEERRHERAD FIBAERERHEEBRIRHERRS) > —
KO ERERNBARRZM ETHNRBRGEMRIAE  HAXATNEER
o

Great Britain Sterling Pound, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
- HEEES -

the Company and its subsidiaries.
KRB REWB AT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
BT BEBEEGE-

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of PRC.
REAREMNBEEBFITHE -

Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (BEME X EREBRA 7)), a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on
29 April 2006 and our former direct wholly-owned subsidiary, 30% equity interest
of which is indirectly owned by us.

BINE LN BEREARAT  —RN20065FE48 298 fEHE M AL EBE
BREEAE BREHRMUEEZEWNB RS HMIIBZTE HI0%KH#E -

Light-Emitting Diode.
BN IBE o

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
(BEEHEXZMAERRABESF LHHRE)-

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
(ERRAD MR+ 2 (P ETAESETESIZRETH])
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“ODM”

FODM |

“OEM”

I'OEM |

“Reporting Period”

MRS FE

“RMB”
TAR]

“RSU”
I PR AR 13 B AL

“RSU Scheme Rules”
IZPRHIARD B I 5T 8 FRA

“SFO”
MEEHF KGR

“SGD”
T

“Share(s)”
TR 15 1

“Shareholder(s)”
TR ER

“Stock Exchange”
T3 PR

‘UK NVC”

Definitions

&

original design manufacturing, a type of manufacturing under which the
manufacturer is responsible for the design and production of the products and
the products are marketed and sold under the customer’s brand name.
RRANSE BREBER S WEHaEEMNRFANEE MERIUERS @
R SHAIH & o

original equipment manufacturer, a type of manufacturing that the purchaser
provides equipment and technology, the manufacturer is responsible for
production, providing manpower and venue, and the purchaser is responsible for
sale.

RILE RELBRE ARBEAFRESKGANEN AREFaE5LE EH#
ARG KEHFaaHENEEF R -

the year ended 31 December 2022.
B E2022F12A31HILFE-

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.
AR REEEEEE -

a restricted share unit granted to a participant under the RSU Scheme
RIBEZIRGIR M BAIEt RIS M A TE BN REIA 7D B

the rules relating to the RSU Scheme, as amended, modified or supplemented
from time to time

R 2R B AR 1D B 5t 8RR A (IR FBHEST BN T

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
(EFRBER) EBEFFELT1HE) o

Singapore dollar, the lawful currency of Singapore.
NS > N EE G -

Ordinary share(s) of US$0.0000001 each in the share capital of the Company.
AT RAFE I EE0.0000001E oA E B ©

Holder(s) of Shares
e EUEST= PN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BERMERXBMBRAT -

NVC Lighting Limited (formerly known as NVC (Manufacturing) Limited), a private
company incorporated in England and Wales on 31 May 2007, and our direct
wholly-owned subsidiary.

NVC Lighting Limited (JR% ANVC (Manufacturing) Limited) » —Z& 732007548
STEHEHAEE KB LEMRIUINMART RRMANEEL2EWE QT -

BELERERARASE 202263
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Definitions

2

“U.S.” or “United States”
M=E.

“US$”, “USD” or “US Dollar”
=l

“VND”
e qeap =

» o«

“we”, “us” or “our”

e L

“Zhejiang NVC”

M IE L

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject
to its jurisdiction.
FHEBRERE HELT B REBENMEME-

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.
E EREESE-

Vietnamese dong, the lawful currency of Vietnam

WEE BEEEEK-

the Company or the Group (as the context may require).

RABRAEER R XEME) ©

Zhejiang NVC Lamps Co., Ltd.* (JIELEEBRAT), a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC on 28 September 2007, a 51% equity interest
of which is held by Huizhou NVC and the remaining 49% equity interest of which
is held by Zhejiang Tonking New Energy Group Co., Ltd.* (IR S RER
BREARD).

MIETERBRAR > —KN2007F9B28HAEFEFMAIINEREER
B BEMELIFEHS1%RE R TH40%RERN IR SHERERERAT
FAe

denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or

entity, or vice versa, and is provided for identification purposes only
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